








 
 

 
          Mayor Fielder announced that item # 9 has been postponed.  Both the public hearing and action 

item will be held on July 21, 2016 at the regular city council meeting 
 
    9.   Public Hearing on Zoning Case 16-Z-006: Consider a zoning change for 50.615 acres, more or less, 

generally located to the west of the intersection of Crystal Falls Parkway and Lakeline Blvd., more 
specifically to the west of the Fairways at Crystal Falls, Section 5 from SFS-2-B, Single Family 
Suburban to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of MF-2-A, Multi Family, 
Leander, Travis County, Texas 

           Applicant:  Mike Siefert on behalf of Lookout Partners, LP 
 

          Action on Zoning Case 16-Z-006: a zoning change for 50.615 acres, more or less, generally located 
to the west of the intersection of Crystal Falls Parkway and Lakeline Blvd., more specifically to the 
west of the Fairways at Crystal Falls, Section 5 from SFS-2-B, Single Family Suburban to PUD, 
Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of MF-2-A, Multi Family, Leander, Travis 
County, Texas  

 
          Mayor Fielder moved into executive session for item 22(c) at this time at 7:20 pm 
          Council reconvened into open session at 7:38 pm 
 

 
10.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case 16-Z-013: Consider a zoning change for 65.25 acres, more or less, 

generally located to the southwest of the intersection of Crystal Falls Parkway and 183A Toll from 
GC-2-A, General Commercial, LC-2-A, Local Commercial, LO-2-A, Local Office and SFT-2-A, Single 
Family Townhome to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of GC-2-A, General 
Commercial and MF-2-A, Multi Family, or any other more restrictive district, Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas 

        Applicant: City of Leander on behalf of Premas Global Leander, LLC 
        Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
        No speakers 
 
        Action on Zoning Case 16-Z-013: a zoning change for 65.25 acres, more or less, generally located 

to the southwest of the intersection of Crystal Falls Parkway and 183A Toll from GC-2-A, General 
Commercial, LC-2-A, Local Commercial, LO-2-A, Local Office and SFT-2-A, Single Family 
Townhome to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of GC-2-A, General 
Commercial and MF-2-A, Multi Family, or any other more restrictive district, Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas  

 
       Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve with modifications.  Second by  

Council Member Shepherd. Motion passes, 6 to 1 with Mayor Fielder voting against 
 
 

 
   11.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case 16-Z-009: a zoning change for 10.922 acres, more 

or less, generally located to the northwest corner of Crystal Falls Parkway and Lakeline Blvd. from 
GC-3-B, General Commercial to PUD, Planned Unit Development with base zoning districts MF-2-A, 
Multi-Family and GC-2-A, General Commercial, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  

          Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
           
       Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Council Member 

Stephenson. Motion passes, 5 to 2 with Mayor Pro Tem Abruzzese and Council Member Hill 
voting against.   

REGULAR AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
 
 

12. Consider Action on: (a) the Settlement Agreement with Premas Global Leander, LLC, and (b) the 
Development Agreement for Global Village; for 65.25 acres, more or less, generally located to the 
southwest of the intersection of Crystal Falls Parkway and 183A Toll, Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas  

       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve with modifications.  Second by Council 

Member Shepherd. Motion passes, 6 to 1 with Mayor Fielder voting against. 
 
13.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case 16-Z-013: a zoning change for 65.25 acres, more 

or less, generally located to the southwest of the intersection of Crystal Falls Parkway and 183A Toll 
from GC-2-A, General Commercial, LC-2-A, Local Commercial, LO-2-A, Local Office and SFT-2-A, 
Single Family Townhome to PUD, Planned Unit Development with a base zoning district of GC-2-A, 
General Commercial and MF-2-A, Multi Family, or any other more restrictive district, Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas 

       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
         
       Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
       Motion passes, 6 to 1 with Mayor Fielder voting against. 
 
14.  Consider proposed removal of a Heritage Tree located within the Deerbrooke Subdivision, Leander, 

Williamson County, Texas 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
        
       Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve.  Second by Council Member Navarrette. 
       Motion passes, 5 to 2 with Mayor Fielder and Mayor Pro Tem Abruzzese voting against. 
 
15.  Authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services contract with Revenue Enhancement  
       Services, LLC to conduct an audit of billing and collection services within the Utility Billing office.  
       Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
        
       Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member 

Stephenson.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
16.  Consider the Construction Manager at Risk method of delivery for the relocation of Fire Station #1 
       Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent explained 
        
       Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abruzzese. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
17.  Consider the Sealed Competitive Proposal method of solicitation for the Police Department Sally Port 

construction project 
        Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
       
       Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye”   
 
18.  Consider Termination and Release of a Water Line Easement located on the Hero Way Multi-family 

site, now known as The Standard at Leander Station 
        Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
        
       Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve.  Second by Council Member 

Shepherd.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
19.  Consider appointment of 2 council members to serve on the Old Town Christmas Festival Committee 
       
       Motion made by Council Member Seiler to appoint Council Members Navarrette and Shepherd.  

Second by Council Member Hill.   Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  
20.  Water Use and Supply update 

             Pat Womack, Director of Public Works gave the update 
 
     21.  Council Member Closing Statements 
            Council Members gave their closing statements 

 
     22.  Convene into executive session: 

a) pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary 
Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding legal issues related to the 
City’s boundaries and the future growth of the City 

b) pursuant to Section 551.071 and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to deliberate the offer of financial or other incentives to 
business prospects the City seeks to have locate in the city 

c) pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05,  Texas Disciplinary 
Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding a proposed  settlement 
agreement in Cause No. 15-0088- C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 
277th Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas 

 
                Council convened into executive session at 8:22 pm 
                  Council reconvened into open session at 8:49 pm 

 
  23.  Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council’s discretion:  

a) regarding the City’s boundaries and future growth of the City 
No action taken 

b) regarding the offer of financial or other incentives to business prospects the City seeks to have 
locate in the City 
No action taken 

c) regarding a proposed  settlement agreement in Cause No. 15-0088- C277, Premas Global 
Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 277th Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas 
No action taken 

 
     24.  Adjournment  
            With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:49 pm 
 
 
 
     Attest: 
 
 
           
         _______________________________________              _________________________________ 
         Christopher Fielder, Mayor                Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 6 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

July 7, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Borho Phase 8 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Borho Phase 8 have 
been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation 
required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record drawings, 
statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State 
of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the 
improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance 
Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City Council 
acceptance, as anticipated, on July 7, 2016, which will provide warranty and maintenance 
coverage for the infrastructure improvements through July 7, 2018.  The Engineering 
Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements approximately 30 days 
prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any defects in materials, 
workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Borho Phase 8. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, TAS Approval Letter, 
Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

























AGENDA ITEM # 7 
 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

July 7, 2016 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Circle Diamond – Offsite 
Waterline Extension 
 
Background:  The Offsite Waterline Extension for the Circle Diamond Site has been 
installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation required for 
acceptance of the offsite utility improvements have been received, including record 
drawings, statement(s) of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer 
licensed in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, 
electronic files of the improvements and final plat(s), affidavit(s) of all bills paid, and a Cash 
Deposit Agreement as fiscal surety. The City will refund to Contractor the remaining 
balance, if any, of the Cash Deposit upon the two year term of City Council acceptance, as 
anticipated, on July 7, 2016, which will provide warranty and maintenance coverage for the 
utility improvements through July 7, 2018.  The Engineering Department will perform a 
formal inspection of the improvements approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the 
maintenance period to assure that any defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are 
corrected prior to expiration of the agreement. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the Circle 
Diamond Offsite waterline 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter(s), Cash Deposit Agreement, Affidavit(s) of 
All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimate(s) 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





















AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

 July 7, 2016  

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Mason Ranch, Ph 2 Sec 2B 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Mason Ranch, Ph 2 
Sec 2B have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on July 7, 2016, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through July 7, 2018.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Mason Ranch, Ph 2 Sec 2B. 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 































AGENDA ITEM # 9  

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 07, 2016 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-030 & Subdivision Case 15-TOD-CP-

009:  Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning 
and approval of the Tylerville Commercial Concept Plan and PUD 
zoning of a tract of land generally located to the southwest of the 
intersection of San Gabriel Pkwy & US 183; 11.221 acres more or 
less; WCAD Parcel R395875. Currently, the property is zoned 
PUD (Planned Unit Development) and the applicant is proposing 
an amendment to the PUD to include the base zoning districts of 
GC-3-A (General Commercial), GC-2-A (General Commercial), 
and LC-2-A (Local Commercial); Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning and subdivision 

process.   
 
Origination: Applicant/Agent: Kristiana Alfsen on behalf of Waterstone 

Tylerville, LP. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended to approve the request with staff recommendation 
including the following conditions at the June 23, 2016 meeting 
with a 5 to 1 vote (Commissioner Anderson opposing). 
1. Update the PUD to meet the intent of the ordinance with regard 

to continuous building frontage along US 183.  An example 
could include relocating the pumps to allow for another 
building between US 183 and the pumps. 

2. Add a requirement that the continuous building frontage will 
not be required for Parcel 2 as long as the buildings are 
oriented towards the creek corridor instead of San Gabriel 
Pkwy.  The creek shall be treated as the street with regard to 
the masonry requirements.  The creek shall include an active 
edge with a trail system, pedestrian amenities, outdoor seating, 
landscaping, etc.  



3. Add a note to Exhibit E stating that the site plan is conceptual 
and has not been reviewed by City Staff.  A formal review will 
be conducted at the site development stage of the process. 

4. Update Exhibit F to demonstrate the averaging the riparian 
corridor setbacks.  Currently, the exhibit only shows the 
removal.  

5. Provide a trail along the creek. 
  
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Future Land Use Map 
 4.   Notification Map  
 5. Proposed Zoning Map 
 6. Aerial Map  
 7. PUD Notes and Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 8.   Letter of Intent 
 9.   Ordinance  
 10. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission June 23, 2016  
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 06/24/2016 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-030 

CONCEPT PLAN 15-TOD-CP-006  
 

TYLERVILLE COMMERCIAL PUD & CONCEPT PLAN 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Waterstone Tylerville, LP. 
 
Current Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development)  
 
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) with the base zoning districts of: 

GC-3-A (General Commercial) 
GC-2-A (General Commercial) 
LC-2-A (Local Commercial) 

 
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the southwest of the intersection of 

San Gabriel Pkwy & US 183 and includes approximately 11.221 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner   
     
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH PUD/TOD 
PUD/TOD 

Undeveloped Property  
Proposed Enclave at Maya Vista Subdivision 

EAST PUD/TOD Undeveloped Property 

SOUTH PUD/TOD Proposed Oak Creek Subdivision 
Undeveloped Property 

WEST PUD/TOD Proposed Oak Creek Subdivision 
        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
PUD/TOD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT: 

The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a master planned commercial project.  The intent of this zoning 
district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent 
single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region. 

 
CONVENTIONAL ZONE: 

The Conventional Development Sector allows conventional single-use and mixed-use 
development with some basic design standards to provide a transition to adjacent 
neighborhoods and pedestrian-oriented communities, and for the possibility of future retrofit 
of the area to a more pedestrian-oriented pattern. 
 

USE COMPONENTS 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 
grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sun.-Thurs., 
5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
SITE COMPONENTS 
TYPE 2:   

Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 
dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE 3:   

Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 
service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, HC and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT 
TYPE A:   

Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 

provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components. 

 
  

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide a balanced mix of complementary uses that support a strong and diverse tax base.  
 Mixed Use Corridors are areas along arterials between Centers that have available land 

and should be developed to preserve the integrity of the corridor and maintain mobility.  
These corridors include land within approximately 500 feet of the outer edge of the right-
of-way (typically one block deep). 

 Commercial Corridors allow for additional commercial development along corridors 
already devoted to primarily commercial and office uses.  The typical uses associated 
with this corridor include a variety of medium-intensity uses including general businesses 
and services, offices, restaurants, retail, professional and medical services, light 
industrial, flex space, storage and even some limited residential uses. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to the TOD/PUD (Transit Oriented 
Development/Planned Unit Development) district in to order to develop a commercial project.  
This request for a PUD and a Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan that can also be 
considered as the Concept Plan as permitted by the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  This 
submittal includes the PUD zoning request and Concept Plan for review by the Planning & 
Zoning Commission. 
 
The surrounding properties are also located within the TOD.  The properties to the west and 
south are part of the proposed Oak Creek Subdivision.  A portion of the property to the north is 
part of the proposed Enclave at Maya Vista Subdivision.  The remaining properties are currently 
undeveloped.     
 
The proposed base zonings for this PUD are GC-3-A (General Commercial), GC-2-A (General 
Commercial), and LC-2-A (Local Commercial).  The proposed GC-3-A is located at the corner 
of US 183 and San Gabriel Parkway.  The zoning is proposed to transition with regards to 
intensity as the project moves to the west.  The GC-2-A district is proposed in the center and the 
LC-2-A district is proposed to be located at the intersection of W Broade Street and San Gabriel 
Parkway.  
 
The GC use component permits the development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and 
commercial service uses located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be 
provided by an arterial street.  The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at 
intersections of arterial streets.   
 
The LC use component allows for the development of small scale, limited impact retail that 
offers personal services and office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, 
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 
 
The requested Type 3 site component would permit outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor storage 
and/or display, overhead doors, drive-through service lanes and carwashes.  This use component 

4 
 



Attachment # 1                 

is intended to be combined with the GC use component where it is appropriate to utilize the 
outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory 
buildings.   
 
The requested Type 2 site component would prohibit outdoor fuel sales, outdoor storage and/or 
display, overhead doors, drive-through service lanes and carwashes.  This site component is 
intended to be combined with the GC use component where it is adjacent to a residential district 
in order to reduce potential negative impacts to the more restrictive district.    
 
The Type A Architectural Component requires that 85% of the walls are comprised of masonry.  
In addition, a minimum of five architectural features are required. 
 
This application includes the following higher standards and waivers. 
 

HIGHER STANDARDS WAIVERS 
COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE 
Type A Architectural Component - 

- Remove requirement for continuous building 
frontage 

- Reduction in screening requirement for gas 
pumps 

- Modify riparian corridor setbacks 
 
The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standards will apply to this project.  US 183 and 
San Gabriel Parkway are designated as B-Streets.  These standards are listed below.   
 
STANDARDS SPECIFIC TO B-STREETS IN COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

a. Surface parking consisting of no more than one drive aisle with head-in parking spaces 
on each side of the drive aisle are permitted between the building and the right-of-way. A 
landscape screen or wall no taller than 4 feet in height shall be constructed and 
maintained to screen the view of the parking from the adjacent ROW. 

b. All drive aisles shall be designed and easements conveyed to connect to existing or future 
drive aisles on adjacent properties. 

c. Sidewalks and street trees in compliance with the Composite Zoning Ordinance shall be 
required between the parking lot and the right-of-way. 

d. Sidewalks at least 12 feet wide shall be provided between the building facade and the 
parking lot, with trees in grates or planter boxes every 30 feet. 

e. A continuous building frontage is required.  The frontage may only be broken by a street, 
pedestrian passage, courtyard or similar feature approved by the Planning Director.  For 
phased building construction within a block, a screen wall or landscape hedge shall be 
constructed at the building frontage line prior to building construction. 

f. The provision of pedestrian amenities such as benches, outdoor dining areas, awnings 
over sidewalks and other similar features is encouraged.  The Planning Director may 
provide a reduction of the minimum parking or landscaping requirement of up to 15% for 
the provision of pedestrian amenities. 

 

5 
 



Attachment # 1                 

Standards Specific to Lots & Buildings on B-Streets in Commercial Zoning Districts 
a. Buildings fronting on A- and B-Streets shall meet the Type A Architectural Component 

of the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
b. Buildings fronting on A- and B-Streets shall provide a primary entrance facing the street 

accessing the required sidewalk. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD and Concept Plan with the following 
conditions: 

1. Update the PUD to meet the intent of the ordinance with regard to continuous building 
frontage along US 183.  An example could include relocating the pumps to allow for 
another building between US 183 and the pumps. 

2. Add a requirement that the continuous building frontage will not be required for Parcel 2 
as long as the buildings are oriented towards the creek corridor instead of San Gabriel 
Pkwy.  The creek shall be treated as the street with regard to the masonry requirements.  
The creek shall include an active edge with a trail system, pedestrian amenities, outdoor 
seating, landscaping, etc.  

3. Add a note to Exhibit E stating that the site plan is conceptual and has not been reviewed 
by City Staff.  A formal review will be conducted at the site development stage of the 
process. 

4. Update Exhibit F to demonstrate the averaging the riparian corridor setbacks.  Currently, 
the exhibit only shows the removal.  

5. Provide a trail along the creek. 
 
The intent of the B-Street standards is to provide for a pedestrian friendly, walkable area.  A 
continuous building frontage is required along this street type.  In this situation, orienting the 
buildings to face the creek and a trail would promote a pedestrian friendly atmosphere.   
 
This request with staff recommendations meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

6 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

4C

US
 18

3

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

W 
BR

OA
DE

 S
T

SOUTH BROOK DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

STAR THISTLE ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-030  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Tylerville PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC

SFL
SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF

LO
LC
GC
HC
HI 

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD - Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD - Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD - Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD - Townhomes

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD - Single-Family

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



US
 18

3

W 
BR

OA
DE

 S
T

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

SOUTH BROOK DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWYMISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-030  Attachment #3 Future Land Use Map - Tylerville PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Open Space
Mixed Use Corridor

Commercial Corridor
Neighborhood Center 
Community Center
Activity Center

Transit Supportive Mixed Use
Station Area Mixed Use
Old Town Mixed Use
Employment Mixed Use
Industrial District
Neighborhood Residential

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



R031694

R321825

R529006

R4
33

11
0

R522995

R031699

R529012

R529005

R4
57

67
7

R395875

R529007

R524552

R529010

R528
999

R529000

R458187

R099991

R529008

R089421

R032233

R529009

R031720

R349069

R4
42

58
4

R031722

R4
42

58
3

R0
86

30
6

R4
58

17
4

R525192

R529003

R529002

R529001

US
 18

3

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST

MIDDLE BROOK DR

PALMILLA ST

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

SOUTH BROOK DR

PECAN BAYOU DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

FE
LD

SP
AR

 ST
RE

AM
 W

AY

STAR THISTLE ST

SOUTH BROOK DR

±Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property
City Limits

WCAD Parcels

0 200100
Feet

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-030
Attachment #4
Notification Map
Tylerville Commercial PUD Amendment

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

4C

US
 18

3

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

W 
BR

OA
DE

 S
T

SOUTH BROOK DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

STAR THISTLE ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-030  Attachment #5 Proposed Zoning Map - Tylerville PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC

SFL
SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF

LO
LC
GC
HC
HI 

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD - Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD - Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD - Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD - Townhomes

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD - Single-Family

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



US
 18

3

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-030 Attachment #6
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Tylerville Commercial PUD

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.





























Amending Ordinance 05-026-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS THE TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR A PARCEL OF LAND BY 
CREATING THE TYLERVILLE COMMERCIAL PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS. 
 

 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property"), which is located 
within the planned unit development known as the Transit Oriented Development District (the 
“TODD”), has requested that the Property be rezoned and a planned unit development plan (the 
“PUD plan”) for the Tylerville Commercial Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) be adopted; 
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2. Amendment of TODD Ordinance.  Ordinance No.05-026, as amended, the City of 
Leander TODD Ordinance, is hereby modified and amended for these Properties as set forth in 
Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability.  The TODD Ordinance is hereby amended by creating the Tylerville 
Commercial PUD, which are herein referred to as the “Property,” generally located to the 
southwest of the intersection of San Gabriel Pkwy and US 183, and more particularly described 
as follows:  those certain parcels of land being 11.221 acres, more or less, out of the Charles 
Cochran Survey Abstract No. 134; located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more 
particularly shown and described in Exhibit “B”; and identified by tax identification number 
R395875; more particularly described in instrument number 2004063370 recorded in the 
Williamson County Official Public Records.   
 
Section 4. Property Rezoned. The Property is zoned to the planned unit development district 
known as the Tylerville Commercial PUD within the TODD.  The Property shall be developed 
and occupied in compliance with the PUD plan attached hereto as Exhibits “A”, “B”, “C”, “D”, 
“E”, and “F”, the Conventional Development Sector Standards of the Smart Code (defined in the 
TODD Ordinance) and as amended by the PUD, the Composite Zoning Ordinance, and other 



Amending Ordinance 05-026-00 

applicable regulations of the City.   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6. Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7. Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 7th day of July, 2016. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 21st day of July, 2016. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



























AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 7, 2016 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Ordinance Case 16-OR-001: Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on amending sections of the Composite Zoning Ordinance, 
to add definitions, update the use components, to modify setbacks 
for commercial fueling, to update requirements for screening, to 
update the parking requirements table, to modify residential 
setbacks, to clarify requirements for drainage and detention 
facilities, to modify outdoor lighting requirements, to update the 
architectural standards, to update the site development standards.   

 
Background: Staff presented a proposal to the Planning & Zoning Commission 

on November 12, 2015 that included several amendments to clarify 
the Composite Zoning Ordinances.  Based on the results of that 
meeting, staff is proposing the following amendments to the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance.   
1. Update the definitions section 
2. Clarify the number of children permitted in an in home daycare 
3. Add temporary parking to the list of permitted uses 
4. Add Gaming Room Facility to the HC use component 
5. Update the PUD section to include examples of higher 

standards 
6. Increase the setback between commercial fueling and 

residential uses 
7. Modify the screening requirements 
8. Update the disturbance zone 
9. Change “Tree Protection” to “Tree Preservation” to be 

consistent throughout the ordinance 
10. Update the parking requirements 
11. Revise the setback requirements 
12. Revise the drainage and detention facility requirements 
13. Update the outdoor lighting requirements 
14. Modify the fencing requirements 
15. Clarify the masonry requirements 
16. Update the brush removal requirements 

 
Origination: Applicant:  City of Leander 



 
 

 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended to approve the amendments with staff 
recommendation and the following changes at the June 23, 2016 
meeting: 
1. Remove the restrictions regarding the limitations on stucco 
2. Reword the language regarding the drainage structures to 

clarify the permitted wall materials 
 
Attachments: 1.   Proposed Amendments  

2. Ordinance  
3. HBA Correspondence  
4. Proposed P&Z Amendments 
5. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission June 23, 2016  

 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 06/30/2016 
 
 



COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 

 
ARTICLE I – GENERAL  

SECTION 6:  DEFINITIONS 
 
Dark Sky  means the use of lighting in a way that directs the light source away from the 
sky in order for the night sky to remain relatively free of interference from artificial light.  
This type of lighting is in compliance with the International Dark Sky Association standards. 

Gaming Room Facility means a place to deal, operate, carry on, conduct, maintain, or 
expose for play any game, sports book, promotion, sweepstakes, or other activity electronic 
or otherwise that may or may not confer upon the patrons or participants the right, chance, 
or ability to win and or claim prizes.   

Gaming Device means a clock, tape machine, slot machine, or other machine or device for 
the reception of money or other thing of value on chance or skill or upon action of which 
money or other thing of value is staked, hazarded, bet, won, or lost; or any mechanism, 
furniture, fixture, equipment or other device designed primarily for use in a gambling place.  
It does not include: (1) A coin-in-slot-operated mechanical device played for amusement 
that rewards the player with the right to replay such mechanical device; or (2) Vending 
machines by which full and adequate return is made for the money invested and in which 
there is no element of chance or hazard. 

Lot Width means the average horizontal distance between side property or lot lines.  Lot 
width can also be identified as the measurement of the lot at the building setback line.  The 
minimum lot width for lots fronting a cul-de-sac may be reduced to a minimum of thirty 
(30’) feet at the front property line provided that the minimum required lot width is 
provided at the front setback line. 

Soil means the upper layer of the earth in which plants grow and contains humus, minerals, 
available nutrients, and beneficial micro-organisms, resulting in a favorable condition for 
vegetative growth. 
  

ARTICLE III – USE COMPONENTS  
SECTION 1:  SFR – SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL 
(b) Conforming Uses 

(1) Single-family dwelling of not less than sixteen hundred (1,600) square feet of living 
area; accessory dwelling with a minimum living area of four hundred (400) square 
feet; and a maximum living area of nine hundred (900) square feet or 40% of the 
gross living area of the primary dwelling, whichever is greater.  However, for lots 
greater than three acres in size, there is no limit to the maximum size of the accessory 
dwelling. 

(2) Community services including community center, civic organizations, fraternal 
organizations, and cemetery / mausoleum not including a crematory or embalming 
facilities  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  1 



(3) Golf courses (public and private) and all associated improvements and activities, but 
not including miniature golf courses, golf practice ranges (unless associated with a golf 
course), or similar forms of commercial amusement 

(4) Day care (in home) for 56 or fewer children 

(5) Emergency services including fire, police and EMS stations 

(6) Family Home and Group Home-Class 1 

(7) Home occupations (see Article IV, Section 8 for Use Standards) 

(8) Parks, playgrounds and associated equipment and facilities, recreational amenity 
center 

(9) Place of worship  

(10) Public buildings, including libraries, museums and administrative offices  

(11)  Real estate sales offices during the development and sale of a residential subdivision 
and subject to the restrictions contained in this ordinance 

(12) Schools, public or private, including all levels up to and including secondary (high) 
school and equivalent curriculum including support facilities are permitted 

(13) Temporary buildings incidental to construction work on the premises if such buildings 
are removed upon the completion or abandonment of construction work (see Article 
IV, Sec. 7) 

(14) Utilities (minor) including ground mounted service equipment and minor structures 
and facilities such as poles, minor electrical switching facilities, lift stations, water 
pump stations and gas regulating facilities 

(15) Water supply reservoirs and pumping plants when screened from public view 

(16) Wireless communications facilities (WCFs) attached to street poles or facades attached 
to non-residential buildings or stealth WCFs are permitted subject to the provisions of 
this ordinance.  Freestanding WCFs, including lattice towers and mono-poles, are 
prohibited. 

(17) (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding 
academies and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of 
agricultural livestock and exotic hoof stock; however, with exception of commercial 
feed lots which are not permitted, and the exception that not more than one large 
animal (e.g. a horse, cow, bull or similar animal) or five small animals (e.g. goats, 
sheep or similar animal) may be permitted for each acre of grazeable land.  Grazeable 
land shall be land that is fenced and maintained with suitable forage for grazing of the 
particular species.  Barns and stables shall not be located within 25 feet of any 
property line. (See Chap. 2, City Code for animal control regulations) 

(18) Agricultural, small wind energy systems, solar energy systems and rainwater 
harvesting systems including or similar to: 
(i) As accessory uses, solar energy systems designed to supply energy for use on 

the premises, and rainwater harvesting systems meeting the standards of 
Article IV, Sec. 5 of Article 14.200. In addition, if approved with a special use 
permit, small wind energy systems may be approved as an accessory use if 
meeting the standards of Article IV, Sec. 5 of Article 14.200. 

(ii) Hunting and/or hunting leases (for lots or tracts three or more acres in size). 
(iii) Farming or truck gardens, limited to the propagation and cultivation of plants.  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  2 



(19) Temporary parking associated with model homes and/or sales trailers prior to the 
completion of model homes.  Article IX of this ordinance will apply to temporary 
parking lots. 

(20)  Other similar uses as determined by the Director of Planning [see Article II, Sec. 2, (f)]. 
 
SECTION 14:  HC – HEAVY COMMERCIAL 
(b) Conforming Uses 

(1) Any use permitted in the “GC” component 
(2) Bingo 
(3) Car Title Loans Shop/Business 
(4)  Commercial laundry 
(5)  Contractor and building material storage 
(6)  Gaming Room Facility/Gaming Device 
(6)(7) Hooka Lounge 
(7)(8)  Manufacture, assembly or processing of materials not classified as hazardous by 

the Fire Chief 
(8)(9)  Mini-warehouse or self-service storage facilities [required to be set back at least 

four hundred (400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial roadway if built to 
Type B, C or D architectural standards or such facilities include exterior warehouse 
doors], warehouse and distribution, commercial storage  

(9)(10)  Pawn Shop 
(10)(11) Payday Lending Business 
(11)(12) Research, Testing, and Development Laboratory 
(12)(13) Research, Testing, and Development Laboratory (Intense) 
(13)(14) Retail sales, second hand resale, and services 
(14)(15) RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage [required to be 

set back at least four hundred (400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial 
roadway]  (Note:  refer to Article VI, Section 9 for rules on special vehicle storage) 

(15)(16) Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor  
(16)(17) Utilities, including ground mounted service equipment and structures as a primary 

use and facilities such as poles, electrical switching facilities, lift stations, water pump 
stations, gas regulating facilities, electrical substations, generating plants, wastewater 
and water treatment plants, etc. (see screening requirements in Article VI, Sec. 1) 

(17)(18) Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop [Small 
engine repair shops and motorcycle repair shops shall not be permitted within one-
hundred fifty (150’) feet of a residential district unless such repairs are conducted 
totally within a fully enclosed building.] 

(18)(19) Warehouse and distribution 
(19)(20) Wood yard  
(20)(21) Wholesale activities 
(21)(22) Wrecker Impoundment, Towing [required to be set back at least four hundred 

(400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial roadway] 
(22)(23) Stand alone crematory or embalming establishment as long as the crematory 

stack is no closer than 200’ from a restaurant or associated parking or from a 
residential district (unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses). 

(23)(24) Other similar uses as determined by the Director of Planning based on the criteria 
of Article II, Sec. 2, (f) 

 
  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  3 



SECTION 16:  PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
(d) Rules Applicable 

(8) The PUD shall result in overall higher standards than what would be provided by 
the base zoning district.  As examples:  (1) if residential lot sizes are decreased or 
development densities are increased, the PUD will be expected to significantly 
exceed other standards such as parkland and facilities dedication, landscaping, 
architectural controls, thoroughfare or other transportation improvements, creation 
of unique characteristics of the neighborhood, retention of significant trees and/or 
provision of public facilities, etc., or (2) if masonry standards or 
building/development setbacks are proposed to be decreased, other standards 
would be expected to be increased such as landscaping, screening, retention of 
significant trees, architectural controls, land uses and/or unique site layout 
standards, etc.  Other examples may include:  

(i) Designating the Type A Architectural Component 
(ii) Adding additional architectural features 
(iii) Provide a master architectural and signage plan that includes a cohesive 

materials palette 
(iv) Enhanced landscaping and/or trees 
(v) Increased landscape area 
(vi) Masonry perimeter walls for subdivisions 
(vii) Provide brick or stone instead of decorative concrete panels for screening 

walls 
(viii) Plant street trees 
(ix) Provide more parkland dedication 
(x) Increase recreation improvements 
(xi) Trails system in greenbelt areas 
(xii) Provide a Master Sign Plan including: proposed locations, provide cohesive 

materials palette, design specifications for signage, type of illumination 
(xiii) Limit fencing to wrought iron or decorative tubular metal fencing along 

greenbelt lots. 
(xiv) Provide unique characteristics of a neighborhood with a unique site layout 
(xv) Include a mixture of uses 
(xvi) Provide public spaces 
(xvii) Incorporate public art 

 
 

ARTICLE V – SITE COMPONENTS  

SECTION 3:  TYPE 3 
(b) Site Uses and Features (Some Site Uses Listed Also Require Appropriate Use Component) 

(2) Commercial and Industrial Development:  
(v) Outdoor commercial fueling and washing of vehicles meeting the following 

requirements is permitted: 
a. Washing of vehicles (including vacuum facilities) is not located within 

one hundred fifty (150’) feet of a residential district unless such district 
is utilized for non-residential purposes.  The location is measured from 
the closest portion of the structure associated with the washing of 
vehicles to the residential district; and 

b. Commercial fueling is not located within one two hundred (1200’) feet of 
a residential district unless such district is utilized for non-residential 
purpose.  The location is measured from the closest portion of the 
structure associated with the outdoor commercial fueling to the 
residential district; and   

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  4 



ARTICLE VI – SITE STANDARDS  
SECTION 1:  LANDSCAPING, TREE PRESERVATION AND PROTECTION, AND 
SCREENING REQUIREMENTS 
(c) Tree Preservation and Protection. 

(4) Significant Tree Preservation Requirements 
(iv) Significant Trees greater than eight (8) inches in caliper shall be preserved to 

the greatest extent reasonably possible. Significant Trees removed during 
construction shall be supplanted with Replacement Trees if required by the 
tree mitigation requirements of this section.  No Significant Tree shall be 
removed until a tree protection preservation plan has been approved by the 
Director of Planning in accordance with this Chapter.  Significant Trees may be 
removed only in accordance with the approved tree protection preservation 
plan, and trees must be protected during construction activities on the 
property in accordance with the approved tree protection preservation plan.  
This provision only applies to projects before the certificate of occupancy has 
been issued for single-family and two-family developments.  For single-family 
and two-family projects, this provision only applies prior to the initial 
certificate of occupancy for each lot. 

*** 
 
 

(8) A non-disturbance zone shall be maintained on single-family and two-family lots 
during the subdivision construction and building permit phases of development.  A 
disturbance area no more than five (5’) feet from the foundation necessary for 
construction and grade transitions shall be permitted.  This disturbance area shall 
be no more than ten (10’) feet from the foundation for properties zoned with the 
SFR (Single-Family Rural) use component.  The trees located on the remainder of 
the lot shall not be removed unless a unique situation is approved by the Planning 
Director. 

 
(9) Tree Protection Plan Requirements 

(i) An applicant for a single-family or two-family preliminary plat or final plat, or 
a site development permit shall provide a tree survey prepared within five 
years preceding the application date.  This tree survey shall include the 
street and lot layout, or site plan superimposed at a scale of 1”=100’ (or as 
appropriate) identifying significant trees located on the property that meet 
the requirements indicated in this section.  Applicants for a single-family or 
two-family preliminary or final plat are only required to submit a tree survey 
for the portion of the property that the applicant is proposing to disturb with 
the subdivision construction.  The applicant shall provide a tree preservation 
plan that identifies the surveyed trees and the mitigation of the protected 
trees that are proposed for removal.  The applicant shall be required to 
demonstrate that lot lines, street layouts and site improvements have been 
designed and located and that lot width, depth and size flexibility as 
permitted by the applicable zoning district has been utilized to the maximum 
extent necessary to retain the maximum number of significant trees 
reasonably practicable.  Applicants for a single-family or two-family 
preliminary or final plat may plant replacement trees within lots owned by 
the Homeowners Association including but not limited to landscape lots, park 
lots, or amenity center lots. 

(ii) The Director of Planning shall determine if adequate performance is achieved 
based on the standards of this section.  Approval of the tree protection 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  5 



preservation plan by the Director of Planning is required prior to preparation 
and submission of a subdivision or site development permit application.  The 
applicant may appeal any decision of the Director to the Commission.  A 
decision of the Commission may be appealed to the City Council.  Any 
preserved or replacement trees may be counted toward the landscape 
requirements of this section.  See the Construction Plan requirements for 
details. 

 

(d) Screening Requirements. 
(1) In addition to the landscaping requirements of this section, all development other 

than single-family or two-family shall comply with the following screening 
requirements:  
(i) The following shall be screened from the view of at least sixty percent (60%) 

of adjacent single-family or two-family residences and any street or public 
right-of-way:  off-street parking areas, loading spaces and docks, trash and 
storage containers, outside storage areas, satellite dishes larger than 
eighteen (18) inches in diameter, antennas, mechanical equipment, and 
metal siding.   

(ii) Above ground utility facilities up to six (6) feet above grade for multi-family 
and non-residential development are required to be screened from view 
except for poles, fire hydrants and existing lines.   

(iii) Detention Facilities including detention ponds and/or water quality ponds 
shall be screened from view. 

(iv) Screening by vegetation that could be removed from adjacent undeveloped 
or partially developed properties when such property is developed is not 
considered as screening from view.   

(v) Outside storage areas shall be screened by the use of a privacy fence or wall 
at least the height of the items to be screened and in conformance with the 
requirements of this ordinance.  If the outdoor storage area is adjacent to an 
arterial or collector roadway, then the wall is required to be constructed of 
one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco 
(limited to thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), factory 
tinted (not painted) split face concrete masonry unit, or other similar 
material approved by the Director of Planning.  In addition to the materials 
listed above, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. Woodcrete) is also permitted 
with the wall is adjacent to collectors. 

(vi) A minimum five-foot (5') landscaped area located on the exterior of the 
fence shall be provided and landscaped in accordance with paragraph (2) (i) 
above unless the fence is on a rear boundary line or adjoining a permanent 
structure on the site. 

(vii) Fuel pumps are required to be screened from view of any street or public 
right-of-way to at least the height of the fuel pump. 

(viii) Lift stations are required to be screened from view of adjacent single-family 
or two-family residences, or any street or public right-of-way by the use of a 
wall.  The wall is required to be constructed of one or more of the following 
materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco (limited to thirty-five (35%) of the 
exterior surface area of walls), factory tinted (not painted) split face concrete 
masonry unit, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. Woodcrete) or other similar 
material approved by the Director of Planning.   

(2) Approved screening techniques include privacy fences, evergreen vegetative 
screens, landscape berms, existing vegetation or any combination thereof unless 
otherwise noted in this section.. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  6 



(3) Privacy Fences (See section 14 and 16 of this Article) 
(4) Evergreen Vegetative Screens. Evergreen plant materials shall be shrubs, at least 

thirty (30) inches in height and at a minimum spacing of 48 inches at the time of 
installation, in combination with shade trees not more than fifty feet apart. 

(5) Landscape Berms, in combination with trees, shall fulfill the screening 
requirements of this section if the berms are at least three (3) feet in height and 
have maximum side slopes of four (4) feet of horizontal run for every one (1) foot 
in vertical rise. 

(6) Existing on-site vegetation, demonstrating significant visual screening capabilities 
and as approved by the Director of Planning, shall fulfill the requirements of this 
section. 

 

SECTION 3:  OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
(a) The following off-street parking requirements are considered minimum requirements 

and may not adequately reflect the specific needs of a proposed business.  A 
commercial building permit applicant shall analyze the parking needs of the specific 
users being proposed and provide the amount of parking required for such uses.  When 
any building or structure is erected, or an existing building is enlarged by fifty (50) 
percent or more in floor area, off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with 
the following requirements (Note: Any building enlargement is required to add at least 
the amount of additional parking required by the enlargement):  
 

USE CATEGORY SPECIFIC USE SPACE REQUIREMENT 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

Household Living 

Single Family See Use District 

Multi-Family 1 ½ for one bedroom plus ½ for each 
additional bedroom. 

Senior Multi-Family 1 per dwelling plus additional 5% of total 
spaces for visitor use. 

Group Living 

Fraternity House, 
Sorority House, 
Dormitory,  Rooming 
House, Boarding House 

1 per each two beds 

Nursing Home/Hospice/ 
Assisted Living 1 per bedroom 

All other Group Homes 1 per bedroom 

 Family Home and Group 
Home-Class 1 

not less than four (4) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per 
bedroom, whichever is greater. 

 Group Home-Class 2 & 
Group Home-Class 3 

not less than six (6) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per 
bedroom, whichever is greater 

CIVIC USES 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  7 



Educational & 
Daycare Facilities 

Elementary Schools greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 
2:classroom 

Secondary Schools, 
colleges 

greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 
10:classroom 

Day Care Center 1:400 sq. ft. 

Medical & 
Institutional Facilities 

Hospital, Sanitarium, 
Convalescent Home 1:4 beds 

All other institutions 1:250 sq. ft. 

Parks & Open Areas Golf Courses 3:hole 

 Neighborhood Amenity 
Center 

1:300 sq. ft. (including pools in square 
footage calculation) 

Places of Worship Religious Assembly 1:200 square feet of sanctuary, 
classrooms, flexible seating areas 

COMMERCIAL USES 

Automotive Sales & 
Services 

Motor Vehicle 
Salesrooms & Used Car 
Lots 

greater of 1:800 sq. ft. of sales floor or 
lot area 

Vehicle Repair Garage 1:400 sq. ft. 

Overnight 
Accommodations 

Hotel, Motel 1 per room plus 1:200 sq. ft. of Comm. 
Floor Area 

Bed & Breakfast/Inn 1 per guest room plus 2 additional 
spaces 

Food & Beverage 
Establishments 

Restaurant as a single 
use or comprising more 
than 20% of a mixed 
retail center 

1:100 sq. ft. 

Entertainment & 
Recreation 

Dance / Assembly / 
Exhibition Hall, 
Restaurant, Night Club, 
Lodge or Country Club 

1:100 sq. ft. 

Bowling Alleys 5:lane alley 

Community Center, 
Library, Museum, Art 
Gallery 

1:300 sq. ft. 

Theater, Auditorium 
(except school), Sports 
Arena, Stadium, 
Gymnasium, Funeral 
Home 

1:4 seats 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  8 



Commercial Office, 
Retail Sales, & 

Services 

Medical / Dental Clinic/ 
Office, Personal Service, 
Mixed Use Retail Center 
less than 20,000 sq. ft. 

1:200 sq. ft. 

Mixed Use Retail greater 
than 20,000 sq. ft. 1:225 sq. ft. 

Studio, Bank, Retail 1:250 sq. ft. 

Business / Professional 
Office 1:275 sq. ft. 

Furniture, Appliance or 
Hardware Store; 
Wholesale Sales 
Establishment, 
Machinery / Equipment 
Sales & Service; 
Clothing / Shoe Repair; 
Service Shop 

1:300 sq. ft. 

INDUSTRIAL USES 

Industrial, 
Manufacturing, 
Warehousing, 

Storage 

Manufacturing, 
Industrial, Research, 
Testing, Warehouse, 
Storage Buildings and 
Yards, Lumber Yard, 
Printing Shop, Plumbing 
Shop 

1:600 plus spaces for business vehicles 

Mini-Warehouse Self 
Storage parking required only for office 

 Church, Theater, 
Auditorium (except 
school), Sports Arena, 
Stadium, Gymnasium, 
Funeral Home 

1:4 seats 

 Hotel, Motel 1 per room plus 1:200 sq. ft. of Comm. 
Floor Area 

 Furniture, Appliance or 
Hardware Store; 
Wholesale Sales 
Establishment, 
Machinery / Equipment 
Sales & Service; 
Clothing / Shoe Repair; 
Service Shop, 
Community Center, 

1:300 sq. ft. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  9 



Library, Museum, Art 
Gallery 

 Hospital, Sanitarium, 
Convalescent Home 1:4 beds 

 Dance / Assembly / 
Exhibition Hall, 
Restaurant, Night Club, 
Lodge or Country Club 

1:100 sq. ft. 

 Motor Vehicle 
Salesrooms & Used Car 
Lots 

greater of 1:800 sq. ft. of sales floor or 
lot area 

 Vehicle Repair Garage 1:400 sq. ft. 

 Mini-Warehouse Self 
Storage parking required only for office 

 Golf Courses 3:hole 

 Bowling Alleys 5:alley 

 
Elementary Schools greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 

2:classroom 
 Secondary Schools, 

colleges 
greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 
10:classroom 

 
Family Home and Group 
Home-Class 1 

not less than four (4) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per 
bedroom, whichever is greater. 

 
Group Home-Class 2 & 
Group Home-Class 3 

not less than six (6) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per 
bedroom, whichever is greater 

 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  10 



In a development with mixed-use buildings designed and built in a walkable and pedestrian 
friendly configuration, the Planning Director may consider the following shared parking 
factors in reviewing a proposal for a reduction in the minimum parking requirements (the 
shared parking factor is applied to the sum of the individual uses minimum parking 
requirements): 
 

Shared Parking Factor 

 Residential Lodging Office Retail 
Residential 100% — — — 

Lodging 90% 100% — — 
Office 70% 60% 100% — 
Retail 80% 75% 80% 100% 

 
For uses not listed, the Planning Director may request additional parking demand analysis 
from the applicant to justify a reduction in the minimum parking requirements. 
 
Where shared parking is provided, a shared parking and cross access agreement between 
the cooperating property owners shall be approved by the Planning Director and recorded 
prior to issuance of a building permit. This agreement must be recorded in the real property 
records of the county in which the property sits and the agreement may not be modified or 
revoked without the approval of the Planning Director. If any requirements for shared 
parking are violated, the affected property owners must provide a remedy satisfactory to 
the Planning Director or provide the full amount of required parking for each individual use. 
 
  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  11 



SECTION 6:  SETBACKS 
(a) Building / Structure and Site Improvements: 

BUILDING / STRUCTURE 

 Use 
Component 

Architectural 
Component Front Side Street Side Rear 

Standard Setback 

SFR  25' 7' 15' 15' 

SFE, SFS, 
SFU, 

SFU/MH, TF 
  20' 5' 15' 15' 

SFC, SFL  2015'* 
5' or 
0’ & 
10’ 

15' 150' 

SFT   105'* 0 or 
10' 15' 150' 

MF 
Type A 20' 10' 20' 20' 
Type B 25' 10' 25' 20' 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type A, B 15' 10' 15' 10' 
Type C 20' 10' 20' 10' 

GC, HC, HI Type D 25' 15' 25' 15' 

Special Setback 
Where Adjacent to 

SFR, SFE, SFS, 
SFU, SFC, SFL, 
SFU/MH, TF** 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type A (NA) 20' (N/A) 20' 
Type B (NA) 25' (N/A) 25' 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type C (NA) 30' (N/A) 30' 

GC, HC, HI Type D (NA) 50' (N/A) 50' 

Garage Setback 

SFR, SFE, 
SFS, SFU, 
SFU/MH. 
SFC. SFL, 
SFT, TF 

 See Article VIII, Section 5 (i) 

       

PARKING, AISLE, LOADING, CANOPIES, OUTDOOR DISPLAY 

 Use 
Component 

Site 
Component Front Side Street 

Side Rear 

Standard Setback 

MF All 20' 5'**** 20' 5'**** 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 1, 2 15' 5'**** 15' 5'**** 
Type 3 20' 5'**** 20' 5'**** 

Type 4, 5 25' 5'**** 25' 5'**** 
Special Setback 

Where Adjacent to 
SF or TF** 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type 1-3 (N/A) 15' (N/A) 15' 

Type 4, 5 (N/A) 20' (N/A) 20' 
       

OUTDOOR STORAGE 

 
Use 

Component 
Site 

Component Front Side Street 
Side Rear 

Standard Setback LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 3-4 *** 5'**** *** 0' 
Type 5 25' 0'**** 25' 0' 

Special Setback  
Where Adjacent to 

SF or TF** 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type 3-5 (N/A) 25' (N/A) 25' 

*  In no case shall the garage be closer to the ROW than 18’ 
** Unless such district is utilized for a non-residential use 
***  No closer than the street facing wall of the primary structure that utilizes such storage. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  12 



SFC, SFL - BUILDING SETBACK 

HOUSE 

GARAGE 

1520’ HOUSE  
FRONT 

SETBACK 

5’ O
R 0

 AN
D 1

0’ S
IDE

 SE
TBA

CK
 

150’ REAR 
PATIO 

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

HOUSE 

PORCH 

15’
 HO

US
E  

STR
EET

 SID
E  

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 
STRUCTURE SETBACK 

LOT LINES STREET 

STR
EET

 

FIGURE I 
**** Setback does not apply for parking, drive aisles, storage etc. that are intended to cross lot line. 

  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  13 



SFT BUILDING - SETBACK 

TOWNHOUSE 

GARAGE 

105’ HOUSE  
FRONT 

SETBACK 

150’ REAR 

 
PATIO 

7’ GARAGE & PATIO  
ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

TOWNHOUSE 

PORCH 

15’
 HO

US
E  

STR
EET

 SID
E 

SET
BA

CK
 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 

  

LOT LINES STREET 

STR
EET

 

ALLEY 

PARKING 

0 O
R 1

0’ S
IDE

 SE
TBA

CK
 

TOWN- 
HOUSE 

3’ SEPARATION 

FIGURE J 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  14 



SECTION 7:  DRAINAGE AND DETENTION FACILITIES 
(a) Purpose. 

The purpose of this section is to provide for the design of drainage and detention facilities 
that contribute to visual aesthetics of projects and limit the amounts of visible concrete that 
do not meet the requirements listed below.  For the purposes of this section, visible shall be 
defined as noticeable by a person of average height walking on a street, sidewalk, or trail, 
or able to be seen by a neighboring property that is two stories in height. 
 

(b) Non-Residential and Multi-Family Drainage and Detention Facilities: 
(1) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities include all detention ponds, water 

quality ponds, pond outlet structures, berms, improved channels or other 
improvements associated with the drainage improvements.  Roadside swales, storm 
sewer outfalls unless visible from a ROW, inlets, and areas of concrete that are no more 
than one hundred (100) square feet in size are not included. 

(2) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities are not allowed within ten feet (10’) 
of street ROW except those which are necessary to convey drainage in the shortest 
possible route to or from street ROW. 

(3) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities located within the front setback shall 
not exceed 25% of the area of the front setback. 

(4) Any fencing around non-residential and multi-family detention ponds shall be 
constructed of wrought iron or decorative tubular metal or other similar product. 

(5) Structural stabilization including vertical walls and riprap for non-residential and multi-
family drainage facilities shall be limited to not more than thirty (30%) percent of the 
perimeter of the pond excluding outlet structures.  The remainder of the perimeter shall 
be earthern embankment no steeper than 3:1 slope.  All exposed concrete that is 
visible is required to be clad in stone provide decorative textured concrete and tinting in 
earthern colors, or masonry veneer including but not limited to ledgestone, fieldstone, 
or cast stone, or other decorative materials as approved by the Director of Planning.   
All other exposed concrete is required to be clad in stone as listed above or textured 
and tinted in earthern colors.  In the event that the drainage facility is below grade, 
structural stabilization is permitted for the full perimeter and screening requirements 
listed in Article VI, Section 1 (d) of this Ordinance shall apply. 

(c) Residential Drainage and Detention Facilities: 
(1) Residential drainage facilities include all detention ponds, water quality ponds, pond 

outlet structures, berms, improved channels or other improvements associated with the 
drainage improvements. Roadside swales, storm sewer outfalls unless visible from a 
ROW, inlets, and areas of concrete that are no more than one hundred (100) square 
feet in size are not included. 

(2) Residential drainage facilities shall utilize earthern berms and be designed with a curvi-
linear shape.  Any structural stabilization with slopes steeper than 3:1 shall be limited 
to the use of native stone (except for outlet structures which can be concrete) and shall 
be limited to not more than thirty (30%) percent of the perimeter of the pond.  Such 
ponds shall be seamlessly integrated with the landscaping.  All exposed concrete that is 
visible is required to be clad in stone provide decorative textured concrete and tinting in 
earthern colors, or masonry veneer including but not limited to ledgestone, fieldstone, 
or cast stone, or other decorative materials as approved by the Director of Planning.  All 
other exposed concrete is required to be clad in stone as listed above or textured and 
tinted in earthern colors.  In the event that the drainage facility is below grade, 
concrete is permitted instead of native stone and screening requirements Article VI, 
Sec. 1 (d) of this Ordinance shall apply. 

(3) Any fencing around residential detention ponds shall be constructed of wrought iron or 
decorative tubular metal or other similar product. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  15 



SECTION 8:  SINGLE-FAMILY AND TWO-FAMILY LOTS ABUTTING OR ADJACENT TO 
TOLLWAY, HIGHWAY, OR ARTERIAL, OR COLLECTOR ROADWAY  
For single-family and two-family lots contained within a subdivision receiving approval for a 
preliminary plat and final plat or a short form plat after the effective date of this ordinance and 
abutting or adjacent to a tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways as identified on the 
Leander Transportation Plan or based on roadway design, direct driveway access to any single-
family or two-family lot from such roadway shall be prohibited.   The following are also 
applicable: 

 
(b) For lots adjacent to tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways and backing up to such 

roadway (having frontage on another roadway of a lesser classification), the following shall 
be provided (see Figure Q – following pages):   
(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line between 

the landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots.  The fence is required to be 
constructed of one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, 
stucco, factory tinted (not painted) split-faced concrete masonry unit, or other 
similar material approved by the Director of Planning.  In addition to the materials 
listed above, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. WoodCrete) is also permitted when the 
privacy fence is adjacent to collectors. All columns are required to have concrete 
footings.  The landscape lot is required to be maintained by a private association. 

 
(c) For lots adjacent to tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways and having a side of the 

lot adjacent to such roadway (having frontage on another roadway of a lesser classification), 
the following shall be provided (see Figure Q – next page): 
(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line between 

the landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots from the rear lot line to a 
point even with the rear wall of the house at a minimum, but no further than to a point 
even with the front wall of the house.  Any fence closer to the front lot line than the 
front wall of the house shall not exceed three feet in height; however, such fence is 
not required.  Such fence is required to be constructed of one or more of the 
following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco, factory tinted (not painted) 
split-faced concrete masonry unit, or other similar material approved by the Director 
of Planning.  In addition to the materials listed above, textured pre-cast concrete 
(e.g. WoodCrete) is also permitted when the privacy fence is adjacent to collectors.  
All columns are required to have concrete footings.  The landscape lot is required to 
be maintained by a private association. 

 
SECTION 12:  OUTDOOR LIGHTING 
(a) The purpose of this section is to provide design standards for site and building lighting 

that are Dark Sky compliant and compatible with adjacent uses. 
(b) Non-residential outdoor lighting will be in accordance with other provisions of this 

ordinance and City building codes. A detailed Llighting Pplan and photometric plan shall 
be included with the Building Permit application and shall meet the following 
requirements:. 
(1)  Outdoor Lighting 

a. Fixture. 
i. All permanent exterior lighting shall be non-flashing and shielded such 

that the light source (cone of direct light) is not visible from the public 
ROW or adjacent residential uses at the property line (see Figure R – 
following page).   

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  16 



i.ii. Wall pack lighting or other lighting that directs the light in a horizontal 
direction without an adequate shield is not permitted (since it directs 
the light glare directly outward) if there are streets or residential uses in 
the direction of the light. 

b. Illumination Levels 
ii.i. All site lighting shall be designed and installed so that the level of 

illumination as measured in foot candles at a height of three (3’) feet 
at the property line does not exceed two (2’) foot candles. 

(a)(c) Residential outdoor lighting on residential property will be installed in accordance 
with applicable City Code Standards. It will be located so as not to create a nuisance for 
adjoining property owners. 

(b)(d) All permanent exterior lighting shall be non-flashing and shielded such that the light 
source (cone of direct light) is not visible from the public ROW or adjacent residential 
uses at the property line (see Figure R – following page).  Wall pack lighting or other 
lighting that directs the light in a horizontal direction without an adequate shield is not 
permitted (since it directs the light glare directly outward) if there are streets or 
residential uses in the direction of the light. 

 
SECTION 14:   ADDITIONAL MULTI-FAMILY AND NON-RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS  

(d)   Masonry Privacy Wall 
(1) A six-foot masonry privacy wall is required to be constructed by any non-residential 

use that abuts property utilized for a single-family or two-family residence on land 
zoned single-family or two-family, or land planned or platted for such with an 
approved concept plan, preliminary plat or final plat, unless an existing structure is 
proposed to be expanded by less than 50%, or 1,000 sq. ft., whichever is less.   
(i) Such wall shall be constructed at the common property line between the uses, 

or if such location is not feasible because of floodplain, trees or other natural 
feature, at a location that will effectively screen the non-residential use from 
view from the single-family or two-family residence.   

(ii) Such wall is required to be constructed of one or more of the following 
materials:  textured pre-cast concrete that is constructed to appear as brick, 
stone, or cast stone as approved by the Director of Planning, brick, stone, cast 
stone, stucco, factory tinted or painted split-faced concrete masonry unit, 
granite, tile or other similar material approved by the Director of Planning.   

(iii) An eight-foot wall may be utilized for security purposes.  
(iv) Gates shall be provided in the wall as appropriate to connect to public 

sidewalks or other pedestrian connections unless such wall is also used as 
described above for security.  

(2) The masonry privacy wall is not required for non-residential uses that are permitted by 
right in any Single-Family Districts. 

 

SECTION 16:  FENCES 
(d) Fences less than or equal to eight (8) feet in height shall be allowed for impeding 

access to hazardous or secured facilities including, but not limited to, electrical 
substations and chemical or equipment storage yards; or where , because of severe 
slope conditions, such fencing height can be demonstrated to be necessary for privacy 
or visual buffering; or where the fence forms a perimeter around a subdivision.  For 
high security applications, barbed wire or razor wire (or equivalent) may be installed 
above the eight (8) foot height limit but not to exceed a total of ten feet in height. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  17 



ARTICLE VII – ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS 

SECTION 1:  TYPE A 
(b) Exterior Wall Standards: 

(1) At least eighty-five percent (85%) of the exterior surface area of all walls, including all 
stories of primary buildings / structures, shall consist of un-painted clay brick, ledge 
stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, tile, painted or tinted stucco (limited to 
thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), non-reflective glass façade, 
glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. Kalwall) and factory tinted (not painted) split 
faced concrete masonry unit (non-residential buildings and structures only) or similar 
material approved by the Director of Planning.  The remaining exterior wall surface 
shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-fiber planking (not panels 
unless they are used with board and batten application).  Solid wood planking and 
decorative cementious-fiber panels may be used for accent features. 

SECTION 2:  TYPE B 
(b) Exterior Wall Standards: 

(1) At least eighty-five (85%) percent of the exterior surface area of first story walls and 
fifty percent (50%) percent of the exterior surface area of each additional story walls of 
the exterior surface area (all stories) and at least eighty-five percent (85%) of the 
exterior surface area of first story walls of primary buildings / structures, shall consist of 
un-painted clay brick, ledge stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, tile, painted 
or tinted stucco (limited to thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), glass 
façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. Kalwall) and factory tinted (not painted) 
split faced concrete masonry unit (non-residential buildings and structures only) or 
similar material approved by the Director of Planning.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-fiber planking (not 
panels unless they are used with a board and batten application).  Solid wood planking, 
decorative cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by the Director of 
Planning may be used for accent features. 

SECTION 3:  TYPE C  
(b) Exterior Wall Standards: 

(1) At least sixty (60%) percent of the exterior surface area of street facing walls (See 
Figures U, V, and W – following pages) of primary buildings and thirty five percent 
(35%) percent of the exterior surface area of all other walls (all stories), including at 
least sixty percent (60%) of the exterior surface area of street facing walls (all stories) 
(see Figures U, V and W – following pages) of primary buildings / structures shall 
consist of un-painted clay brick, ledge stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, 
tile, painted or tinted stucco, glass façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. 
Kalwall) and, for non-residential buildings and structures, factory tinted (not painted) 
split faced concrete masonry unit, pre-cast concrete tilt wall with a decorative or 
textured finish (needs approval by the Director of Planning to determine if finish is 
acceptable) or similar material approved by the Director of Planning. The remaining 
exterior wall surface shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-fiber 
planking (not panels unless they are used with a board and batten application) or, for 
non-residential applications only, exterior insulating finishing system (E.I.F.S.).  Solid 
wood planking, decorative cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by 
the Director of Planning may be used for accent features.  For non-residential buildings, 
smooth faced concrete masonry unit and metal panels or similar materials approved by 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  18 



the Director of Planning may be utilized as an accent feature and shall comprise not 
more than ten percent (10%) of any wall surface area. 

SECTION 4:  TYPE D  
(b) Exterior Wall Standards: 

(1) For all buildings / structures that are more than four hundred (400’) feet from a street, 
the masonry requirements do not apply.  For all buildings / structures that are within 
four hundred (400’) feet of a street at least sixty (60%) percent of the exterior surface 
area of street facing walls (See Figures U, V, and W – following pages) of primary 
buildings and thirty five (35%) percent of the exterior surface area of all other walls 
Unless there are no street facing walls, at least thirty five percent (35%) of the exterior 
surface area of walls (all stories), including at least sixty percent (60%) of the exterior 
surface area of street facing walls (all stories) (see Figures S, T and U – previous 
pages) of primary buildings / structures shall consist of un-painted brick, ledge stone, 
fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, tile, painted or tinted stucco, exterior insulating 
finishing system (E.I.F.S.), glass façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. 
Kalwall), factory tinted (not painted) split faced concrete masonry unit, pre-cast 
concrete tilt wall with a decorative or textured finish or similar material approved by the 
Director of Planning. The remaining exterior wall surfaces shall be comprised of those 
materials listed or cementious-fiber planking or panels, or painted metal siding except 
that metal siding is not permitted on any street facing wall.  Solid wood planking, 
decorative cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by the Director of 
Planning may be used for accent features.  Smooth faced concrete masonry unit and 
metal panels or similar materials approved by the Director of Planning may be utilized 
as an accent feature only and shall not comprise more than fifteen percent (15%) of 
any wall surface area. 

 
  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  19 



ARTICLE VIII - ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 
 

SECTION 1:  WALL AREA CALCULATIONS 
(a) In calculating percentage of exterior wall area, the area of windows and window frames, 

doors and door frames, eves, soffits, dormers, columns, recessed entryways, foundation 
and similar areas are excluded from the calculations and may utilize any of the materials 
listed in the applicable component exterior wall standards, when, in the opinion of the 
Building Official, construction with the required masonry materials is not reasonably feasible. 

(b) A street facing wall is the exterior wall of a building, including any off-sets, projections or 
recesses, facing a street or within forty-five (45) degrees of such orientation and within 
four hundred (400) feet of the street.  A wall is considered facing a street even if there is 
another public ROW between the wall and the street.  A wall is not considered facing a 
street if another building or other permanent screening material on site is between the 
wall and the street and blocks the view of the wall from the street by at least seventy-
five percent (75%) from all view angles.  Five year projected maturity of any on-site 
evergreen planted materials may be considered in the screening assessment. 

(c) A masonry calculation table is required at the building permit stage to demonstrate 
compliance with the ordinance requirements. 

 
ARTICLE IX – SITE DEVELOPMENT 

SECTION 1:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
(b) Applicability; Site Development Permit Required 

Any person who develops, or causes to be developed, property located within the 
corporate limits of the City shall comply with this Chapter.  Within the city corporate 
limits the use of property shall not be changed, no development shall take place and no 
building permit shall be issued until a site development permit has been issued in 
accordance with the code of ordinances of the City.   Property for which a site 
development permit has been issued shall be developed in compliance with the 
approved site plan.   The following are exceptions to the applicability of this Chapter: 
(1) Construction, alteration or addition to a single-family or two family residential 

structure, or an accessory building to any such structure. 
(2) Alteration or finish-out of an existing building when the alteration or finish-out does 

not increase the square footage of the building or change the building footprint as 
long as one of the following applies: 
(i) The use does not change, or if the use changes, the new use does not 

require more parking than is currently existing and no additional parking 
spaces, aisles or driveways are proposed; 

(ii) The alteration, finish-out or change of use is in compliance with all applicable 
codes and regulations of the city; and  

(iii) The proposal does not increase the degree of any existing non-conforming 
use or non-conforming structure. 

(3) Construction of a fence, but no exception is granted by this subsection for 
construction of a retaining wall or for a fence that may obstruct or change the flow 
of water. 

(4) Brush clearing in compliance with the landscape and tree regulations of the city as 
long as only rubber-tired equipment is introduced to the site (no equipment with 
tracks). 
 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  20 



(e) Minor Site Development Permit 
(1) Projects that include minor site activity similar to those listed in Section 1(b) and 

including brush clearing, Article IX of this ordinance may be eligible for a minor site 
development permit.  To be eligible, such projects may increase the impervious 
cover by no more than 1,000 square feet.  In addition, a minor site development 
permit application shall be submitted for review in conformance with all information 
and materials required by the most recent minor site development permit 
application/checklist. 

(2) A professional recovery fee as set forth in Appendix A shall be required at the time 
of site development permit exemption application submittal. 

 

ARTICLE X – ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION 10:  ENFORCEMENT 
(a) Penalty 

(1) Penalty.  Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this ordinance, or 
shall fail to comply therewith, or with any of the requirements thereof, within the 
City limits shall be deemed guilty of an offense and shall be liable for a fine not to 
exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($2000.00). Each day the violation exists 
shall constitute a separate offense. Such penalty shall be in addition to all the other 
remedies provided herein 

(2) Administrative Penalty.  Any person who removes a Significant Tree greater than 8 
inches in caliper prior to approval of a tree protection preservation plan, or who 
removes a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper that is not authorized to 
be removed under an approved tree protection preservation plan shall be charged 
and shall pay a fee of $300 per inch for each Significant Tree greater than 8 inches 
in caliper removed in violation of this ordinance.  The City will rely on remaining 
evidence on site to determine if a violation of this ordinance has occurred.  For 
enforcement purposes the City will consider that any stump remaining on the 
property which is eight inches or more in diameter measured at ground level or 
higher was a stump of a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper.  
Furthermore, any cut wood discovered on site will be considered evidence of a 
Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper if the diameter of the cut wood is 
measured at eight inches or greater at any point on any piece of cut wood.  A site 
development or building permit application for property from which one or more 
Significant Trees have been removed in violation of this ordinance may not be 
approved until an administrative 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  21 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AMENDING 

SECTIONS OF ARTICLE 14.02, THE COMPOSITE ZONING 
ORDINANCE, TO ADD DEFINITIONS, UPDATE THE USE 
COMPONENTS, TO MODIFY SETBACKS FOR COMMERCIAL 
FUELING, TO UPDATE REQUIREMENTS FOR SCREENING, TO 
UPDATE THE PARKING REQUIREMENTS TABLE, TO MODIFY 
RESIDENTIAL SETBACKS, TO CLARIFY REQUIREMENTS FOR 
DRAINAGE AND DETENTION FACILITIES, TO MODIFY OUTDOOR 
LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS, TO UPDATE THE ARCHITECTURAL 
STANDARDS, TO UPDATE THE SITE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, PROVIDING SAVINGS, 
EFFECTIVE DATE AND OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES, AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 Whereas, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
amendments to Section 14.02.001, Article 14.02, Chapter 14, Leander Code of Ordinances (the 
“Composite Zoning Ordinance”), and forwarded its recommendation on the amendments to the City 
Council; and 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has considered the proposed amendments and 
finds that the amendments are reasonable and necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of 
the present and future residents of the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings of Fact. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.  
 
 
Section 2. Amendment of Article I, Section 6.  Article I, Section 6 of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance is hereby amended to add the following definitions: 
 

Dark Sky means the use of lighting in a way that directs the light source away from the 
sky in order for the night sky to remain relatively free of interference from artificial light.  
This type of lighting is in compliance with the International Dark Sky Association 
standards. 
 
Gaming Room Facility means a place to deal, operate, carry on, conduct, maintain, or 
expose for play any game, sports book, promotion, sweepstakes, or other activity 
electronic or otherwise that may or may not confer upon the patrons or participants the 
right, chance, or ability to win and or claim prizes.   
 
Gaming Device means a clock, tape machine, slot machine, or other machine or device 
for the reception of money or other thing of value on chance or skill or upon action of 



 -2- 

which money or other thing of value is staked, hazarded, bet, won, or lost; or any 
mechanism, furniture, fixture, equipment or other device designed primarily for use in a 
gambling place.  It does not include: (1) A coin-in-slot-operated mechanical device 
played for amusement that rewards the player with the right to replay such mechanical 
device; or (2) Vending machines by which full and adequate return is made for the 
money invested and in which there is no element of chance or hazard. 
 
 
Soil means the upper layer of the earth in which plants grow and contains humus, 
minerals, available nutrients, and beneficial micro-organisms, resulting in a favorable 
condition for vegetative growth. 

 
 
Section 3. Amendment of Article I, Section 6.  The definitions of “Lot Width” and “Riparian 
Corridor” set forth in Article I, Section 6 of the Composite Zoning Ordinance are hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 

Lot Width means the average horizontal distance between side property or lot lines.  Lot 
width can also be identified as the measurement of the lot at the building setback line.  
The minimum lot width for lots fronting a cul-de-sac may be reduced to a minimum of 
thirty (30’) feet at the front property line provided that the minimum required lot width is 
provided at the front setback line. 

 
Riparian Corridor means any defined stream channel including the area up to the 
ordinary high water (or bankfull-flow line), as well as all riparian (streamside) vegetation 
in contiguous adjacent uplands.  Riparian Corridors also includes the Secondary and 
Connector Trail Corridors identified in the City of Leander Parks, Recreation & Open 
Space Master Plan and the Transportation Plan. 

 
 
Section 4. Amendment to Article III, Section 1 (b).  Article III, Section 1(b) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(b) Conforming Uses 
(1) Single-family dwelling of not less than sixteen hundred (1,600) square feet of living 

area; accessory dwelling with a minimum living area of four hundred (400) square 
feet; and a maximum living area of nine hundred (900) square feet or 40% of the gross 
living area of the primary dwelling, whichever is greater.  However, for lots greater 
than three acres in size, there is no limit to the maximum size of the accessory 
dwelling. 

(2) Community services including community center, civic organizations, fraternal 
organizations, and cemetery / mausoleum not including a crematory or embalming 
facilities  

(3) Golf courses (public and private) and all associated improvements and activities, but 
not including miniature golf courses, golf practice ranges (unless associated with a 
golf course), or similar forms of commercial amusement 

 



 -3- 

(4) Day care (in home) for 5 or fewer children 
(5) Emergency services including fire, police and EMS stations 
(6) Family Home and Group Home-Class 1 
(7) Home occupations (see Article IV, Section 8 for Use Standards) 
(8) Parks, playgrounds and associated equipment and facilities, recreational amenity 

center 
(9) Place of worship  
(10) Public buildings, including libraries, museums and administrative offices  
(11) Real estate sales offices during the development and sale of a residential subdivision 

and subject to the restrictions contained in this ordinance 
(12) Schools, public or private, including all levels up to and including secondary 

(high) school and equivalent curriculum including support facilities are permitted 
(13) Temporary buildings incidental to construction work on the premises if such buildings 

are removed upon the completion or abandonment of construction work (see Article 
IV, Sec. 7) 

(14) Utilities (minor) including ground mounted service equipment and minor structures 
and facilities such as poles, minor electrical switching facilities, lift stations, water 
pump stations and gas regulating facilities 

(15) Water supply reservoirs and pumping plants when screened from public view 
(16) Wireless communications facilities (WCFs) attached to street poles or facades 

attached to non-residential buildings or stealth WCFs are permitted subject to the 
provisions of this ordinance.  Freestanding WCFs, including lattice towers and mono-
poles, are prohibited. 

(17) (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding 
academies and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of 
agricultural livestock and exotic hoof stock; however, with exception of commercial 
feed lots which are not permitted, and the exception that not more than one large 
animal (e.g. a horse, cow, bull or similar animal) or five small animals (e.g. goats, 
sheep or similar animal) may be permitted for each acre of grazeable land.  Grazeable 
land shall be land that is fenced and maintained with suitable forage for grazing of the 
particular species.  Barns and stables shall not be located within 25 feet of any 
property line. (See Chap. 2, City Code for animal control regulations) 

(18) Agricultural, small wind energy systems, solar energy systems and rainwater 
harvesting systems including or similar to: 
(i) As accessory uses, solar energy systems designed to supply energy for use on 

the premises, and rainwater harvesting systems meeting the standards of 
Article IV, Sec. 5 of Article 14.200. In addition, if approved with a special 
use permit, small wind energy systems may be approved as an accessory use 
if meeting the standards of Article IV, Sec. 5 of Article 14.200. 

(ii) Hunting and/or hunting leases (for lots or tracts three or more acres in size). 

 



 -4- 

(iii) Farming or truck gardens, limited to the propagation and cultivation of 
plants.  

(19) Temporary parking associated with model homes and/or sales trailers prior to the 
completion of model homes.  Article IX of this ordinance will apply to temporary 
parking lots. 

(20) Other similar uses as determined by the Director of Planning [see Article II, Sec. 2, 
(f)]. 

 
 
Section 5. Amendment to Article III, Section 14 (b).  Article III, Section 14 (b) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(b) Conforming Uses 
(1) Any use permitted in the “GC” component 
(2) Bingo 
(3) Car Title Loans Shop/Business 
(4) Commercial laundry 
(5) Contractor and building material storage 
(6) Gaming Room Facility/Gaming Device 
(7) Hooka Lounge 
(8) Manufacture, assembly or processing of materials not classified as hazardous by the 

Fire Chief 
(9) Mini-warehouse or self-service storage facilities [required to be set back at least four 

hundred (400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial roadway if built to Type 
B, C or D architectural standards or such facilities include exterior warehouse doors], 
warehouse and distribution, commercial storage  

(10) Pawn Shop 
(11) Payday Lending Business 
(12) Research, Testing, and Development Laboratory 
(13) Research, Testing, and Development Laboratory (Intense) 
(14) Retail sales, second hand resale, and services 
(15) RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage [required to be set 

back at least four hundred (400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial 
roadway]  (Note:  refer to Article VI, Section 9 for rules on special vehicle storage) 

(16) Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor  
(17) Utilities, including ground mounted service equipment and structures as a primary use 

and facilities such as poles, electrical switching facilities, lift stations, water pump 
stations, gas regulating facilities, electrical substations, generating plants, wastewater 
and water treatment plants, etc. (see screening requirements in Article VI, Sec. 1) 

(18) Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop [Small engine 
repair shops and motorcycle repair shops shall not be permitted within one-hundred 
fifty (150’) feet of a residential district unless such repairs are conducted totally within 
a fully enclosed building.] 

(19) Warehouse and distribution 
(20) Wood yard  
(21) Wholesale activities 

 



 -5- 

(22) Wrecker Impoundment, Towing [required to be set back at least four hundred (400) 
feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial roadway] 

(23) Stand alone crematory or embalming establishment as long as the crematory stack is 
no closer than 200’ from a restaurant or associated parking or from a residential 
district (unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses). 

(24) Other similar uses as determined by the Director of Planning based on the criteria of 
Article II, Sec. 2, (f) 

 
 
Section 6. Amendment to Article III, Section 16 (d) (8).  Article III, Section 16 (d) (8) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(d) Rules Applicable 
(8) The PUD shall result in overall higher standards than what would be provided by 

the base zoning district.  As examples:  (1) if residential lot sizes are decreased or 
development densities are increased, the PUD will be expected to significantly 
exceed other standards such as parkland and facilities dedication, landscaping, 
architectural controls, thoroughfare or other transportation improvements, 
creation of unique characteristics of the neighborhood, retention of significant 
trees and/or provision of public facilities, etc., or (2) if masonry standards or 
building/development setbacks are proposed to be decreased, other standards 
would be expected to be increased such as landscaping, screening, retention of 
significant trees, architectural controls, land uses and/or unique site layout 
standards, etc.  Other examples may include:  
(i) Designating the Type A Architectural Component 
(ii) Adding additional architectural features 
(iii) Provide a master architectural and signage plan that includes a cohesive 

materials palette 
(iv) Enhanced landscaping and/or trees 
(v) Increased landscape area 
(vi) Masonry perimeter walls for subdivisions 
(vii) Provide brick or stone instead of decorative concrete panels for screening 

walls 
(viii) Plant street trees 
(ix) Provide more parkland dedication 
(x) Increase recreation improvements 
(xi) Trails system in greenbelt areas 
(xii) Provide a Master Sign Plan including: proposed locations, provide cohesive 

materials palette, design specifications for signage, type of illumination 
(xiii) Limit fencing to wrought iron or decorative tubular metal fencing along 

greenbelt lots. 
(xiv) Provide unique characteristics of a neighborhood with a unique site layout 
(xv) Include a mixture of uses 
(xvi) Provide public spaces 
(xvii) Incorporate public art 

 



 -6- 

 
 
Section 7. Amendment to Article V, Section 3 (b) (2) (v) (b).  Article V, Section 3 (b) (2) (v) 
(b) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

b. Commercial fueling is not located within two hundred (200’) feet of a residential 
district unless such district is utilized for non-residential purpose.  The location is 
measured from the closest portion of the structure associated with the outdoor 
commercial fueling to the residential district; and  
 
 

Section 8. Amendment to Article VI, Section 1 (c) (4) (iv).  Article VI, Section 1 (c) (4) (iv) 
of the Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(iv) Significant Trees greater than eight (8) inches in caliper shall be preserved to the 
greatest extent reasonably possible. Significant Trees removed during construction 
shall be supplanted with Replacement Trees if required by the tree mitigation 
requirements of this section.  No Significant Tree shall be removed until a tree 
preservation plan has been approved by the Director of Planning in accordance with 
this Chapter.  Significant Trees may be removed only in accordance with the approved 
tree preservation plan, and trees must be protected during construction activities on the 
property in accordance with the approved tree preservation plan.  This provision only 
applies to projects before the certificate of occupancy has been issued for single-family 
and two-family developments.  For single-family and two-family projects, this 
provision only applies prior to the initial certificate of occupancy for each lot. 

 
 
Section 9. Amendment to Article VI, Section 1 (c) (9) (i) & (ii).  Article VI, Section 1 (c) (9) 
(i) & (ii) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(9) Tree Protection Plan Requirements 
(i) An applicant for a single-family or two-family preliminary plat or final plat, or a 

site development permit shall provide a tree survey prepared within five years 
preceding the application date.  This tree survey shall include the street and lot 
layout, or site plan superimposed at a scale of 1”=100’ (or as appropriate) 
identifying significant trees located on the property that meet the requirements 
indicated in this section.  Applicants for a single-family or two-family 
preliminary or final plat are only required to submit a tree survey for the portion 
of the property that the applicant is proposing to disturb with the subdivision 
construction.  The applicant shall provide a tree preservation plan that identifies 
the surveyed trees and the mitigation of the protected trees that are proposed for 
removal.  The applicant shall be required to demonstrate that lot lines, street 
layouts and site improvements have been designed and located and that lot 
width, depth and size flexibility as permitted by the applicable zoning district has 
been utilized to the maximum extent necessary to retain the maximum number of 
significant trees reasonably practicable.  Applicants for a single-family or two-

 



 -7- 

family preliminary or final plat may plant replacement trees within lots owned by 
the Homeowners Association including but not limited to landscape lots, park 
lots, or amenity center lots. 

(ii) The Director of Planning shall determine if adequate performance is achieved 
based on the standards of this section.  Approval of the tree preservation plan by 
the Director of Planning is required prior to preparation and submission of a 
subdivision or site development permit application.  The applicant may appeal 
any decision of the Director to the Commission.  A decision of the Commission 
may be appealed to the City Council.  Any preserved or replacement trees may 
be counted toward the landscape requirements of this section.  See the 
Construction Plan requirements for details. 

 
 
Section 10. Amendment to Article VI, Section 1 (c) (8).  Article VI, Section 1 (c) (8) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(8) A non-disturbance zone shall be maintained on single-family and two-family lots 
during the subdivision construction and building permit phases of development.  A 
disturbance area no more than five (5’) feet from the foundation necessary for 
construction and grade transitions shall be permitted.  This disturbance area shall 
be no more than ten (10’) feet from the foundation for properties zoned with the 
SFR (Single-Family Rural) use component.  The trees located on the remainder of 
the lot shall not be removed unless a unique situation is approved by the Planning 
Director. 

 
 
Section 11. Amendment to Article VI, Section 1 (d) (1) (v).  Article VI, Section 1 (d) (1) (v) of 
the Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(v) Outside storage areas shall be screened by the use of a privacy fence or wall at 
least the height of the items to be screened and in conformance with the 
requirements of this ordinance.  If the outdoor storage area is adjacent to an arterial 
or collector roadway, then the wall is required to be constructed of one or more of 
the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco (limited to thirty-five 
(35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), factory tinted (not painted) split face 
concrete masonry unit, or other similar material approved by the Director of 
Planning.  In addition to the materials listed above, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. 
Woodcrete) is also permitted with the wall is adjacent to collectors. 

 
 
Section 12. Amendment to Article VI, Section 1 (d) (1) (viii).  Article VI, Section 1 (d) (1) of 
the Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by adding subsection (viii) to read as follows: 
 

(viii) Lift stations are required to be screened from view of adjacent single-family or 
two-family residences, or any street or public right-of-way by the use of a wall.  
The wall is required to be constructed of one or more of the following materials: 

 



 -8- 

brick, stone, cast stone, stucco (limited to thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface 
area of walls), factory tinted (not painted) split face concrete masonry unit, 
textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. Woodcrete) or other similar material approved by 
the Director of Planning.   

 
 
Section 13. Amendment to Article VI, Section 1 (d) (2).  Article VI, Section 1 (d) (2) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(2) Approved screening techniques include privacy fences, evergreen vegetative 
screens, landscape berms, existing vegetation or any combination thereof unless 
otherwise noted in this section. 

 
 
Section 14. Amendment to Article VI, Section 3 (a).  Article VI, Section 3(a) of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
SECTION 3:  OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
(a) The following off-street parking requirements are considered minimum requirements and 

may not adequately reflect the specific needs of a proposed business.  A commercial 
building permit applicant shall analyze the parking needs of the specific users being 
proposed and provide the amount of parking required for such uses.  When any building or 
structure is erected, or an existing building is enlarged by fifty (50) percent or more in floor 
area, off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with the following requirements 
(Note: Any building enlargement is required to add at least the amount of additional parking 
required by the enlargement):  
 

USE CATEGORY SPECIFIC USE SPACE REQUIREMENT 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

Household Living 

Single Family See Use District 

Multi-Family 1 ½ for one bedroom plus ½ for each 
additional bedroom. 

Senior Multi-Family 1 per dwelling plus additional 5% of total 
spaces for visitor use. 

Group Living 

Fraternity House, 
Sorority House, 
Dormitory,  Rooming 
House, Boarding House 

1 per each two beds 

Nursing Home/Hospice/ 
Assisted Living 1 per bedroom 

All other Group Homes 1 per bedroom 

 



 -9- 

 Family Home and Group 
Home-Class 1 

not less than four (4) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per bedroom, 
whichever is greater. 

 Group Home-Class 2 & 
Group Home-Class 3 

not less than six (6) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per bedroom, 
whichever is greater 

CIVIC USES 

Educational & 
Daycare Facilities 

Elementary Schools greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 
2:classroom 

Secondary Schools, 
colleges 

greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 
10:classroom 

Day Care Center 1:400 sq. ft. 

Medical & 
Institutional Facilities 

Hospital, Sanitarium 1:4 beds 

All other institutions 1:250 sq. ft. 

Parks & Open Areas Golf Courses 3:hole 

 Neighborhood Amenity 
Center 

1:300 sq. ft. (including pools in square 
footage calculation) 

Places of Worship Religious Assembly 1:200 square feet of sanctuary, classrooms, 
flexible seating areas 

COMMERCIAL USES 

Automotive Sales & 
Services 

Motor Vehicle 
Salesrooms & Used Car 
Lots 

greater of 1:800 sq. ft. of sales floor or lot 
area 

Vehicle Repair Garage 1:400 sq. ft. 

Overnight 
Accommodations 

Hotel, Motel 1 per room plus 1:200 sq. ft. of Comm. 
Floor Area 

Bed & Breakfast/Inn 1 per guest room plus 2 additional spaces 

Food & Beverage 
Establishments 

Restaurant as a single use 
or comprising more than 
20% of a mixed retail 
center 

1:100 sq. ft. 

Entertainment & 
Recreation 

Dance / Assembly / 
Exhibition Hall, 
Restaurant, Night Club, 
Lodge or Country Club 

1:100 sq. ft. 

Bowling Alleys 5:lane  

 



 -10- 

Community Center, 
Library, Museum, Art 
Gallery 

1:300 sq. ft. 

Theater, Auditorium 
(except school), Sports 
Arena, Stadium, 
Gymnasium, Funeral 
Home 

1:4 seats 

Commercial Office, 
Retail Sales, & 

Services 

Medical / Dental Clinic/ 
Office, Personal Service, 
Mixed Use Retail Center 
less than 20,000 sq. ft. 

1:200 sq. ft. 

Mixed Use Retail greater 
than 20,000 sq. ft. 1:225 sq. ft. 

Studio, Bank, Retail 1:250 sq. ft. 

Business / Professional 
Office 1:275 sq. ft. 

Furniture, Appliance or 
Hardware Store; 
Wholesale Sales 
Establishment, 
Machinery / Equipment 
Sales & Service; Clothing 
/ Shoe Repair; Service 
Shop 

1:300 sq. ft. 

INDUSTRIAL USES 

Industrial, 
Manufacturing, 

Warehousing, Storage 

Manufacturing, 
Industrial, Research, 
Testing, Warehouse, 
Storage Buildings and 
Yards, Lumber Yard, 
Printing Shop, Plumbing 
Shop 

1:600 plus spaces for business vehicles 

Mini-Warehouse Self 
Storage parking required only for office 

 
In a development with mixed-use buildings designed and built in a walkable and pedestrian 
friendly configuration, the Planning Director may consider the following shared parking factors 
in reviewing a proposal for a reduction in the minimum parking requirements (the shared parking 
 



 -11- 

factor is applied to the sum of the individual uses minimum parking requirements): 
 

Shared Parking Factor 

 Residential Lodging Office Retail 
Residential 100% — — — 

Lodging 90% 100% — — 
Office 70% 60% 100% — 
Retail 80% 75% 80% 100% 

 
For uses not listed, the Planning Director may request additional parking demand analysis from 
the applicant to justify a reduction in the minimum parking requirements. 
 
Where shared parking is provided, a shared parking and cross access agreement between the 
cooperating property owners shall be approved by the Planning Director and recorded prior to 
issuance of a building permit. This agreement must be recorded in the real property records of 
the county in which the property sits and the agreement may not be modified or revoked without 
the approval of the Planning Director. If any requirements for shared parking are violated, the 
affected property owners must provide a remedy satisfactory to the Planning Director or provide 
the full amount of required parking for each individual use. 
 

 
Section 15. Amendment to Article VI, Section 6 (a).  Article VI, Section 6 (a) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows; provided that 
Figures G through M shall remain in full force and effect except as modified by this ordinance: 
 
(a) Building / Structure and Site Improvements: 

 
BUILDING / STRUCTURE 

 Use 
Component 

Architectural 
Component Front Side Street Side Rear 

Standard 
Setback 

SFR  25' 7' 15' 15' 

SFE, SFS, 
SFU, 

SFU/MH, 
TF 

 20' 5' 15' 15' 

SFC, SFL  15’* 
5' or 
0’ & 
10’ 

15' 15' 

SFT  10'* 0 or 
10' 15' 15' 

MF Type A 20' 10' 20' 20' 
Type B 25' 10' 25' 20' 

 



 -12- 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type A, B 15' 10' 15' 10' 
Type C 20' 10' 20' 10' 

GC, HC, HI Type D 25' 15' 25' 15' 
Special Setback 
Where Adjacent 

to SFR, SFE, 
SFS, SFU, SFC, 
SFL, SFU/MH, 

TF** 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type A (NA) 20' (N/A) 20' 
Type B (NA) 25' (N/A) 25' 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type C (NA) 30' (N/A) 30' 

GC, HC, HI Type D (NA) 50' (N/A) 50' 

Garage Setback 

SFR, SFE, 
SFS, SFU, 
SFU/MH, 
SFC, SFL, 
SFT, TF 

 See Article VIII Section 5(j) 

       
PARKING, AISLE, LOADING, CANOPIES, OUTDOOR DISPLAY 

 Use 
Component 

Site 
Component Front Side Street 

Side Rear 

Standard Setback 

MF All 20' 5'**** 20' 5'**** 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 1, 2 15' 5'**** 15' 5'**** 
Type 3 20' 5'**** 20' 5'**** 

Type 4, 5 25' 5'**** 25' 5'**** 
Special Setback 

Where Adjacent to 
SF or TF** 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type 1-3 (N/A) 15' (N/A) 15' 

Type 4, 5 (N/A) 20' (N/A) 20' 
       

OUTDOOR STORAGE 

 
Use 

Component 
Site 

Component Front Side Street 
Side Rear 

Standard Setback LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 3-4 *** 5'**** *** 0' 
Type 5 25' 0'**** 25' 0' 

Special Setback  
Where Adjacent to 

SF or TF* 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type 3-5 (N/A) 25' (N/A) 25' 

*  In no case shall the garage be closer to the ROW than 18’ 
** Unless such district is utilized for a non-residential use 
***  No closer than the street facing wall of the primary structure that utilizes such storage. 
**** Setback does not apply for parking, drive aisles, storage etc. that are intended to cross lot 

line. 
 
  

 



 -13- 

SFC, SFL - BUILDING SETBACK 

HOUSE 

GARAGE 

15’ HOUSE  
FRONT 

SETBACK 

 

5’
 O

R
 0

 A
N

D
 1

0’
 S

ID
E 

 
15’ REAR 

PATIO 

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

HOUSE 

PORCH 

15
’ H

O
U

SE
  

ST
R

EE
T 

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
A

C
K

 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 
STRUCTURE SETBACK 

LOT LINES STREET 

ST
R

EE
T 

FIGURE I 

Section 16. Amendment to Article VI, Section 6 (a) Figures I & J.  Article VI, Section 6 (a) 
Figures I & J of the Composite Zoning Ordinance are hereby amended in their entirety to read as 
follows: 
 

 
  

 



 -14- 

SFT BUILDING - SETBACK 

TOWNHOUSE 

GARAGE 

10’ HOUSE  
FRONT 

SETBACK 

15’ REAR 
SETBACK PATIO 

7’ GARAGE & PATIO  
ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

TOWNHOUSE 

PORCH 

15
’ H

O
U

SE
  

ST
R

EE
T 

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
A

C
K

 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 
STRUCTURE SETBACK 

LOT LINES STREET 

ST
R

EE
T 

ALLEY 

PARKING 

0 
O

R
 1

0’
 S

ID
E  

TOWN- 
HOUSE 

3’ SEPARATION 

FIGURE J 

  

 



 -15- 

Section 17. Amendment to Article VI, Section 7.  Article VI, Section 7 of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

SECTION 7:  DRAINAGE AND DETENTION FACILITIES 
(a) Purpose. 

The purpose of this section is to provide for the design of drainage and detention facilities 
that contribute to visual aesthetics of projects and limit the amounts of visible concrete that 
do not meet the requirements listed below.  For the purposes of this section, visible shall be 
defined as noticeable by a person of average height walking on a street, sidewalk, or trail, or 
able to be seen by a neighboring property that is two stories in height. 
 

(b)  Non-Residential and Multi-Family Drainage and Detention Facilities: 
(1) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities include all detention ponds, water 

quality ponds, pond outlet structures, berms, improved channels or other improvements 
associated with the drainage improvements.  Roadside swales, storm sewer outfalls 
unless visible from a ROW, inlets, and areas of concrete that are no more than one 
hundred (100) square feet in size are not included. 

(2) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities are not allowed within ten feet 
(10’) of street ROW except those which are necessary to convey drainage in the 
shortest possible route to or from street ROW. 

(3) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities located within the front setback 
shall not exceed 25% of the area of the front setback. 

(4) Any fencing around non-residential and multi-family detention ponds shall be 
constructed of wrought iron or decorative tubular metal or other similar product. 

(5) Structural stabilization including vertical walls and riprap for non-residential and multi-
family drainage facilities shall be limited to not more than thirty (30%) percent of the 
perimeter of the pond excluding outlet structures.  The remainder of the perimeter shall 
be earthern embankment no steeper than 3:1 slope.  All exposed concrete that is visible 
is required to be clad in stone  including but not limited to ledgestone, fieldstone, cast 
stone, or other decorative materials as approved by the Director of Planning.   All other 
exposed concrete is required to be clad in stone as listed above or textured and tinted in 
earthern colors.  In the event that the drainage facility is below grade, structural 
stabilization is permitted for the full perimeter and screening requirements listed in 
Article VI, Section 1 (d) of this Ordinance shall apply. 

(c) Residential Drainage and Detention Facilities: 
(1) Residential drainage facilities include all detention ponds, water quality ponds, pond 

outlet structures, berms, improved channels or other improvements associated with the 
drainage improvements. Roadside swales, storm sewer outfalls unless visible from a 
ROW, inlets, and areas of concrete that are no more than one hundred (100) square feet 
in size are not included. 

(2) Residential drainage facilities shall utilize earthern berms and be designed with a curvi-
linear shape.  Any structural stabilization with slopes steeper than 3:1 shall be limited to 
the use of native stone (except for outlet structures which can be concrete) and shall be 
limited to not more than thirty (30%) percent of the perimeter of the pond.  Such ponds 
shall be seamlessly integrated with the landscaping.  All exposed concrete that is visible 
is required to be clad in stone including but not limited to ledgestone, fieldstone, cast 

 



 -16- 

stone, or other decorative materials as approved by the Director of Planning.  All other 
exposed concrete is required to be clad in stone as listed above or textured and tinted in 
earthern colors.  In the event that the drainage facility is below grade, concrete is 
permitted instead of native stone and screening requirements Article VI, Sec. 1 (d) of 
this Ordinance shall apply. 

(3) Any fencing around residential detention ponds shall be constructed of wrought iron or 
decorative tubular metal or other similar product. 

 
 
Section 18. Amendment to Article VI, Section 8.  The title of Article VI, Section 8 of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

SECTION 8:  SINGLE-FAMILY AND TWO-FAMILY LOTS ABUTTING OR 
ADJACENT TO TOLLWAY, HIGHWAY, ARTERIAL, OR COLLECTOR 
ROADWAY  

 
 
Section 19. Amendment to Article VI, Section 8 (b) (2).  Article VI, Section 8 (b) (2) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line between the 
landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots.  The fence is required to be 
constructed of one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone,  factory 
tinted (not painted) split-faced concrete masonry unit, or other similar material approved 
by the Director of Planning.  In addition to the materials listed above, textured pre-cast 
concrete (e.g. WoodCrete) is also permitted when the privacy fence is adjacent to 
collectors. All columns are required to have concrete footings.  The landscape lot is 
required to be maintained by a private association. 

 
 
Section 20. Amendment to Article VI, Section 8 (c) (2).  Article VI, Section 8 (c) (2) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line between the 
landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots from the rear lot line to a point even 
with the rear wall of the house at a minimum, but no further than to a point even with the 
front wall of the house.  Any fence closer to the front lot line than the front wall of the 
house shall not exceed three feet in height; however, such fence is not required.  Such 
fence is required to be constructed of one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, 
cast stone, factory tinted (not painted) split-faced concrete masonry unit, or other similar 
material approved by the Director of Planning.  In addition to the materials listed above, 
textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. WoodCrete) is also permitted when the privacy fence is 
adjacent to collectors.  All columns are required to have concrete footings.  The 
landscape lot is required to be maintained by a private association. 

 



 -17- 

Section 21. Amendment to Article VI, Section 12.  Article VI, Section 12 of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows; provided that Figure R shall 
be and remain in full force and effect: 
 

SECTION 12:  OUTDOOR LIGHTING 
(a) The purpose of this section is to provide design standards for site and building lighting 

that are Dark Sky compliant and compatible with adjacent uses. 
(b) Non-residential outdoor lighting will be in accordance with other provisions of this 

ordinance and City building codes. A detailed lighting plan and photometric plan shall 
be included with the Building Permit application and shall meet the following 
requirements: 
(1)  Outdoor Lighting 

a. Fixture. 
i. All permanent exterior lighting shall be non-flashing and shielded such 

that the light source (cone of direct light) is not visible from the public 
ROW or adjacent residential uses at the property line (see Figure R – 
following page).   

ii. Wall pack lighting or other lighting that directs the light in a horizontal 
direction without an adequate shield is not permitted (since it directs 
the light glare directly outward) if there are streets or residential uses in 
the direction of the light. 

b. Illumination Levels 
i. All site lighting shall be designed and installed so that the level of 

illumination as measured in foot candles at a height of three (3’) feet 
at the property line does not exceed two (2’) foot candles. 

(c) Residential outdoor lighting on residential property will be installed in accordance with 
applicable City Code Standards. It will be located so as not to create a nuisance for 
adjoining property owners. 

 
 
Section 22. Amendment to Article VI, Section 14 (d).  Article VI, Section 14 (d) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(d)  Masonry privacy wall 
(1) A six-foot masonry privacy wall is required to be constructed by any non-residential use 

that abuts property utilized for a single-family or two-family residence on land zoned 
single-family or two-family, or land planned or platted for such with an approved concept 
plan, preliminary plat or final plat, unless an existing structure is proposed to be expanded 
by less than 50%, or 1,000 sq. ft., whichever is less.   
(i) Such wall shall be constructed at the common property line between the uses, or if 

such location is not feasible because of floodplain, trees or other natural feature, at 
a location that will effectively screen the non-residential use from view from the 
single-family or two-family residence.   

(ii) Such wall is required to be constructed of one or more of the following materials:  
textured pre-cast concrete that is constructed to appear as brick, stone, or cast stone as 
approved by the Director of Planning, brick, stone, cast stone, factory tinted or 

 



 -18- 

painted split-faced concrete masonry unit, granite, tile or other similar material 
approved by the Director of Planning.   

(iii) An eight-foot wall may be utilized for security purposes.  
(iv) Gates shall be provided in the wall as appropriate to connect to public sidewalks or 

other pedestrian connections unless such wall is also used as described above for 
security.  

(2) The masonry privacy wall is not required for non-residential uses that are permitted by right 
in any Single-Family Districts. 

 
 
Section 23. Amendment to Article VI, Section 16 (d).  Article VI, Section 16 (d) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(d) Fences less than or equal to eight (8) feet in height shall be allowed for impeding access 
to hazardous or secured facilities including, but not limited to, electrical substations and 
chemical or equipment storage yards; or where the fence forms a perimeter around a 
subdivision.  For high security applications, barbed wire or razor wire (or equivalent) 
may be installed above the eight (8) foot height limit but not to exceed a total of ten feet 
in height. 

 
 
Section 24. Amendment to Article VII, Section 1 (b) (1).  Article VI, Section 1 (b) (1) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(1) At least eighty-five percent (85%) of the exterior surface area of all walls, including all stories 
of primary buildings / structures, shall consist of un-painted clay brick, ledge stone, fieldstone, 
cast stone, marble, granite, tile, painted or tinted stucco (limited to thirty-five (35%) of the 
exterior surface area of walls), non-reflective glass façade, glass block (or alternative glazing 
e.g. Kalwall) and factory tinted (not painted) split faced concrete masonry unit (non-residential 
buildings and structures only) or similar material approved by the Director of Planning.  The 
remaining exterior wall surface shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-
fiber planking (not panels unless they are used with board and batten application).  Solid wood 
planking and decorative cementious-fiber panels may be used for accent features. 

 
 
Section 25. Amendment to Article VII, Section 2 (b) (1).  Article VI, Section 2 (b) (1) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:  
     

(1) At least eighty-five (85%) percent of the exterior surface area of first story walls and fifty 
(50%) percent of the exterior surface area of each additional story walls of primary buildings 
/ structures, shall consist of un-painted clay brick, ledge stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, 
granite, tile, painted or tinted stucco (limited to thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area 
of walls), glass façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. Kalwall) and factory tinted 
(not painted) split faced concrete masonry unit (non-residential buildings and structures 
only) or similar material approved by the Director of Planning.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-fiber planking (not panels 

 



 -19- 

unless they are used with a board and batten application).  Solid wood planking, decorative 
cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by the Director of Planning may be 
used for accent features. 

 
Section 26. Amendment to Article VII, Section 3 (b) (1).  Article VI, Section 3 (b) (1) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:      
 

(1) At least sixty (60%) percent of the exterior surface area of street facing walls (See Figures 
U, V, and W – following pages) of primary buildings and thirty five (35%) percent of the 
exterior surface area of all other walls  of primary buildings / structures shall consist of un-
painted clay brick, ledge stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, tile, painted or tinted 
stucco, glass façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. Kalwall) and, for non-residential 
buildings and structures, factory tinted (not painted) split faced concrete masonry unit, pre-
cast concrete tilt wall with a decorative or textured finish (needs approval by the Director of 
Planning to determine if finish is acceptable) or similar material approved by the Director of 
Planning. The remaining exterior wall surface shall be comprised of those materials listed or 
cementious-fiber planking (not panels unless they are used with a board and batten 
application) orexterior insulating finishing system (E.I.F.S.).  Solid wood planking, 
decorative cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by the Director of Planning 
may be used for accent features.  For non-residential buildings, smooth faced concrete 
masonry unit and metal panels or similar materials approved by the Director of Planning 
may be utilized as an accent feature and shall comprise not more than ten percent (10%) of 
any wall surface area. 

 
 
Section 27. Amendment to Article VII, Section 4 (b) (1).  Article VI, Section 4 (b) (1) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:   
 

(1) For all buildings / structures that are more than four hundred (400’) feet from a street, the 
masonry requirements do not apply.  For all buildings / structures that are within four 
hundred (400’) feet of a street at least sixty (60%) percent of the exterior surface area of 
street facing walls (See Figures U, V, and W – following pages) of primary buildings and 
thirty five (35%) percent of the exterior surface area of all other walls of primary buildings / 
structures shall consist of un-painted brick, ledge stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, 
granite, tile, painted or tinted stucco, exterior insulating finishing system (E.I.F.S.), glass 
façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. Kalwall), factory tinted (not painted) split 
faced concrete masonry unit, pre-cast concrete tilt wall with a decorative or textured finish 
or similar material approved by the Director of Planning. The remaining exterior wall 
surfaces shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-fiber planking or panels, 
or painted metal siding except that metal siding is not permitted on any street facing wall.  
Solid wood planking, decorative cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by 
the Director of Planning may be used for accent features.  Smooth faced concrete masonry 
unit and metal panels or similar materials approved by the Director of Planning may be 
utilized as an accent feature only and shall not comprise more than fifteen percent (15%) of 
any wall surface area. 

 
 



 -20- 

 
Section 28. Amendment to Article VIII, Section 1 (c).  Article VI, Section 1 of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended to add subsection (c) to read as follows:   
 

(c) A masonry calculation table is required at the building permit stage to demonstrate 
compliance with the ordinance requirements. 

 
Section 29. Amendment to Article IX, Section 1 (b).  Article IX, Section 1 (b) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended to remove the following:   
 

(4) Brush clearing in compliance with the landscape and tree regulations of the city as long 
as only rubber-tired equipment is introduced to the site (no equipment with tracks). 

 
 
Section 30. Amendment to Article IX, Section 2 (c) (1).  Article IX, Section 2 (c) (1) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:   
 

(1) Projects that include minor site activity similar to those listed in Section 1(b) and 
including brush clearing, Article IX of this ordinance may be eligible for a minor site 
development permit.  To be eligible, such projects may increase the impervious cover 
by no more than 1,000 square feet.  In addition, a minor site development permit 
application shall be submitted for review in conformance with all information and 
materials required by the most recent minor site development permit 
application/checklist. 

 
 
Section 31. Amendment to Article X, Section 10 (a) (2).  Article X, Section 10 (a) (2) of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:   
 

(2) Administrative Penalty.  Any person who removes a Significant Tree greater than 8 
inches in caliper prior to approval of a tree preservation plan, or who removes a 
Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper that is not authorized to be removed 
under an approved tree preservation plan shall be charged and shall pay a fee of $300 
per inch for each Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper removed in violation 
of this ordinance.  The City will rely on remaining evidence on site to determine if a 
violation of this ordinance has occurred.  For enforcement purposes the City will 
consider that any stump remaining on the property which is eight inches or more in 
diameter measured at ground level or higher was a stump of a Significant Tree greater 
than 8 inches in caliper.  Furthermore, any cut wood discovered on site will be 
considered evidence of a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper if the diameter 
of the cut wood is measured at eight inches or greater at any point on any piece of cut 
wood.  A site development or building permit application for property from which one 
or more Significant Trees have been removed in violation of this ordinance may not be 
approved until an administrative 

 
Section 32. Conflicting Ordinances.  Exhibit “A”, Section 14.02.001, Article 14.02, Leander 
 



 -21- 

Code of Ordinances and of Ordinance No. 05-018-00 is amended as provided herein.  All 
ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance as 
adopted herein, are hereby amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or 
inconsistency between this ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City, the terms and 
provisions of this ordinance shall govern. 
 
Section 33. Savings Clause.  All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved 
as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting zoning within the City 
which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued 
violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under 
such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 
disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 34. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
Charter. 
 
Section 35. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this ordinance of any 
such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  If any provision of this Ordinance shall 
be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 36. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the 7th day of July, 2016. 
 PASSED AND FINALLY APPROVED on the 21st day of July, 2016. 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 

 







COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 

 
ARTICLE I – GENERAL  

SECTION 6:  DEFINITIONS 
 
Dark Sky  means the use of lighting in a way that directs the light source away from the 
sky in order for the night sky to remain relatively free of interference from artificial light.  
This type of lighting is in compliance with the International Dark Sky Association standards. 

Gaming Room Facility means a place to deal, operate, carry on, conduct, maintain, or 
expose for play any game, sports book, promotion, sweepstakes, or other activity electronic 
or otherwise that may or may not confer upon the patrons or participants the right, chance, 
or ability to win and or claim prizes.   

Gaming Device means a clock, tape machine, slot machine, or other machine or device for 
the reception of money or other thing of value on chance or skill or upon action of whcih 
money or other thing of value is staked, hazarded, bet, won, or lost; or any mechanism, 
furniture, fixture, equipment or other device designed primarily for use in a gambling place.  
It does not include: (1) A coin-in-slot-operated mechanical device played for amusement 
that rewards the player with the right to replay such mechanical device; or (2) Vending 
machines by which full and adequate return is made for the money invested and in which 
there is no element of chance or hazard. 

Lot Width means the average horizontal distance between side property or lot lines.  Lot 
width can also be identified as the measurement of the lot at the building setback line.  The 
minimum lot width for lots fronting a cul-de-sac may be reduced to a minimum of thirty 
(30’) feet at the front property line provided that the minimum required lot width is 
provided at the front setback line. 

Soil means the upper layer of the earth in which plants grow and contains humus, minerals, 
available nutrients, and beneficial micro-organisms, resulting in a favorable condition for 
vegetative growth. 
  

ARTICLE III – USE COMPONENTS  
SECTION 1:  SFR – SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL 
(b) Conforming Uses 

(1) Single-family dwelling of not less than sixteen hundred (1,600) square feet of living 
area; accessory dwelling with a minimum living area of four hundred (400) square 
feet; and a maximum living area of nine hundred (900) square feet or 40% of the 
gross living area of the primary dwelling, whichever is greater.  However, for lots 
greater than three acres in size, there is no limit to the maximum size of the accessory 
dwelling. 

(2) Community services including community center, civic organizations, fraternal 
organizations, and cemetery / mausoleum not including a crematory or embalming 
facilities  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  1 



(3) Golf courses (public and private) and all associated improvements and activities, but 
not including miniature golf courses, golf practice ranges (unless associated with a golf 
course), or similar forms of commercial amusement 

(4) Day care (in home) for 56 or fewer children 

(5) Emergency services including fire, police and EMS stations 

(6) Family Home and Group Home-Class 1 

(7) Home occupations (see Article IV, Section 8 for Use Standards) 

(8) Parks, playgrounds and associated equipment and facilities, recreational amenity 
center 

(9) Place of worship  

(10) Public buildings, including libraries, museums and administrative offices  

(11)  Real estate sales offices during the development and sale of a residential subdivision 
and subject to the restrictions contained in this ordinance 

(12) Schools, public or private, including all levels up to and including secondary (high) 
school and equivalent curriculum including support facilities are permitted 

(13) Temporary buildings incidental to construction work on the premises if such buildings 
are removed upon the completion or abandonment of construction work (see Article 
IV, Sec. 7) 

(14) Utilities (minor) including ground mounted service equipment and minor structures 
and facilities such as poles, minor electrical switching facilities, lift stations, water 
pump stations and gas regulating facilities 

(15) Water supply reservoirs and pumping plants when screened from public view 

(16) Wireless communications facilities (WCFs) attached to street poles or facades attached 
to non-residential buildings or stealth WCFs are permitted subject to the provisions of 
this ordinance.  Freestanding WCFs, including lattice towers and mono-poles, are 
prohibited. 

(17) (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding 
academies and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of 
agricultural livestock and exotic hoof stock; however, with exception of commercial 
feed lots which are not permitted, and the exception that not more than one large 
animal (e.g. a horse, cow, bull or similar animal) or five small animals (e.g. goats, 
sheep or similar animal) may be permitted for each acre of grazeable land.  Grazeable 
land shall be land that is fenced and maintained with suitable forage for grazing of the 
particular species.  Barns and stables shall not be located within 25 feet of any 
property line. (See Chap. 2, City Code for animal control regulations) 

(18) Agricultural, small wind energy systems, solar energy systems and rainwater 
harvesting systems including or similar to: 
(i) As accessory uses, solar energy systems designed to supply energy for use on 

the premises, and rainwater harvesting systems meeting the standards of 
Article IV, Sec. 5 of Article 14.200. In addition, if approved with a special use 
permit, small wind energy systems may be approved as an accessory use if 
meeting the standards of Article IV, Sec. 5 of Article 14.200. 

(ii) Hunting and/or hunting leases (for lots or tracts three or more acres in size). 
(iii) Farming or truck gardens, limited to the propagation and cultivation of plants.  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  2 



(19) Temporary parking associated with model homes and/or sales trailers prior to the 
completion of model homes.  Article IX of this ordinance will apply to temporary 
parking lots. 

(20)  Other similar uses as determined by the Director of Planning [see Article II, Sec. 2, (f)]. 
 
SECTION 14:  HC – HEAVY COMMERCIAL 
(b) Conforming Uses 

(1) Any use permitted in the “GC” component 
(2) Bingo 
(3) Car Title Loans Shop/Business 
(4)  Commercial laundry 
(5)  Contractor and building material storage 
(6)  Gaming Room Facility/Gaming Device 
(6)(7) Hooka Lounge 
(7)(8)  Manufacture, assembly or processing of materials not classified as hazardous by 

the Fire Chief 
(8)(9)  Mini-warehouse or self-service storage facilities [required to be set back at least 

four hundred (400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial roadway if built to 
Type B, C or D architectural standards or such facilities include exterior warehouse 
doors], warehouse and distribution, commercial storage  

(9)(10)  Pawn Shop 
(10)(11) Payday Lending Business 
(11)(12) Research, Testing, and Development Laboratory 
(12)(13) Research, Testing, and Development Laboratory (Intense) 
(13)(14) Retail sales, second hand resale, and services 
(14)(15) RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage [required to be 

set back at least four hundred (400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial 
roadway]  (Note:  refer to Article VI, Section 9 for rules on special vehicle storage) 

(15)(16) Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor  
(16)(17) Utilities, including ground mounted service equipment and structures as a primary 

use and facilities such as poles, electrical switching facilities, lift stations, water pump 
stations, gas regulating facilities, electrical substations, generating plants, wastewater 
and water treatment plants, etc. (see screening requirements in Article VI, Sec. 1) 

(17)(18) Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop [Small 
engine repair shops and motorcycle repair shops shall not be permitted within one-
hundred fifty (150’) feet of a residential district unless such repairs are conducted 
totally within a fully enclosed building.] 

(18)(19) Warehouse and distribution 
(19)(20) Wood yard  
(20)(21) Wholesale activities 
(21)(22) Wrecker Impoundment, Towing [required to be set back at least four hundred 

(400) feet from a tollway, highway or major arterial roadway] 
(22)(23) Stand alone crematory or embalming establishment as long as the crematory 

stack is no closer than 200’ from a restaurant or associated parking or from a 
residential district (unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses). 

(23)(24) Other similar uses as determined by the Director of Planning based on the criteria 
of Article II, Sec. 2, (f) 

 
  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  3 



SECTION 16:  PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
(d) Rules Applicable 

(8) The PUD shall result in overall higher standards than what would be provided by 
the base zoning district.  As examples:  (1) if residential lot sizes are decreased or 
development densities are increased, the PUD will be expected to significantly 
exceed other standards such as parkland and facilities dedication, landscaping, 
architectural controls, thoroughfare or other transportation improvements, creation 
of unique characteristics of the neighborhood, retention of significant trees and/or 
provision of public facilities, etc., or (2) if masonry standards or 
building/development setbacks are proposed to be decreased, other standards 
would be expected to be increased such as landscaping, screening, retention of 
significant trees, architectural controls, land uses and/or unique site layout 
standards, etc.  Other examples may include:  

(i) Designating the Type A Architectural Component 
(ii) Adding additional architectural features 
(iii) Provide a master architectural and signage plan that includes a cohesive 

materials palette 
(iv) Enhanced landscaping and/or trees 
(v) Increased landscape area 
(vi) Masonry perimeter walls for subdivisions 
(vii) Provide brick or stone instead of decorative concrete panels for screening 

walls 
(viii) Plant street trees 
(ix) Provide more parkland dedication 
(x) Increase recreation improvements 
(xi) Trails system in greenbelt areas 
(xii) Provide a Master Sign Plan including: proposed locations, provide cohesive 

materials palette, design specifications for signage, type of illumination 
(xiii) Limit fencing to wrought iron or decorative tubular metal fencing along 

greenbelt lots. 
(xiv) Provide unique characteristics of a neighborhood with a unique site layout 
(xv) Include a mixture of uses 
(xvi) Provide public spaces 
(xvii) Incorporate public art 

 
 

ARTICLE V – SITE COMPONENTS  

SECTION 3:  TYPE 3 
(b) Site Uses and Features (Some Site Uses Listed Also Require Appropriate Use Component) 

(2) Commercial and Industrial Development:  
(v) Outdoor commercial fueling and washing of vehicles meeting the following 

requirements is permitted: 
a. Washing of vehicles (including vacuum facilities) is not located within 

one hundred fifty (150’) feet of a residential district unless such district 
is utilized for non-residential purposes.  The location is measured from 
the closest portion of the structure associated with the washing of 
vehicles to the residential district; and 

b. Commercial fueling is not located within one two hundred (1200’) feet of 
a residential district unless such district is utilized for non-residential 
purpose.  The location is measured from the closest portion of the 
structure associated with the outdoor commercial fueling to the 
residential district; and   

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  4 



ARTICLE VI – SITE STANDARDS  
SECTION 1:  LANDSCAPING, TREE PRESERVATION AND PROTECTION, AND 
SCREENING REQUIREMENTS 
(b) Screening Requirements. 

(1) In addition to the landscaping requirements of this section, all development other 
than single-family or two-family shall comply with the following screening 
requirements:  
(i) The following shall be screened from the view of at least sixty percent (60%) 

of adjacent single-family or two-family residences and any street or public 
right-of-way:  off-street parking areas, loading spaces and docks, trash and 
storage containers, outside storage areas, satellite dishes larger than 
eighteen (18) inches in diameter, antennas, mechanical equipment, and 
metal siding.   

(ii) Above ground utility facilities up to six (6) feet above grade for multi-family 
and non-residential development are required to be screened from view 
except for poles, fire hydrants and existing lines.   

(iii) Detention Facilities including detention ponds and/or water quality ponds 
shall be screened from view. 

(iv) Screening by vegetation that could be removed from adjacent undeveloped 
or partially developed properties when such property is developed is not 
considered as screening from view.   

(v) Outside storage areas shall be screened by the use of a privacy fence or wall 
at least the height of the items to be screened and in conformance with the 
requirements of this ordinance.  If the outdoor storage area is adjacent to an 
arterial or collector roadway, then the wall is required to be constructed of 
one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco 
(limited to thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), factory 
tinted (not painted) split face concrete masonry unit, or other similar 
material approved by the Director of Planning.  In addition to the materials 
listed above, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. Woodcrete) is also permitted 
with the wall is adjacent to collectors. 

(vi) A minimum five-foot (5') landscaped area located on the exterior of the 
fence shall be provided and landscaped in accordance with paragraph (2) (i) 
above unless the fence is on a rear boundary line or adjoining a permanent 
structure on the site. 

(vii) Fuel pumps are required to be screened from view of any street or public 
right-of-way to at least the height of the fuel pump. 

(viii) Lift stations are required to be screened from view of adjacent single-family 
or two-family residences, or any street or public right-of-way by the use of a 
wall.  The wall is required to be constructed of one or more of the following 
materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco (limited to thirty-five (35%) of the 
exterior surface area of walls), factory tinted (not painted) split face concrete 
masonry unit, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. Woodcrete) or other similar 
material approved by the Director of Planning.   

(2) Approved screening techniques include privacy fences, evergreen vegetative 
screens, landscape berms, existing vegetation or any combination thereof unless 
otherwise noted in this section.. 

(3) Privacy Fences (See section 14 and 16 of this Article) 
(4) Evergreen Vegetative Screens. Evergreen plant materials shall be shrubs, at least 

thirty (30) inches in height and at a minimum spacing of 48 inches at the time of 
installation, in combination with shade trees not more than fifty feet apart. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  5 



(5) Landscape Berms, in combination with trees, shall fulfill the screening 
requirements of this section if the berms are at least three (3) feet in height and 
have maximum side slopes of four (4) feet of horizontal run for every one (1) foot 
in vertical rise. 

(6) Existing on-site vegetation, demonstrating significant visual screening capabilities 
and as approved by the Director of Planning, shall fulfill the requirements of this 
section. 

 
*** 
 

(8) A non-disturbance zone shall be maintained on single-family and two-family lots 
during the subdivision construction and building permit phases of development.  A 
disturbance area no more than five (5’) feet from the foundation necessary for 
construction and grade transitions shall be permitted.  This disturbance area shall 
be no more than ten (10’) feet from the foundation for properties zoned with the 
SFR (Single-Family Rural) use component.  The trees located on the remainder of 
the lot shall not be removed unless a unique situation is approved by the Planning 
Director. 

 
(c) Tree Preservation and Protection. 

(4) Significant Tree Preservation Requirements 
(iii)(iv) Significant Trees greater than eight (8) inches in caliper shall be preserved to 

the greatest extent reasonably possible. Significant Trees removed during 
construction shall be supplanted with Replacement Trees if required by the tree 
mitigation requirements of this section.  No Significant Tree shall be removed until 
a tree protection preservation plan has been approved by the Director of Planning 
in accordance with this Chapter.  Significant Trees may be removed only in 
accordance with the approved tree protection preservation plan, and trees must be 
protected during construction activities on the property in accordance with the 
approved tree protection preservation plan.  This provision only applies to projects 
before the certificate of occupancy has been issued for single-family and two-family 
developments.  For single-family and two-family projects, this provision only 
applies prior to the initial certificate of occupancy for each lot. 

 
(9) Tree Protection Plan Requirements 

(i) An applicant for a single-family or two-family preliminary plat or final plat, or 
a site development permit shall provide a tree survey prepared within five 
years preceding the application date.  This tree survey shall include the 
street and lot layout, or site plan superimposed at a scale of 1”=100’ (or as 
appropriate) identifying significant trees located on the property that meet 
the requirements indicated in this section.  Applicants for a single-family or 
two-family preliminary or final plat are only required to submit a tree survey 
for the portion of the property that the applicant is proposing to disturb with 
the subdivision construction.  The applicant shall provide a tree preservation 
plan that identifies the surveyed trees and the mitigation of the protected 
trees that are proposed for removal.  The applicant shall be required to 
demonstrate that lot lines, street layouts and site improvements have been 
designed and located and that lot width, depth and size flexibility as 
permitted by the applicable zoning district has been utilized to the maximum 
extent necessary to retain the maximum number of significant trees 
reasonably practicable.  Applicants for a single-family or two-family 
preliminary or final plat may plant replacement trees within lots owned by 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  6 



the Homeowners Association including but not limited to landscape lots, park 
lots, or amenity center lots. 

(ii) The Director of Planning shall determine if adequate performance is achieved 
based on the standards of this section.  Approval of the tree protection 
preservation plan by the Director of Planning is required prior to preparation 
and submission of a subdivision or site development permit application.  The 
applicant may appeal any decision of the Director to the Commission.  A 
decision of the Commission may be appealed to the City Council.  Any 
preserved or replacement trees may be counted toward the landscape 
requirements of this section.  See the Construction Plan requirements for 
details. 

 

SECTION 3:  OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
(a) The following off-street parking requirements are considered minimum requirements 

and may not adequately reflect the specific needs of a proposed business.  A 
commercial building permit applicant shall analyze the parking needs of the specific 
users being proposed and provide the amount of parking required for such uses.  When 
any building or structure is erected, or an existing building is enlarged by fifty (50) 
percent or more in floor area, off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with 
the following requirements (Note: Any building enlargement is required to add at least 
the amount of additional parking required by the enlargement):  
 

USE CATEGORY SPECIFIC USE SPACE REQUIREMENT 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

Household Living 

Single Family See Use District 

Multi-Family 1 ½ for one bedroom plus ½ for each 
additional bedroom. 

Senior Multi-Family 1 per dwelling plus additional 5% of total 
spaces for visitor use. 

Group Living 

Fraternity House, 
Sorority House, 
Dormitory,  Rooming 
House, Boarding House 

1 per each two beds 

Nursing Home/Hospice/ 
Assisted Living 1 per bedroom 

All other Group Homes 1 per bedroom 

 Family Home and Group 
Home-Class 1 

not less than four (4) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per 
bedroom, whichever is greater. 

 Group Home-Class 2 & 
Group Home-Class 3 

not less than six (6) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per 
bedroom, whichever is greater 

CIVIC USES 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  7 



Educational & 
Daycare Facilities 

Elementary Schools greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 
2:classroom 

Secondary Schools, 
colleges 

greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 
10:classroom 

Day Care Center 1:400 sq. ft. 

Medical & 
Institutional Facilities 

Hospital, Sanitarium, 
Convalescent Home 1:4 beds 

All other institutions 1:250 sq. ft. 

Parks & Open Areas Golf Courses 3:hole 

 Neighborhood Amenity 
Center 

1:300 sq. ft. (including pools in square 
footage calculation) 

Places of Worship Religious Assembly 1:200 square feet of sanctuary, 
classrooms, flexible seating areas 

COMMERCIAL USES 

Automotive Sales & 
Services 

Motor Vehicle 
Salesrooms & Used Car 
Lots 

greater of 1:800 sq. ft. of sales floor or 
lot area 

Vehicle Repair Garage 1:400 sq. ft. 

Overnight 
Accommodations 

Hotel, Motel 1 per room plus 1:200 sq. ft. of Comm. 
Floor Area 

Bed & Breakfast/Inn 1 per guest room plus 2 additional 
spaces 

Food & Beverage 
Establishments 

Restaurant as a single 
use or comprising more 
than 20% of a mixed 
retail center 

1:100 sq. ft. 

Entertainment & 
Recreation 

Dance / Assembly / 
Exhibition Hall, 
Restaurant, Night Club, 
Lodge or Country Club 

1:100 sq. ft. 

Bowling Alleys 5:lane alley 

Community Center, 
Library, Museum, Art 
Gallery 

1:300 sq. ft. 

Theater, Auditorium 
(except school), Sports 
Arena, Stadium, 
Gymnasium, Funeral 
Home 

1:4 seats 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  8 



Commercial Office, 
Retail Sales, & 

Services 

Medical / Dental Clinic/ 
Office, Personal Service, 
Mixed Use Retail Center 
less than 20,000 sq. ft. 

1:200 sq. ft. 

Mixed Use Retail greater 
than 20,000 sq. ft. 1:225 sq. ft. 

Studio, Bank, Retail 1:250 sq. ft. 

Business / Professional 
Office 1:275 sq. ft. 

Furniture, Appliance or 
Hardware Store; 
Wholesale Sales 
Establishment, 
Machinery / Equipment 
Sales & Service; 
Clothing / Shoe Repair; 
Service Shop 

1:300 sq. ft. 

INDUSTRIAL USES 

Industrial, 
Manufacturing, 
Warehousing, 

Storage 

Manufacturing, 
Industrial, Research, 
Testing, Warehouse, 
Storage Buildings and 
Yards, Lumber Yard, 
Printing Shop, Plumbing 
Shop 

1:600 plus spaces for business vehicles 

Mini-Warehouse Self 
Storage parking required only for office 

 Church, Theater, 
Auditorium (except 
school), Sports Arena, 
Stadium, Gymnasium, 
Funeral Home 

1:4 seats 

 Hotel, Motel 1 per room plus 1:200 sq. ft. of Comm. 
Floor Area 

 Furniture, Appliance or 
Hardware Store; 
Wholesale Sales 
Establishment, 
Machinery / Equipment 
Sales & Service; 
Clothing / Shoe Repair; 
Service Shop, 
Community Center, 

1:300 sq. ft. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  9 



Library, Museum, Art 
Gallery 

 Hospital, Sanitarium, 
Convalescent Home 1:4 beds 

 Dance / Assembly / 
Exhibition Hall, 
Restaurant, Night Club, 
Lodge or Country Club 

1:100 sq. ft. 

 Motor Vehicle 
Salesrooms & Used Car 
Lots 

greater of 1:800 sq. ft. of sales floor or 
lot area 

 Vehicle Repair Garage 1:400 sq. ft. 

 Mini-Warehouse Self 
Storage parking required only for office 

 Golf Courses 3:hole 

 Bowling Alleys 5:alley 

 
Elementary Schools greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 

2:classroom 
 Secondary Schools, 

colleges 
greater of 1:4 seats in auditorium or 
10:classroom 

 
Family Home and Group 
Home-Class 1 

not less than four (4) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per 
bedroom, whichever is greater. 

 
Group Home-Class 2 & 
Group Home-Class 3 

not less than six (6) off street parking 
spaces, or one parking space per 
bedroom, whichever is greater 

 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  10 



In a development with mixed-use buildings designed and built in a walkable and pedestrian 
friendly configuration, the Planning Director may consider the following shared parking 
factors in reviewing a proposal for a reduction in the minimum parking requirements (the 
shared parking factor is applied to the sum of the individual uses minimum parking 
requirements): 
 

Shared Parking Factor 

 Residential Lodging Office Retail 
Residential 100% — — — 

Lodging 90% 100% — — 
Office 70% 60% 100% — 
Retail 80% 75% 80% 100% 

 
For uses not listed, the Planning Director may request additional parking demand analysis 
from the applicant to justify a reduction in the minimum parking requirements. 
 
Where shared parking is provided, a shared parking and cross access agreement between 
the cooperating property owners shall be approved by the Planning Director and recorded 
prior to issuance of a building permit. This agreement must be recorded in the real property 
records of the county in which the property sits and the agreement may not be modified or 
revoked without the approval of the Planning Director. If any requirements for shared 
parking are violated, the affected property owners must provide a remedy satisfactory to 
the Planning Director or provide the full amount of required parking for each individual use. 
 
  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  11 



SECTION 6:  SETBACKS 
(a) Building / Structure and Site Improvements: 

BUILDING / STRUCTURE 

 Use 
Component 

Architectural 
Component Front Side Street Side Rear 

Standard Setback 

SFR  25' 7' 15' 15' 

SFE, SFS, 
SFU, 

SFU/MH, TF 
  20' 5' 15' 15' 

SFC, SFL  2015'* 
5' or 
0’ & 
10’ 

15' 150' 

SFT   105'* 0 or 
10' 15' 150' 

MF 
Type A 20' 10' 20' 20' 
Type B 25' 10' 25' 20' 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type A, B 15' 10' 15' 10' 
Type C 20' 10' 20' 10' 

GC, HC, HI Type D 25' 15' 25' 15' 

Special Setback 
Where Adjacent to 

SFR, SFE, SFS, 
SFU, SFC, SFL, 
SFU/MH, TF** 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type A (NA) 20' (N/A) 20' 
Type B (NA) 25' (N/A) 25' 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type C (NA) 30' (N/A) 30' 

GC, HC, HI Type D (NA) 50' (N/A) 50' 

Garage Setback 

SFR, SFE, 
SFS, SFU, 
SFU/MH. 
SFC. SFL, 
SFT, TF 

 See Article VIII, Section 5 (i) 

       

PARKING, AISLE, LOADING, CANOPIES, OUTDOOR DISPLAY 

 Use 
Component 

Site 
Component Front Side Street 

Side Rear 

Standard Setback 

MF All 20' 5'**** 20' 5'**** 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 1, 2 15' 5'**** 15' 5'**** 
Type 3 20' 5'**** 20' 5'**** 

Type 4, 5 25' 5'**** 25' 5'**** 
Special Setback 

Where Adjacent to 
SF or TF** 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type 1-3 (N/A) 15' (N/A) 15' 

Type 4, 5 (N/A) 20' (N/A) 20' 
       

OUTDOOR STORAGE 

 
Use 

Component 
Site 

Component Front Side Street 
Side Rear 

Standard Setback LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 3-4 *** 5'**** *** 0' 
Type 5 25' 0'**** 25' 0' 

Special Setback  
Where Adjacent to 

SF or TF** 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type 3-5 (N/A) 25' (N/A) 25' 

*  In no case shall the garage be closer to the ROW than 18’ 
** Unless such district is utilized for a non-residential use 
***  No closer than the street facing wall of the primary structure that utilizes such storage. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  12 



SFC, SFL - BUILDING SETBACK 

HOUSE 

GARAGE 

1520’ HOUSE  
FRONT 

SETBACK 

5’ O
R 0

 AN
D 1

0’ S
IDE

 SE
TBA

CK
 

150’ REAR 
PATIO 

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

HOUSE 

PORCH 

15’
 HO

US
E  

STR
EET

 SID
E 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 
STRUCTURE SETBACK 

LOT LINES STREET 

STR
EET

 

FIGURE I 
**** Setback does not apply for parking, drive aisles, storage etc. that are intended to cross lot line. 

  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  13 



SFT BUILDING - SETBACK 

TOWNHOUSE 

GARAGE 

105’ HOUSE  
FRONT 

SETBACK 

150’ REAR 

 
PATIO 

7’ GARAGE & PATIO  
ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

TOWNHOUSE 

PORCH 

15’
 HO

US
E  

STR
EET

 SID
E 

SET
BA

CK
 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 

  

LOT LINES STREET 

STR
EET

 

ALLEY 

PARKING 

0 O
R 1

0’ S
IDE

 SE
TBA

CK
 

TOWN- 
HOUSE 

3’ SEPARATION 

FIGURE J 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  14 



SECTION 7:  DRAINAGE AND DETENTION FACILITIES 
(a) Purpose. 

The purpose of this section is to provide for the design of drainage and detention facilities 
that contribute to visual aesthetics of projects and limit the amounts of visible concrete that 
do not meet the requirements listed below.  For the purposes of this section, visible shall be 
defined as noticeable by a person of average height walking on a street, sidewalk, or trail, 
or able to be seen by a neighboring property that is two stories in height. 
 

(b) Non-Residential and Multi-Family Drainage and Detention Facilities: 
(1) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities include all detention ponds, water 

quality ponds, pond outlet structures, berms, improved channels or other 
improvements associated with the drainage improvements.  Roadside swales, storm 
sewer outfalls unless visible from a ROW, inlets, and areas of concrete that are no more 
than one hundred (100) square feet in size are not included. 

(2) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities are not allowed within ten feet (10’) 
of street ROW except those which are necessary to convey drainage in the shortest 
possible route to or from street ROW. 

(3) Non-residential and multi-family drainage facilities located within the front setback shall 
not exceed 25% of the area of the front setback. 

(4) Any fencing around non-residential and multi-family detention ponds shall be 
constructed of wrought iron or decorative tubular metal or other similar product. 

(5) Structural stabilization including vertical walls and riprap for non-residential and multi-
family drainage facilities shall be limited to not more than thirty (30%) percent of the 
perimeter of the pond excluding outlet structures.  The remainder of the perimeter shall 
be earthern embankment no steeper than 3:1 slope.  All exposed concrete that is 
visible is required to be made of stone or clad in stone provide decorative textured 
concrete and tinting in earthern colors, or masonry veneer including but not limited to 
ledgestone, fieldstone, or cast stone, or other decorative materials as approved by the 
Director of Planning.   All other exposed concrete is required to be made of stone or 
clad in stone as listed above or textured and tinted in earthern colors.  In the event that 
the drainage facility is below grade, structural stabilization is permitted for the full 
perimeter and screening requirements listed in Article VI, Section 1 (d) of this 
Ordinance shall apply. 

(c) Residential Drainage and Detention Facilities: 
(1) Residential drainage facilities include all detention ponds, water quality ponds, pond 

outlet structures, berms, improved channels or other improvements associated with the 
drainage improvements. Roadside swales, storm sewer outfalls unless visible from a 
ROW, inlets, and areas of concrete that are no more than one hundred (100) square 
feet in size are not included. 

(2) Residential drainage facilities shall utilize earthern berms and be designed with a curvi-
linear shape.  Any structural stabilization with slopes steeper than 3:1 shall be limited 
to the use of native stone (except for outlet structures which can be concrete) and shall 
be limited to not more than thirty (30%) percent of the perimeter of the pond.  Such 
ponds shall be seamlessly integrated with the landscaping.  All exposed concrete that is 
visible is required to be made of stone or clad in stone provide decorative textured 
concrete and tinting in earthern colors, or masonry veneer including but not limited to 
ledgestone, fieldstone, or cast stone, or other decorative materials as approved by the 
Director of Planning.  All other exposed concrete is required to be made of stone or clad 
in stone as listed above or textured and tinted in earthern colors.  In the event that the 
drainage facility is below grade, concrete is permitted instead of native stone and 
screening requirements Article VI, Sec. 1 (d) of this Ordinance shall apply. 

(3) Any fencing around residential detention ponds shall be constructed of wrought iron or 
decorative tubular metal or other similar product. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  15 



SECTION 8:  SINGLE-FAMILY AND TWO-FAMILY LOTS ABUTTING OR ADJACENT TO 
TOLLWAY, HIGHWAY, OR ARTERIAL, OR COLLECTOR ROADWAY  
For single-family and two-family lots contained within a subdivision receiving approval for a 
preliminary plat and final plat or a short form plat after the effective date of this ordinance and 
abutting or adjacent to a tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways as identified on the 
Leander Transportation Plan or based on roadway design, direct driveway access to any single-
family or two-family lot from such roadway shall be prohibited.   The following are also 
applicable: 

 
(b) For lots adjacent to tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways and backing up to such 

roadway (having frontage on another roadway of a lesser classification), the following shall 
be provided (see Figure Q – following pages):   
(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line between 

the landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots.  The fence is required to be 
constructed of one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, 
stucco, factory tinted (not painted) split-faced concrete masonry unit, or other 
similar material approved by the Director of Planning.  In addition to the materials 
listed above, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. WoodCrete) is also permitted when the 
privacy fence is adjacent to collectors. All columns are required to have concrete 
footings.  The landscape lot is required to be maintained by a private association. 

 
(c) For lots adjacent to tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways and having a side of the 

lot adjacent to such roadway (having frontage on another roadway of a lesser classification), 
the following shall be provided (see Figure Q – next page): 
(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line between 

the landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots from the rear lot line to a 
point even with the rear wall of the house at a minimum, but no further than to a point 
even with the front wall of the house.  Any fence closer to the front lot line than the 
front wall of the house shall not exceed three feet in height; however, such fence is 
not required.  Such fence is required to be constructed of one or more of the 
following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco, factory tinted (not painted) 
split-faced concrete masonry unit, or other similar material approved by the Director 
of Planning.  In addition to the materials listed above, textured pre-cast concrete 
(e.g. WoodCrete) is also permitted when the privacy fence is adjacent to collectors.  
All columns are required to have concrete footings.  The landscape lot is required to 
be maintained by a private association. 

 
SECTION 12:  OUTDOOR LIGHTING 
(a) The purpose of this section is to provide design standards for site and building lighting 

that are Dark Sky compliant and compatible with adjacent uses. 
(b) Non-residential outdoor lighting will be in accordance with other provisions of this 

ordinance and City building codes. A detailed Llighting Pplan and photometric plan shall 
be included with the Building Permit application and shall meet the following 
requirements:. 
(1)  Outdoor Lighting 

a. Fixture. 
i. All permanent exterior lighting shall be non-flashing and shielded such 

that the light source (cone of direct light) is not visible from the public 
ROW or adjacent residential uses at the property line (see Figure R – 
following page).   

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  16 



i.ii. Wall pack lighting or other lighting that directs the light in a horizontal 
direction without an adequate shield is not permitted (since it directs 
the light glare directly outward) if there are streets or residential uses in 
the direction of the light. 

b. Illumination Levels 
ii.i. All site lighting shall be designed and installed so that the level of 

illumination as measured in foot candles at a height of three (3’) feet 
at the property line does not exceed two (2’) foot candles. 

(a)(c) Residential outdoor lighting on residential property will be installed in accordance 
with applicable City Code Standards. It will be located so as not to create a nuisance for 
adjoining property owners. 

(b)(d) All permanent exterior lighting shall be non-flashing and shielded such that the light 
source (cone of direct light) is not visible from the public ROW or adjacent residential 
uses at the property line (see Figure R – following page).  Wall pack lighting or other 
lighting that directs the light in a horizontal direction without an adequate shield is not 
permitted (since it directs the light glare directly outward) if there are streets or 
residential uses in the direction of the light. 

 
SECTION 14:   ADDITIONAL MULTI-FAMILY AND NON-RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS  

(d)   Masonry Privacy Wall 
(1) A six-foot masonry privacy wall is required to be constructed by any non-residential 

use that abuts property utilized for a single-family or two-family residence on land 
zoned single-family or two-family, or land planned or platted for such with an 
approved concept plan, preliminary plat or final plat, unless an existing structure is 
proposed to be expanded by less than 50%, or 1,000 sq. ft., whichever is less.   
(i) Such wall shall be constructed at the common property line between the uses, 

or if such location is not feasible because of floodplain, trees or other natural 
feature, at a location that will effectively screen the non-residential use from 
view from the single-family or two-family residence.   

(ii) Such wall is required to be constructed of one or more of the following 
materials:  textured pre-cast concrete that is constructed to appear as brick, 
stone, or cast stone as approved by the Director of Planning, brick, stone, cast 
stone, stucco, factory tinted or painted split-faced concrete masonry unit, 
granite, tile or other similar material approved by the Director of Planning.   

(iii) An eight-foot wall may be utilized for security purposes.  
(iv) Gates shall be provided in the wall as appropriate to connect to public 

sidewalks or other pedestrian connections unless such wall is also used as 
described above for security.  

(2) The masonry privacy wall is not required for non-residential uses that are permitted by 
right in any Single-Family Districts. 

 

SECTION 16:  FENCES 
(d) Fences less than or equal to eight (8) feet in height shall be allowed for impeding 

access to hazardous or secured facilities including, but not limited to, electrical 
substations and chemical or equipment storage yards; or where , because of severe 
slope conditions, such fencing height can be demonstrated to be necessary for privacy 
or visual buffering; or where the fence forms a perimeter around a subdivision.  For 
high security applications, barbed wire or razor wire (or equivalent) may be installed 
above the eight (8) foot height limit but not to exceed a total of ten feet in height. 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  17 



ARTICLE VII – ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS 

SECTION 1:  TYPE A 
(b) Exterior Wall Standards: 

(1) At least eighty-five percent (85%) of the exterior surface area of all walls, including all 
stories of primary buildings / structures, shall consist of un-painted clay brick, ledge 
stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, tile, painted or tinted stucco (limited to 
thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), non-reflective glass façade, 
glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. Kalwall) and factory tinted (not painted) split 
faced concrete masonry unit (non-residential buildings and structures only) or similar 
material approved by the Director of Planning.  The remaining exterior wall surface 
shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-fiber planking (not panels 
unless they are used with board and batten application).  Solid wood planking and 
decorative cementious-fiber panels may be used for accent features. 

SECTION 2:  TYPE B 
(b) Exterior Wall Standards: 

(1) At least eighty-five (85%) percent of the exterior surface area of first story walls and 
fifty percent (50%) percent of the exterior surface area of each additional story walls of 
the exterior surface area (all stories) and at least eighty-five percent (85%) of the 
exterior surface area of first story walls of primary buildings / structures, shall consist of 
un-painted clay brick, ledge stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, tile, painted 
or tinted stucco(limited to thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), glass 
façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. Kalwall) and factory tinted (not painted) 
split faced concrete masonry unit (non-residential buildings and structures only) or 
similar material approved by the Director of Planning.  The remaining exterior wall 
surface shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-fiber planking (not 
panels unless they are used with a board and batten application).  Solid wood planking, 
decorative cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by the Director of 
Planning may be used for accent features. 

SECTION 3:  TYPE C  
(b) Exterior Wall Standards: 

(1) At least sixty (60%) percent of the exterior surface area of street facing walls (See 
Figures U, V, and W – following pages) of primary buildings and thirty five percent 
(35%) percent of the exterior surface area of all other walls (all stories), including at 
least sixty percent (60%) of the exterior surface area of street facing walls (all stories) 
(see Figures U, V and W – following pages) of primary buildings / structures shall 
consist of un-painted clay brick, ledge stone, fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, 
tile, painted or tinted stucco, glass façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. 
Kalwall) and, for non-residential buildings and structures, factory tinted (not painted) 
split faced concrete masonry unit, pre-cast concrete tilt wall with a decorative or 
textured finish (needs approval by the Director of Planning to determine if finish is 
acceptable) or similar material approved by the Director of Planning. The remaining 
exterior wall surface shall be comprised of those materials listed or cementious-fiber 
planking (not panels unless they are used with a board and batten application) or, for 
non-residential applications only, exterior insulating finishing system (E.I.F.S.).  Solid 
wood planking, decorative cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by 
the Director of Planning may be used for accent features.  For non-residential buildings, 
smooth faced concrete masonry unit and metal panels or similar materials approved by 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  18 



the Director of Planning may be utilized as an accent feature and shall comprise not 
more than ten percent (10%) of any wall surface area. 

SECTION 4:  TYPE D  
(b) Exterior Wall Standards: 

(1) For all buildings / structures that are more than four hundred (400’) feet from a street, 
the masonry requirements do not apply.  For all buildings / structures that are within 
four hundred (400’) feet of a street at least sixty (60%) percent of the exterior surface 
area of street facing walls (See Figures U, V, and W – following pages) of primary 
buildings and thirty five (35%) percent of the exterior surface area of all other walls 
Unless there are no street facing walls, at least thirty five percent (35%) of the exterior 
surface area of walls (all stories), including at least sixty percent (60%) of the exterior 
surface area of street facing walls (all stories) (see Figures S, T and U – previous 
pages) of primary buildings / structures shall consist of un-painted brick, ledge stone, 
fieldstone, cast stone, marble, granite, tile, painted or tinted stucco, exterior insulating 
finishing system (E.I.F.S.), glass façade, glass block (or alternative glazing e.g. 
Kalwall), factory tinted (not painted) split faced concrete masonry unit, pre-cast 
concrete tilt wall with a decorative or textured finish or similar material approved by the 
Director of Planning. The remaining exterior wall surfaces shall be comprised of those 
materials listed or cementious-fiber planking or panels, or painted metal siding except 
that metal siding is not permitted on any street facing wall.  Solid wood planking, 
decorative cementious-fiber panels and other materials approved by the Director of 
Planning may be used for accent features.  Smooth faced concrete masonry unit and 
metal panels or similar materials approved by the Director of Planning may be utilized 
as an accent feature only and shall not comprise more than fifteen percent (15%) of 
any wall surface area. 

 
  

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  19 



ARTICLE VIII - ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 
 

SECTION 1:  WALL AREA CALCULATIONS 
(a) In calculating percentage of exterior wall area, the area of windows and window frames, 

doors and door frames, eves, soffits, dormers, columns, recessed entryways, foundation 
and similar areas are excluded from the calculations and may utilize any of the materials 
listed in the applicable component exterior wall standards, when, in the opinion of the 
Building Official, construction with the required masonry materials is not reasonably feasible. 

(b) A street facing wall is the exterior wall of a building, including any off-sets, projections or 
recesses, facing a street or within forty-five (45) degrees of such orientation and within 
four hundred (400) feet of the street.  A wall is considered facing a street even if there is 
another public ROW between the wall and the street.  A wall is not considered facing a 
street if another building or other permanent screening material on site is between the 
wall and the street and blocks the view of the wall from the street by at least seventy-
five percent (75%) from all view angles.  Five year projected maturity of any on-site 
evergreen planted materials may be considered in the screening assessment. 

(c) A masonry calculation table is required at the building permit stage to demonstrate 
compliance with the ordinance requirements. 

 
ARTICLE IX – SITE DEVELOPMENT 

SECTION 1:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
(b) Applicability; Site Development Permit Required 

Any person who develops, or causes to be developed, property located within the 
corporate limits of the City shall comply with this Chapter.  Within the city corporate 
limits the use of property shall not be changed, no development shall take place and no 
building permit shall be issued until a site development permit has been issued in 
accordance with the code of ordinances of the City.   Property for which a site 
development permit has been issued shall be developed in compliance with the 
approved site plan.   The following are exceptions to the applicability of this Chapter: 
(1) Construction, alteration or addition to a single-family or two family residential 

structure, or an accessory building to any such structure. 
(2) Alteration or finish-out of an existing building when the alteration or finish-out does 

not increase the square footage of the building or change the building footprint as 
long as one of the following applies: 
(i) The use does not change, or if the use changes, the new use does not 

require more parking than is currently existing and no additional parking 
spaces, aisles or driveways are proposed; 

(ii) The alteration, finish-out or change of use is in compliance with all applicable 
codes and regulations of the city; and  

(iii) The proposal does not increase the degree of any existing non-conforming 
use or non-conforming structure. 

(3) Construction of a fence, but no exception is granted by this subsection for 
construction of a retaining wall or for a fence that may obstruct or change the flow 
of water. 

(4) Brush clearing in compliance with the landscape and tree regulations of the city as 
long as only rubber-tired equipment is introduced to the site (no equipment with 
tracks). 
 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  20 



(e) Minor Site Development Permit 
(1) Projects that include minor site activity similar to those listed in Section 1(b) and 

including brush clearing, Article IX of this ordinance may be eligible for a minor site 
development permit.  To be eligible, such projects may increase the impervious 
cover by no more than 1,000 square feet.  In addition, a minor site development 
permit application shall be submitted for review in conformance with all information 
and materials required by the most recent minor site development permit 
application/checklist. 

(2) A professional recovery fee as set forth in Appendix A shall be required at the time 
of site development permit exemption application submittal. 

 

ARTICLE X – ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION 10:  ENFORCEMENT 
(a) Penalty 

(1) Penalty.  Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this ordinance, or 
shall fail to comply therewith, or with any of the requirements thereof, within the 
City limits shall be deemed guilty of an offense and shall be liable for a fine not to 
exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($2000.00). Each day the violation exists 
shall constitute a separate offense. Such penalty shall be in addition to all the other 
remedies provided herein 

(2) Administrative Penalty.  Any person who removes a Significant Tree greater than 8 
inches in caliper prior to approval of a tree protection preservation plan, or who 
removes a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper that is not authorized to 
be removed under an approved tree protection preservation plan shall be charged 
and shall pay a fee of $300 per inch for each Significant Tree greater than 8 inches 
in caliper removed in violation of this ordinance.  The City will rely on remaining 
evidence on site to determine if a violation of this ordinance has occurred.  For 
enforcement purposes the City will consider that any stump remaining on the 
property which is eight inches or more in diameter measured at ground level or 
higher was a stump of a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper.  
Furthermore, any cut wood discovered on site will be considered evidence of a 
Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper if the diameter of the cut wood is 
measured at eight inches or greater at any point on any piece of cut wood.  A site 
development or building permit application for property from which one or more 
Significant Trees have been removed in violation of this ordinance may not be 
approved until an administrative 

Composite Zoning Ordinance Amendments – 2016  21 







AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 07, 2016 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Ordinance Case 16-OR-002:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on amending sections of the Subdivision Ordinance, to add 
definitions, to modify provisions for the protection of riparian 
corridors, to modify requirements associated with construction 
plans; to update tree preservation plan requirements, to modify 
private street standards, and to clarify the park land dedication 
requirements.   

 
Background: Staff presented a proposal to the Planning & Zoning Commission 

on November 12, 2015 that included several amendments to clarify 
the Subdivision Ordinances.  Based on the results of that meeting, 
staff is proposing the following amendments to the Subdivision 
Ordinance.   
1. Update the riparian corridor definitions 
2. Change “Tree Protection” to “Tree Preservation” to be 

consistent throughout the ordinance 
3. Add provisions for construction plan permits 
4. Add provisions for private, gated streets 
5. Modify riparian corridor requirements 
6. Clarify parkland dedication requirements in the ETJ 

 
Origination: Applicant:  City of Leander 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended to approve the amendments with staff 
recommendation and modifying the provisions associated with 
gated, private streets to include access to private drives at the June 
23, 2016 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Proposed Amendments 
 2. Proposed P&Z Amendments 
 3.   Ordinance  



 4. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission June 23, 2016  
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 06/30/2016 
 



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 

ARTICLE I – GENERAL 

SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 
 
Riparian Corridor means any defined stream channel including the area up to the ordinary 
high water (or bankfull-flow line), as well as all riparian (streamside) vegetation in 
contiguous adjacent uplands.  Riparian Corridors also includes the Secondary and Connector 
Trail Corridors identified in the City of Leander Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan 
and the Transportation Plan. 
 
Riparian Corridor Setback means a line or lines designating the minimum distance the 
closest wall Improvements and/or Structures of a structure areis required to be from a 
Riparian Corridor. Building projections (e.g. eaves, awnings, window boxes, and porch 
overhangs) may extend up to two feet into the Riparian Corridor Setback.   
 
 

ARTICLE II – PROCEDURE 

SECTION 22.  PRELIMINARY PLAT 
(c) Content 

(2) Existing Conditions 

(iii) Tree Protection Preservation Plan 

a) A tree protection preservation plan consisting of a tree survey prepared 
within five years preceding the application date with the street and lot 
layout superimposed at a scale of 1”=100’ (or as appropriate) shall be 
prepared demonstrating that lot lines and street layouts have been 
designed and located and that lot width, depth and size flexibility (as 
permitted by the applicable zoning district if inside the City) has been 
utilized to the maximum extent necessary to retain the maximum number 
of significant trees reasonably practicable.   

b) The applicant shall provide a tree preservation plan that identifies the 
surveyed trees and the mitigation of the protected trees that are proposed 
for removal.  The tree protection preservation plan is required to be 
approved by the Director of Planning prior at the time ofto submission of a 
preliminary plat application.  Up to fifty (50%) percent of the caliper inches 
of Significant Trees between eight (8) and twenty-six (26) caliper inches 
may be removed without mitigation for single-family and two-family 
subdivisions.  Up to fifty (50%) percent of the caliper inches of Significant 
Trees between eight (8) and eighteen (18) caliper inches may be removed 
without mitigation for subdivisions other than single-family and two family.   

 
f) Replacement Trees 

1. Replacement trees shall be a minimum of two (2) caliper inches and 
identified on the City of Leander preferred plant list or included in the 
Grow Green Guide for Native and Adaptive Landscape Plants published 
by the City of Austin Watershed Protection and Texas A&M AgriLife 
Extension, as amended from time to time.  The tree protection 

Subdivision Ordinance Amendments – 2016  1 
 



preservation plan is required to be approved by the Director of Planning 
prior to submission of a preliminary plat application. 

 
(4) Support Documents. 

(i) A drainage study, consisting of a Drainage Area Map with contours, location 
and capacities of existing and proposed drainage features, and calculations in 
accordance with this Ordinance and good engineering practices, shall be 
provided to ensure the property will be developed in accordance with City 
drainage policies. 

(ii) Utility demand data, consistent with the proposed uses indicated on the 
Preliminary Plat, to determine the adequacy and the consistency of proposed 
utility improvements. 

(iii) A letter of certification, when applicable, that the plat has been submitted to 
the County Health District for review (applicable to all projects proposing septic 
systems and/or containing any portion of the regulatory one hundred (100) 
year floodplain outside of the City limits). 

(iv) Copy of approved concept plan. 
(v) Copy of deed showing current ownership. 
(vi) Park proposal in compliance with approved Concept Plan. 
(vii) Copy of the approved tree protection preservation plan. 

 
(d) Procedure. A Preliminary Plat for any proposed subdivision of land, shall be submitted to 

the City for Commission action after a tree protection preservation plan is approved by the 
Director of Planning. 

SECTION 23.  CONSTRUCTION PLANS 
(e) Approval. Within thirty (30) days of the date on which all required information has been 

accepted for review, the City Engineer shall either approve or disapprove the Construction 
Plans. 

(1) If the Construction Plans are disapproved, the City Engineer shall notify the 
applicant, in writing, of disapproval and indicate the requirements for bringing the 
Construction Plans into compliance. 

(2) If Construction Plans are approved, then the City Engineer shall sign the cover sheet 
of the Construction Plans and a pre-construction meeting shall be scheduled.  A 
construction plan permit shall be signed and issued during the pre-construction 
meeting.  A signed copy of the plans shall be returned , returning one (1) signed 
copy to the applicant and a copy shall be retaineding the other signed copy for City 
records. 

(3) The developer should be aware that specific approvals from other agencies may be 
required. 

(4) All improvements shown in the approved Construction Plans shall be constructed 
pursuant to and in compliance with the approved plans, except as otherwise 
specifically approved. 

 
(g) Approval Expiration.  The construction plan permit approval of the Construction Plans 
shall expire two years after the date that the permit is issued e City Engineer approves the 

Subdivision Ordinance Amendments – 2016  2 
 



Construction Plans unless an unexpired Final Plat is on file with the City or the Final Plat has 
been approved and that approval has not expired.   
 
 

ARTICLE III – DESIGN STANDARDS 
(b) Policy. 

(2) Additional street and trail design standards shall be as follows: 

(vi) Private, gated streets may only be approved for local streets and may not be 
approved where the gated, private street would prohibit the connection of the 
street network between neighborhoods or otherwise impair the ability to 
complete the City’s overall transportation network.  

 
SECTION 49. RIPARIAN CORRIDORS 
The intent of these provisions is to control development within Riparian Corridors for the 
purpose of preserving and protecting the natural wildlife.  Riparian Corridors provide 
important functions that contribute to the overall quality of the community including 
enhancing water quality, reducing erosion, and providing important habitat to wildlife.   

(a) Riparian Corridor Setbacks shall be based on the following drainage criteria for all 
developments. These setback requirements do not include trails and related 
improvements.  No structure shall be erected or installed within the Riparian Corridor 
Setback. The following Riparian Corridor Setbacks are established: 

1) Creeks or swales draining more than five (5) acres but less than forty (40) 
acres shall have a minimum Riparian Corridor Setback of twenty-five (25’) 
feet from the centerline of the creek or swale. 

2) Creeks or swales draining more than forty (40) acres but less than one 
hundred twenty-eight (128) acres shall have a minimum Riparian Corridor 
Setback of seventy-five (75’) feet from the centerline of the creek or swale. 

3) Creeks or swales draining more than one hundred twenty-eight (128) acres 
but less than six hundred forty (640) acres shall have a minimum Riparian 
Corridor Setback of one hundred (100’) feet from the centerline of the creek 
or swale. 

4) A minimum one hundred (100’) foot Riparian Corridor Setback is required off 
of the centerline of creeks identified on the City of Leander Parks, Recreation 
& Open Space Master Plan. 

(b) It is recognized that there are some necessary impacts to the Riparian Corridors.  
The following disturbances shall be allowed in the Riparian Corridor Setbacks  

1) Roadway Crossing 
i. Arterial and Collector Streets identified in the Transportation Plan may 

cross the Riparian Corridor. 
ii. All other Collector Streets not shown on Transportation Plan may cross 

a Riparian Corridor as long as the crossing is one thousand (1,000’) 
feet from a Collector or Arterial Street crossing on the same Riparian 
Corridor.  

iii. A Local Street may cross a Riparian Corridor if necessary to provide 
access to property that cannot otherwise be safely accessed. 

2) Stormwater Detention Structures 
i. Stormwater detention is allowed within the Riparian Corridor Setback 

when the detention embankment/structure occupies a narrow footprint 
similar to utility and roadway crossing and no excavation takes place 
within the Riparian Corridor Setbacks. 

Subdivision Ordinance Amendments – 2016  3 
 



3) Underground Utilities   
(c) The Riparian Corridor classification does not apply to a previously modified drainage 

feature serving a public roadway right-of-way that does not possess any natural and 
traditional character and cannot reasonably be restored to a natural condition. 

 

SECTION 50.  TREE PRESERVATION 
No Significant Tree shall be removed until a tree protection preservation plan has been 
approved by the Director of Planning in accordance with this Chapter.  Significant Trees may 
be removed only in accordance with the approved tree protection preservation plan, and trees 
must be protected during construction activities on the property in accordance with the 
approved tree protection preservation plan.   

 
 

ARTICLE IV – IMPROVEMENTS  

SECTION 61.  PARK LAND DEDICATION AND PARK IMPROVEMENTS  
Park Land Dedication and Park Improvements Required:  A developer of any 
subdivision subject to this ordinance or a site development permit subject to the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance which includes residential lots, building sites, or multi-family residential site 
development residential subdivision within the City limits  or the City's extra- territorial 
jurisdiction or multi-family residential site development within the City limits, that adds any 
residential units to any subdivision or multi-family residential site development, shall prepare 
a park plan to provide for sufficient and suitable park land and park improvements for the 
purpose of public recreation in accordance with the following provisions: 

 
ARTICLE V – ADMINISTRATION  

SECTION 77.  ENFORCEMENT 
(b) Administrative Penalty.  Any person who removes a Significant Tree greater than 8 

inches in caliper prior to approval of a tree protection preservation plan, or who removes 
a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper that is not authorized to be removed 
under an approved tree protection preservation plan shall be charged and shall pay a fee 
of $150 per inch for each Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper removed in 
violation of this ordinance.  The City will rely on remaining evidence on site to determine 
if a violation of this ordinance has occurred.  For enforcement purposes the City will 
consider that any stump remaining on the property which is eight inches or more in 
diameter measured at ground level or higher was a stump of a Significant Tree greater 
than 8 inches in caliper.  Furthermore, any cut wood discovered on site will be considered 
evidence of a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper if the diameter of the cut 
wood is measured at eight inches or greater at any point on any piece of cut wood.  A 
plat or construction plan application for property from which one or more Significant 
Trees have been removed in violation of this ordinance may not be approved until an 
administrative penalty owed under this subsection has been paid.   

Subdivision Ordinance Amendments – 2016  4 
 



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 

ARTICLE I – GENERAL 

SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 
 
Riparian Corridor means any defined stream channel including the area up to the ordinary 
high water (or bankfull-flow line), as well as all riparian (streamside) vegetation in 
contiguous adjacent uplands.  Riparian Corridors also includes the Secondary and Connector 
Trail Corridors identified in the City of Leander Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan 
and the Transportation Plan. 
 
Riparian Corridor Setback means a line or lines designating the minimum distance the 
closest wall Improvements and/or Structures of a structure areis required to be from a 
Riparian Corridor. Building projections (e.g. eaves, awnings, window boxes, and porch 
overhangs) may extend up to two feet into the Riparian Corridor Setback.   
 
 

ARTICLE II – PROCEDURE 

SECTION 22.  PRELIMINARY PLAT 
(c) Content 

(2) Existing Conditions 

(iii) Tree Protection Preservation Plan 

a) A tree protection preservation plan consisting of a tree survey prepared 
within five years preceding the application date with the street and lot 
layout superimposed at a scale of 1”=100’ (or as appropriate) shall be 
prepared demonstrating that lot lines and street layouts have been 
designed and located and that lot width, depth and size flexibility (as 
permitted by the applicable zoning district if inside the City) has been 
utilized to the maximum extent necessary to retain the maximum number 
of significant trees reasonably practicable.   

b) The applicant shall provide a tree preservation plan that identifies the 
surveyed trees and the mitigation of the protected trees that are proposed 
for removal.  The tree protection preservation plan is required to be 
approved by the Director of Planning prior at the time ofto submission of a 
preliminary plat application.  Up to fifty (50%) percent of the caliper inches 
of Significant Trees between eight (8) and twenty-six (26) caliper inches 
may be removed without mitigation for single-family and two-family 
subdivisions.  Up to fifty (50%) percent of the caliper inches of Significant 
Trees between eight (8) and eighteen (18) caliper inches may be removed 
without mitigation for subdivisions other than single-family and two family.   

 
f) Replacement Trees 

1. Replacement trees shall be a minimum of two (2) caliper inches and 
identified on the City of Leander preferred plant list or included in the 
Grow Green Guide for Native and Adaptive Landscape Plants published 
by the City of Austin Watershed Protection and Texas A&M AgriLife 
Extension, as amended from time to time.  The tree protection 

Subdivision Ordinance Amendments – 2016  1 
 



preservation plan is required to be approved by the Director of Planning 
prior to submission of a preliminary plat application. 

 
(4) Support Documents. 

(i) A drainage study, consisting of a Drainage Area Map with contours, location 
and capacities of existing and proposed drainage features, and calculations in 
accordance with this Ordinance and good engineering practices, shall be 
provided to ensure the property will be developed in accordance with City 
drainage policies. 

(ii) Utility demand data, consistent with the proposed uses indicated on the 
Preliminary Plat, to determine the adequacy and the consistency of proposed 
utility improvements. 

(iii) A letter of certification, when applicable, that the plat has been submitted to 
the County Health District for review (applicable to all projects proposing septic 
systems and/or containing any portion of the regulatory one hundred (100) 
year floodplain outside of the City limits). 

(iv) Copy of approved concept plan. 
(v) Copy of deed showing current ownership. 
(vi) Park proposal in compliance with approved Concept Plan. 
(vii) Copy of the approved tree protection preservation plan. 

 
(d) Procedure. A Preliminary Plat for any proposed subdivision of land, shall be submitted to 

the City for Commission action after a tree protection preservation plan is approved by the 
Director of Planning. 

SECTION 23.  CONSTRUCTION PLANS 
(e) Approval. Within thirty (30) days of the date on which all required information has been 

accepted for review, the City Engineer shall either approve or disapprove the Construction 
Plans. 

(1) If the Construction Plans are disapproved, the City Engineer shall notify the 
applicant, in writing, of disapproval and indicate the requirements for bringing the 
Construction Plans into compliance. 

(2) If Construction Plans are approved, then the City Engineer shall sign the cover sheet 
of the Construction Plans and a pre-construction meeting shall be scheduled.  A 
construction plan permit shall be signed and issued during the pre-construction 
meeting.  A signed copy of the plans shall be returned , returning one (1) signed 
copy to the applicant and a copy shall be retaineding the other signed copy for City 
records. 

(3) The developer should be aware that specific approvals from other agencies may be 
required. 

(4) All improvements shown in the approved Construction Plans shall be constructed 
pursuant to and in compliance with the approved plans, except as otherwise 
specifically approved. 

 
(g) Approval Expiration.  The construction plan permit approval of the Construction Plans 
shall expire two years after the date that the permit is issued e City Engineer approves the 

Subdivision Ordinance Amendments – 2016  2 
 



Construction Plans unless an unexpired Final Plat is on file with the City or the Final Plat has 
been approved and that approval has not expired.   
 
 

ARTICLE III – DESIGN STANDARDS 
(b) Policy. 

(2) Additional street and trail design standards shall be as follows: 

(vi) Private, gated streets or drives may only be approved for local streets or 
drives and may not be approved where the gated, private street or drive 
would prohibit the connection of the street network between neighborhoods 
or otherwise impair the ability to complete the City’s overall transportation 
network.  

 
SECTION 49. RIPARIAN CORRIDORS 
The intent of these provisions is to control development within Riparian Corridors for the 
purpose of preserving and protecting the natural wildlife.  Riparian Corridors provide 
important functions that contribute to the overall quality of the community including 
enhancing water quality, reducing erosion, and providing important habitat to wildlife.   

(a) Riparian Corridor Setbacks shall be based on the following drainage criteria for all 
developments. These setback requirements do not include trails and related 
improvements.  No structure shall be erected or installed within the Riparian Corridor 
Setback. The following Riparian Corridor Setbacks are established: 

1) Creeks or swales draining more than five (5) acres but less than forty (40) 
acres shall have a minimum Riparian Corridor Setback of twenty-five (25’) 
feet from the centerline of the creek or swale. 

2) Creeks or swales draining more than forty (40) acres but less than one 
hundred twenty-eight (128) acres shall have a minimum Riparian Corridor 
Setback of seventy-five (75’) feet from the centerline of the creek or swale. 

3) Creeks or swales draining more than one hundred twenty-eight (128) acres 
but less than six hundred forty (640) acres shall have a minimum Riparian 
Corridor Setback of one hundred (100’) feet from the centerline of the creek 
or swale. 

4) A minimum one hundred (100’) foot Riparian Corridor Setback is required off 
of the centerline of creeks identified on the City of Leander Parks, Recreation 
& Open Space Master Plan. 

(b) It is recognized that there are some necessary impacts to the Riparian Corridors.  
The following disturbances shall be allowed in the Riparian Corridor Setbacks  

1) Roadway Crossing 
i. Arterial and Collector Streets identified in the Transportation Plan may 

cross the Riparian Corridor. 
ii. All other Collector Streets not shown on Transportation Plan may cross 

a Riparian Corridor as long as the crossing is one thousand (1,000’) 
feet from a Collector or Arterial Street crossing on the same Riparian 
Corridor.  

iii. A Local Street may cross a Riparian Corridor if necessary to provide 
access to property that cannot otherwise be safely accessed. 

2) Stormwater Detention Structures 
i. Stormwater detention is allowed within the Riparian Corridor Setback 

when the detention embankment/structure occupies a narrow footprint 

Subdivision Ordinance Amendments – 2016  3 
 



similar to utility and roadway crossing and no excavation takes place 
within the Riparian Corridor Setbacks. 

3) Underground Utilities   
(c) The Riparian Corridor classification does not apply to a previously modified drainage 

feature serving a public roadway right-of-way that does not possess any natural and 
traditional character and cannot reasonably be restored to a natural condition. 

 

SECTION 50.  TREE PRESERVATION 
No Significant Tree shall be removed until a tree protection preservation plan has been 
approved by the Director of Planning in accordance with this Chapter.  Significant Trees may 
be removed only in accordance with the approved tree protection preservation plan, and trees 
must be protected during construction activities on the property in accordance with the 
approved tree protection preservation plan.   

 
 

ARTICLE IV – IMPROVEMENTS  

SECTION 61.  PARK LAND DEDICATION AND PARK IMPROVEMENTS  
Park Land Dedication and Park Improvements Required:  A developer of any 
subdivision subject to this ordinance or a site development permit subject to the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance which includes residential lots, building sites, or multi-family residential site 
development residential subdivision within the City limits  or the City's extra- territorial 
jurisdiction or multi-family residential site development within the City limits, that adds any 
residential units to any subdivision or multi-family residential site development, shall prepare 
a park plan to provide for sufficient and suitable park land and park improvements for the 
purpose of public recreation in accordance with the following provisions: 

 
ARTICLE V – ADMINISTRATION  

SECTION 77.  ENFORCEMENT 
(b) Administrative Penalty.  Any person who removes a Significant Tree greater than 8 

inches in caliper prior to approval of a tree protection preservation plan, or who removes 
a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper that is not authorized to be removed 
under an approved tree protection preservation plan shall be charged and shall pay a fee 
of $150 per inch for each Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper removed in 
violation of this ordinance.  The City will rely on remaining evidence on site to determine 
if a violation of this ordinance has occurred.  For enforcement purposes the City will 
consider that any stump remaining on the property which is eight inches or more in 
diameter measured at ground level or higher was a stump of a Significant Tree greater 
than 8 inches in caliper.  Furthermore, any cut wood discovered on site will be considered 
evidence of a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper if the diameter of the cut 
wood is measured at eight inches or greater at any point on any piece of cut wood.  A 
plat or construction plan application for property from which one or more Significant 
Trees have been removed in violation of this ordinance may not be approved until an 
administrative penalty owed under this subsection has been paid.   

Subdivision Ordinance Amendments – 2016  4 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AMENDING 

SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 10, THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE, TO 
ADD DEFINITIONS, TO MODIFY PROVISIONS FOR THE 
PROTECTION OF RIPARIAN CORRIDORS, TO MODIFY 
REQUIREMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION PLANS; TO 
UPDATE TREE PRESERVATION PLAN REQUIREMENTS, TO 
MODIFY PRIVATE STREET STANDARDS, AND TO CLARIFY THE 
PARK LAND DEDICATION REQUIREMENTS, REVISING THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY FOR REMOVAL OF SIGNIFICANT 
TREES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, PROVIDING 
SAVINGS, EFFECTIVE DATE AND OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES, AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 Whereas, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to Chapter 
10, Article 10.02, Section 10.02.001, Exhibit A, Leander Code of Ordinances (the “Subdivision 
Ordinance”); and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council at a public hearing has considered the proposed amendments 
and finds that the amendments are reasonable and necessary to protect the health, safety, and 
welfare of the present and future residents of the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings of Fact. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.  
 
 
Section 2. Amendment of Article I, Section 6.  Article I, Section 1 of the Subdivision 
Ordinance to amend the definitions of “Riparian Corridor” and “Riparian Corridor Setback” in their 
entirety to read as follows: 
 

Riparian Corridor means any defined stream channel including the area up to the 
ordinary high water (or bankfull-flow line), as well as all riparian (streamside) vegetation 
in contiguous adjacent uplands.  Riparian Corridors also includes the Secondary and 
Connector Trail Corridors identified in the City of Leander Parks, Recreation & Open 
Space Master Plan and the Transportation Plan. 
 
Riparian Corridor Setback means a line or lines designating the minimum distance the 
closest Improvements and/or Structures  are required to be from a Riparian Corridor. 
Building projections (e.g. eaves, awnings, window boxes, and porch overhangs) may 
extend up to two feet into the Riparian Corridor Setback.   

 
 



 -2- 

Section 3. Amendment to Article II, Section 22 (c) (2) (iii) (a) & (b).  Article II, Section 22 
(c) (2) (iii) (a) & (b) of the Subdivision Ordinance are hereby amended in its entirety to read as 
follows: 
 

(iii) Tree Preservation Plan 
a) A tree preservation plan consisting of a tree survey prepared within five years 

preceding the application date with the street and lot layout superimposed at a scale 
of 1”=100’ (or as appropriate) shall be prepared demonstrating that lot lines and 
street layouts have been designed and located and that lot width, depth and size 
flexibility (as permitted by the applicable zoning district if inside the City) has been 
utilized to the maximum extent necessary to retain the maximum number of 
significant trees reasonably practicable.   

b) The applicant shall provide a tree preservation plan that identifies the surveyed 
trees and the mitigation of the protected trees that are proposed for removal.  The 
tree preservation plan is required to be approved by the Director of Planning at the 
time of submission of a preliminary plat application.  Up to fifty (50%) percent of 
the caliper inches of Significant Trees between eight (8) and twenty-six (26) caliper 
inches may be removed without mitigation for single-family and two-family 
subdivisions.  Up to fifty (50%) percent of the caliper inches of Significant Trees 
between eight (8) and eighteen (18) caliper inches may be removed without 
mitigation for subdivisions other than single-family and two family.   

 
 
Section 4. Amendment to Article II, Section 22 (c) (2) (iii) (f) (1).  Article II, Section 22 (c) 
(2) (iii)  (f) (1) of the Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

f) Replacement Trees 
1. Replacement trees shall be a minimum of two (2) caliper inches and identified on 

the City of Leander preferred plant list or included in the Grow Green Guide for 
Native and Adaptive Landscape Plants published by the City of Austin Watershed 
Protection and Texas A&M AgriLife Extension, as amended from time to time.  
The tree preservation plan is required to be approved by the Director of Planning 
prior to submission of a preliminary plat application. 

 
 
Section 5. Amendment to Article II, Section 22 (c) (4) (vii).  Article II, Section 22 (c) (4) 
(vii) of the Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(vii) Copy of the approved tree preservation plan. 

 
 
Section 6. Amendment to Article II, Section 22 (d).  The first paragraph of Article II, Section 
22 (d) of the Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety as to read follows; provided 

 



 -3- 

that subsections (1) through (7) of Article II, Section 22 (d) shall be and remain in full force and 
effect: 
 

(d) Procedure. A Preliminary Plat for any proposed subdivision of land, shall be submitted to 
the City for Commission action after a tree preservation plan is approved by the Director of 
Planning. 

 
 

Section 7. Amendment to Article II, Section 23 (e) (2).  Article II, Section 23 (e) (2) of the 
Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(2) If Construction Plans are approved, then the City Engineer shall sign the cover sheet of 
the Construction Plans and a pre-construction meeting shall be scheduled.  A construction 
plan permit shall be signed and issued during the pre-construction meeting.  A signed 
copy of the plans shall be returned to the applicant and a copy shall be retained for City 
records. 

 
 

Section 8. Amendment to Article II, Section 23 (g).  Article II, Section 23 (g) of the 
Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

(g) Approval Expiration.  The construction plan permit shall expire two years after the date 
that the permit is issued unless an unexpired Final Plat is on file with the City or the Final 
Plat has been approved and that approval has not expired.   

 
 

Section 9. Amendment to Article III, Section 42 (b) (2) (vi).  Article III, Section 42 (b) (2) of 
the Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended to add subsection (vi) to read as follows: 
 

(vi) Private, gated streets may only be approved for local streets and may not be approved 
where the gated, private street would prohibit the connection of the street network 
between neighborhoods or otherwise impair the ability to complete the City’s overall 
transportation network.  

 
 

Section 10. Amendment to Article III, Section 49.  Article III, Section 49 of the Subdivision 
Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

SECTION 49. RIPARIAN CORRIDORS 
 
The intent of these provisions is to control development within Riparian Corridors for the 
purpose of preserving and protecting the natural wildlife.  Riparian Corridors provide 
important functions that contribute to the overall quality of the community including 
enhancing water quality, reducing erosion, and providing important habitat to wildlife.   

 



 -4- 

(a) Riparian Corridor Setbacks shall be based on the following drainage criteria for 
all developments. These setback requirements do not include trails and related 
improvements.  No structure shall be erected or installed within the Riparian 
Corridor Setback. The following Riparian Corridor Setbacks are established: 

1) Creeks draining more than five (5) acres but less than forty (40) acres shall 
have a minimum Riparian Corridor Setback of twenty-five (25’) feet from 
the centerline of the creek or swale. 

2) Creeks draining more than forty (40) acres but less than one hundred 
twenty-eight (128) acres shall have a minimum Riparian Corridor Setback 
of seventy-five (75’) feet from the centerline of the creek or swale. 

3) Creeks draining more than one hundred twenty-eight (128) acres shall 
have a minimum Riparian Corridor Setback of one hundred (100’) feet 
from the centerline of the creek or swale. 

4) A minimum one hundred (100’) foot Riparian Corridor Setback is required 
off of the centerline of creeks identified on the City of Leander Parks, 
Recreation & Open Space Master Plan. 

(b) It is recognized that there are some necessary impacts to the Riparian Corridors.  
The following disturbances shall be allowed in the Riparian Corridor Setbacks  

1) Roadway Crossing 
i. Arterial and Collector Streets identified in the Transportation Plan 

may cross the Riparian Corridor. 
ii. All other Collector Streets not shown on Transportation Plan may 

cross a Riparian Corridor as long as the crossing is one thousand 
(1,000’) feet from a Collector or Arterial Street crossing on the 
same Riparian Corridor.  

iii. A Local Street may cross a Riparian Corridor if necessary to 
provide access to property that cannot otherwise be safely 
accessed. 

2) Stormwater Detention Structures 
i. Stormwater detention is allowed within the Riparian Corridor 

Setback when the detention embankment/structure occupies a 
narrow footprint similar to utility and roadway crossing and no 
excavation takes place within the Riparian Corridor Setbacks. 

3) Underground Utilities   
(c) The Riparian Corridor classification does not apply to a previously modified 

drainage feature serving a public roadway right-of-way that does not possess any 
natural and traditional character and cannot reasonably be restored to a natural 
condition. 

 
 

Section 11. Amendment to Article III, Section 50.  Article III, Section 50 of the Subdivision 
Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

SECTION 50.  TREE PRESERVATION 
 

No Significant Tree shall be removed until a tree preservation plan has been approved by the 
 



 -5- 

Director of Planning in accordance with this Chapter.  Significant Trees may be removed 
only in accordance with the approved tree preservation plan, and trees must be protected 
during construction activities on the property in accordance with the approved tree 
preservation plan.   

 
 
Section 12. Amendment to Article IV, Section 61.  The first paragraph of Article IV, Section 
61 of the Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows; provided that 
subsections (a) through (i) shall be and remain in full force and effect: 
 

SECTION 61.  PARK LAND DEDICATION AND PARK IMPROVEMENTS 
  
Park Land Dedication and Park Improvements Required:  A developer of any 
subdivision subject to this ordinance or a site development permit subject to the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance which includes residential lots, building sites, or multi-family residential 
site development within the City limits  or the City's extra-territorial jurisdiction , that adds 
any residential units to any subdivision or multi-family residential site development, shall 
prepare a park plan to provide for sufficient and suitable park land and park improvements 
for the purpose of public recreation in accordance with the following provisions: 

 
 
Section 13. Amendment to Article V, Section 77 (b).  Article V, Section 77 (b) of the 
Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

SECTION 77.  ENFORCEMENT 
 

(b) Administrative Penalty.  Any person who removes a Significant Tree greater than 8 
inches in caliper prior to approval of a tree preservation plan, or who removes a 
Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper that is not authorized to be removed 
under an approved tree preservation plan shall be charged and shall pay a fee of $300 
per inch for each Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper removed in violation 
of this ordinance.  The City will rely on remaining evidence on site to determine if a 
violation of this ordinance has occurred.  For enforcement purposes the City will 
consider that any stump remaining on the property which is eight inches or more in 
diameter measured at ground level or higher was a stump of a Significant Tree greater 
than 8 inches in caliper.  Furthermore, any cut wood discovered on site will be 
considered evidence of a Significant Tree greater than 8 inches in caliper if the 
diameter of the cut wood is measured at eight inches or greater at any point on any 
piece of cut wood.  A plat or construction plan application for property from which 
one or more Significant Trees have been removed in violation of this ordinance may 
not be approved until an administrative penalty owed under this subsection has been 
paid.   

 
 
Section 14. Conflicting Ordinances.  Exhibit “A”, Section 10.02.001, Article 10.02, Chapter 

 



 -6- 

10, Leander Code of Ordinances is amended as provided herein.  All ordinances or parts thereof 
conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance as adopted herein, are hereby 
amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this 
ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City, the terms and provisions of this ordinance 
shall govern. 
 
 
Section 15. Savings Clause.  All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved 
as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting subdivision within the City 
which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued 
violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under 
such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 
disposition by the courts. 
 
 
Section 16. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
Charter. 
 
 
Section 17. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this ordinance of any 
such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  If any provision of this Ordinance shall 
be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 
Section 18. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the 7th day of July, 2016. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 

 





AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
Executive Summary 

July 7, 2016 

 

Agenda Subject:    Donation Drop Boxes Ordiance 

 
Background:  The Code Enforcement Department has received several complaints 

during the past year on trash and junk around donation drop boxes located throughout the 

city.  Currently there are 16 donation drop boxes inside the city limits of Leander.  There 

are no requirements for them to be permitted or requirements for appearance, fencing, 

and background check for authenticity.  There are two separate charities that we have 

confirmed but cannot verify that have all of the charity drop boxes.  We have been unable 

to speak with all of the owners representing these drop boxes.  The first charity is Arms 

of Hope, which appears to be a reasonable charity but has no connection to the City of 

Leander or Austin area.  The second charity is Pointe of Hope.  Pointe of Hope is 

sponsored by Rock Pointe Church in support of the homeless in Austin. They hand out 

clothes and hygiene items on the 2nd Saturday of each month to the homeless under the 

7th Street Bridge in downtown Austin.  

 

We requested information on what had been done by other cities to address this growing 

issue, the following is a summary from a few cities we contacted based on location and 

facing rapid growth challenges. 

• Cedar Park – No ordinance but have trash issue and currently encourage removal 
when dealing with property owners. 

 
• Georgetown – No ordinance but has trash issue and using trash collecting and 

loading areas ordinance to control.  
 



• Pflugerville – Recently passed ordinance banning stand-alone collection/donation 
boxes.   

• South Lake – Does not allow stand alone donation boxes 
 

• Frisco – Does not allow stand alone donation boxes 
 

I would recommend we ban stand-alone collection/donation boxes in the City of Leander. 

Currently Planning and Zoning have rules for accessory buildings that help with 

appearance, screening, and maintenance of the area that would allow property owners to 

apply for an accessory building to be able to have a donation box on their property if it 

supports their business.   

 

This change could help support local donation program if it was directed to appropriate 

locations and definitely clean up several areas of the community that regularly on the 

weekends become junk and trash collection points.   

 

Origination:   Bill Gardner, Fire Chief 

 
Recommendation:     Staff move forward to bring ordinance for a change to City 

Council for approval.  

 
Attachments:    Ordinance to be added 

    

 
Prepared by:  Bill Gardner 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Drop Box Locations 
 

1.) Dollar General  (1 box) 
2802 Bagdad Rd  

2.) Camco Mart (1box) 
1912 Bagdad Rd  

3.) 7-11 (1box) 
1870 Bagdad Rd 

4.) Bagdad Headstart CDC (1box) 
351 Bagdad Rd 

5.) Mouton’s Southern Bistro (1 box) 
509 183 N  

6.) La Tapatia (old location) (1 box) 
109 183 N  

7.) Leander Inspection Station (1 box) 
101 183 N  

8.) Leander Chiropractic Center (1 box) 
211 Hwy 183 S 

9.) Old Auto Parts Store next to Jardin Del Rey (1 box) 
603 183 S  

10.) Gateway at Leander (3 boxes) 
Gateway Shopping Center 

11.) Great Value Storage (1box) 
2407 Hwy 183 S 

12.) Kingdom Kids Daycare (1 box) 
805 Crystal Falls Pkwy  

13.) Dollar Tree (1 box) 
600 Crystal Falls 

14.) Tucker Dental (1 box) 
10703 Crystal Falls Pkwy  

15.) RockPointe Church (1 box) 
1070 CR 177 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________________________  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LEANDER BY ADDING 
ARTICLE 6.08, DONATION CONTAINERS, TO CHAPTER 6, HEALTH AND 
SANITATION, REGARDING THE PERMITTING, LOCATION AND 
CONDITION OF DONATION CONTAINERS; PROVIDING FOR 
ABATEMENT; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00); 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, SAVINGS, OPEN MEETINGS AND 
EFFECTIVE DATE CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS. 

 
WHEREAS, combating illegal dumping and refuse is a rightful concern of the City of Leander, 
Texas (“City”);  

 
WHEREAS, the City has experienced a growing problem with illegal dumping occurring a t  
o r  around “donation containers” located within the City's jurisdiction;  

 
WHEREAS, many donation containers are not regularly collected, causing unsightly overflow; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, “donation containers” continue to proliferate within the City's jurisdiction;  
 
WHEREAS, people leaving used items at donation containers often leave items outside of said 
containers resulting in unsightly and sometimes unhealthy conditions;  

 
WHEREAS, used items left at donation containers are frequently broken, torn or soiled items that 
otherwise constitute trash, rubbish or junk; 
 
WHEREAS, Section 217.042 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes a home rule 
municipality to define and abate nuisances within the corporate limits of the municipality and in the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction within 5,000 feet outside the city limits; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City finds that the unregulated location and operation of 
donation containers negatively impacts property values and the health, safety and welfare of the 
community; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City further finds it to be in the public interest to amend the 
Code of Ordinances of the City by adopting regulations regarding the permitting, location, 
operation and condition of donation containers within the City and surrounding areas. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS THAT: 

 
Section 1.  Findings of Fact.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amending Chapter 6, Health and Sanitation, Leander Code of Ordinances by adding 



Article 6.08, Donation Containers.   Article 6.08, Leander Code of Ordinances, is hereby added to read 
as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 6.08 DONATION CONTAINERS 
 
Sec. 6.08.001  Definitions 
 

    1.   Donation container means any box, structure,  container, trailer or other 
receptacle, whether permanently or temporarily affixed or placed on real property, 
that is intended for use as a collection point for clothing, other household 
materials or other new and/or used personal property to be donated to a charitable 
organization; the term does not include recycle bins or any donation container 
located within a building. 
 

2. Building means a commercial building lawfully occupied by a business or 
charitable organization pursuant to a valid certificate of occupancy. 

 
3. Person i ncludes an individual, sole proprietorship, corporation, 

association, nonprofit corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, 
estate, trust, public or private organization that is not a state agency, business trust, 
public corporation, or any other legal or commercial entity. 

4. Recycle Bin means a receptacle used for the collection of recyclable 
materials governed or regulated by the City’s zoning code. 

 
Sec. 6.08.002  Permit Required 
 
(a)  It shall be unlawful to locate a donation container within the City or within 5,000 feet outside 
of the City limits without first obtaining a permit from the City. 
 
(b)  To obtain a permit, a person must show: 
 

1. A sketch indicating the location where the donation container will be placed and the 
dimensions of the container;  
 
2. Be the property owner, property manager, or person who has a right to possess the property, 
indicating that the donation container may be placed on the property and acknowledging that 
they will be held responsible for maintenance of the area around the donation container; and  
 
3. That the donation container will comply with all requirements of this Article. 

 
(c) Only nonprofit charitable organizations that serve the local community and have obtained a 
determination letter pursuant to 26 USC 501 (c)(3) may obtain a permit to locate donation containers 
within the City or within 5,000 feet outside of the City limits. 
 
(d) Permits are non-transferable. 
 
Sec. 6.08.003  Placement  
 
(a) Donation containers shall not be located within any residential zoning district. 
(b) No more than one donation container may be located on a single platted lot or unplatted 



tract of land. 
 
(c) A donation container shall not be located closer than 300 feet from another donation 
container even if located on different tracts of land or lots. 
 
(d) A donation container shall not be located within ten (10) feet of the travelled portion of any 
street, road or highway or placed in a manner that blocks driveways, interferes with traffic flow or 
visibility.  
 
(e) A donation container shall not be located within any right-of-way or easement dedicated to 
and/or owned by any governmental entity. 
 
(f) A donation container shall not be located at any location the City determines:   
 

1. May pose a safety hazard to the public; 
 
2. Constitutes an obstruction to traffic entering, exiting or circulating within the property 
on which the donation container is located; 
 
3. Constitutes an obstruction to pedestrian traffic using any public sidewalk; or 
 
4. Constitutes an obstruction to the flow of surface water on the property such that surface 
water will be diverted to other properties or otherwise inhibits or prevents surface water 
from draining to an existing drainage facility. 

 
Sec. 6.08.004  Construction  
 
Donation containers must:  

 
1. Be constructed of metal, fiber glass or wood;  
 
2. Labeled “No Dumping” and also indicate the name, address and telephone number of 
the organization and party responsible for collection;  
 
3. Be secured at all times, except when they are being emptied;  
 
4. Have a lid or a top to protect the contents from the weather;  
 
5. Be no larger than 120 cubic feet. 
 

Sec. 6.08.005  Maintenance 
 
(a) The area around the donation container shall be kept free of any junk, debris or other materials 
and shall be emptied often enough so that the donations do not overflow.  
 
(b) Donation containers shall be maintained in good condition and appearance with no structural 
damage, holes, or visible rust. Containers shall be kept free of graffiti.  
 
(c) The City shall give the permit holder seventy-two (72) hours written notice to clear any debris. If 



the debris is not cleared, the City may clear the debris and bill the property owner for the cost to 
abate any violation.  
 
Sec. 6.08.006  Existing Donation Containers 
 
(a) Operators of existing donation containers or the owner of the property on which the container is 
located shall be given oral notice that they have thirty (30) days to obtain a permit. If the operators or 
owners do not apply for a permit, the operators and the property owners have thirty (30) days to 
remove the donation containers or the property owners may give the City permission to remove the 
donation containers.  
 
(b) If an operator or property owner cannot be reached, a letter will be mailed to either the address of 
the property owner listed on the appraisal district records or the address on the donation container, if 
available, or both. Notice shall also be posted on the donation container itself.  The operator or 
property owner shall have thirty (30) days from the day a letter is mailed or posted on the container 
to obtain a permit.  
 
(c) If the city removes the donation container, the property owner or the operator shall be billed the 
removal and storage costs. 
 
(d) Donation containers located closer than three hundred (300) feet shall not be required to be 
moved to comply with Sec. 6.08.003(c). 
 
(e) Notwithstanding paragraph (d) of this section, a donation container that was located less than 
300 feet from another donation container that is removed from such location for more than three 
(3) days must be relocated to a location that complies with Sec. 6.08.003(c). 
 
 Sec. 6.08.007  Permit Revocation 
 
(a) The City may revoke a permit for failure of the operator or property owner to comply with 
the requirements in this Article. The operator or owner may appeal the revocation to the City 
Manager or their designee within 72 hours of the revocation notice. The City Manager’s or their 
designee’s decision shall be final. 
 
(b) The donation container must be removed within seven (7) days of the permit revocation or 
appeal hearing, as applicable. If not removed within seven (7) days, the City may have it 
removed and the operator or property owner shall be billed the removal and storage costs.  
 
(c) A donation container impounded by the City shall be released to the owner upon the 
payment of an impound fee of $200.00, and a daily storage fee of $20.00 for each day in City 
possession after impound. Any impounded donation container not claimed within thirty (30) 
days after impoundment may be destroyed without further notice from the City. 
 

Section 3.  Enforcement.  The Leander Police Department, Fire Department, Code Enforcement 
Department or authorized designee are authorized to enforce the provisions of this Article. 
 
Section 4.  Penalty Clause.  Any person convicted of violating any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine in an amount not to exceed Two Thousand Dollars 
($2000.00). Each and every day such violation shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate 
offense.  



 
Section 5.   Savings Clause.  All rights and remedies of the City are expressly saved as to any and all 
violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting donation containers within the City which have 
accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all 
pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such ordinances, same 
shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 6.  Conflicting Ordinances.  All prior ordinances of the City dealing with or applicable to 
donation containers are hereby amended only to the extent of any conflict with the amendments set forth 
herein, and all ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this 
Ordinance as adopted and amended herein are hereby amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the 
event of a conflict or inconsistency between this Ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City, 
the terms and provisions of this Ordinance shall govern. 
 
Section 7. Severability.  Should any section or part of this Ordinance be held unconstitutional, illegal, or 
invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof ineffective or inapplicable, such 
unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such section or part shall in no way affect, 
impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; but as to such remaining portion or 
portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this 
Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
  
Section 8.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
Section 9.   Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and 
purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the              day of                                          , 2016. 
 
  
ATTEST:            City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
  
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 7, 2016 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Standard Professional Services and Task 
Order WAL-1 with Walker Partners Engineering, Inc., for Design, Bidding, and 
Construction Phase Professional Services for Raider Way and E. Woodview Drive 
Roadway Improvements Project 
 
Background:  Task Order WAL-1 provides for the design, bidding, and construction 
phase professional services for the improvements at Raider Way and E. Woodview Drive 
Roadway Improvements Project. This proposed work will include preliminary design, 
utility coordination final design and construction phases for project improvements which 
will include widening each roadway to a width of 45’ of pavement with curb, gutter, 
storm sewer, street lighting, utility relocations, water quality services, 6’ and 8’ 
sidewalks, turn lanes and signal modifications at Crystal Falls Parkway.  
 
The total compensation for the Raider Way and E. Woodview Drive Roadway 
Improvements Project shall be on a lump sum basis of $755,360.00 as described in the 
fee schedule attached to the task order. The Engineer will review design schedule and 
prepare monthly progress reports for review by the City over the length of the contract 
period. Lump sum invoices for work performed, based on percent complete, will be 
submitted monthly by the engineer. Final payment shall be due upon completion of the 
services described.  
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $755,360.00 from General Purpose CIP Fund, GL# TBD 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests authorization of the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute the Standard Professional Services and Task Order WAL-1. 
 
Attachments:  Standard Professional Services and Task Order WAL-1 with supporting 
documentation  

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

































TASK ORDER FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

TASK ORDER NO. WAL-1 
 
This will constitute authorization by the City of Leander, Texas (Owner), for Walker Partners Engineering, 
Inc., Austin, Texas (Engineer), to proceed with the following described engineering services. 
 

RAIDER WAY AND E. WOODVIEW DRIVE – DESIGN SERVICES 
(Crystal Falls Pkwy to TX-183A Toll Road) 

               
 
A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
The City of Leander has requested that Walker Partners Engineering, Inc. perform the design for 
improvements at Raider Way and Eastview Drive.  The proposed project will include preliminary design, 
utility coordination and construction phases for project improvements which will include widening each 
roadway to a width of 45’ of pavement with curb, gutter, storm sewer, street lighting, water quality 
services, 6’ and 8’ dual use sidewalks, turn lanes and possible signal modifications at Crystal Falls 
Parkway 
 
B. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Walker Partners will provide design services as described in the attached Scope of Services.     

 
 
C. DELIVERABLES 
 
Walker Partners will provide deliverables as described in the attached Scope of Services. 
 
 
D.   BASIS OF COMPENSATION 
 
The total compensation for the Raider Way and E. Woodview Drive project shall be on a full lump sum 
basis of $755,360.00 (see Attachment 1 – Fee Schedule). The Engineer will review design schedule and 
prepare monthly progress reports for review by the City over the length of the contract period  Lump sum 
invoices for work performed, based on percent complete, will be submitted monthly by the engineer. 
Final payment shall be due upon completion of the services described. 
 
 
E. TIME FOR COMPLETION 
 
The Engineer will work expeditiously to complete the services described herein.  Design phase services 
are anticipated to take approximately 4 months.   
 

TASK ORDER NO. WAL-1  Page 1 of 1 7/1/2016 



 
Walker Partners will begin work as soon as authorized and as services are requested.  Design and 
construction phase services are anticipated to be completed within 16 months after notice to proceed. 
   
 
APPROVED: 

 
ACCEPTED: 

  
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS WALKER PARTNERS ENGINEERING, INC> 
  
  
By  ______________________________ By  ______________________________ 
 Kent Cagle  John Lindner, P.E. 
 City Manager  Chief Operating Officer 
  
Attest  ____________________ Attest  ____________________ 
  
Date    ____________________ Date    ____________________ 
 

TASK ORDER NO. WAL-1  Page 2 of 1 7/1/2016 

















 

  
 

6850 Austin Center Blvd., Suite 150 
Austin, Texas  78731 

 
EXHIBIT C 

RAIDER WAY ROAD 
 
Work Schedule: 
 

City Issue Notice to Proceed 
 
Task 1 – Kickoff Meeting, Data Collection       2 weeks 
 
Task 2 – Survey            6 weeks 
 
Task 3 – Concept Design          4 weeks 
 
Task 4 – Preliminary Design 30% Plans       12 weeks 
 
 City Review          1 week 
 
Task 5 – Final Design 75% Plans, including Easement Documents    8 weeks 
 
 City Review          1 week 
 
Task 6 – Final Design 100% Plans        10 weeks 
 
  Design Phase Subtotal       44 weeks 
 
                           
Task 7 – Bidding Phase         4 weeks 
 
Task 8 – Contractor Selection & Award       2 weeks 
  
 City Contract Execution        4 weeks 
 
Task 9 – Construction Phase        40 weeks 
 
Task 10 – Final Inspection & Acceptance       2 weeks 
 
  Bidding & Construction Phase Subtotal     52 weeks 
 

 
Project Duration         96 weeks 

www.WalkerPartners.com  
  
TBPE Registration No. 8053  |  TBPLS Registration No. 10032500 
Attachment 4 - Work Schedule- Raider Way Rd  

 



AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 7, 2016 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Amendment to Task Order HWL-1 with H. 
W. Lochner, Inc., for Professional Services for Bagdad Road North Improvements. 
 
Background:  Task Order HWL-1 provides for professional services for the design, 
advertising, bidding, and construction services for Bagdad Road North Improvements 
extending from 500 feet north of Old 2243 West to CR-280.  The improvements will 
consist of widening the current two lane section to a five lane section with curb, gutter, 
and sidewalks.  Compensation for the scope of work in Task Order HWL-1 is a 
combination of a lump sum amount of $161,527.00 and time and materials not to exceed 
$100,055.00, for a combined, initial contract total of $261,582.00.   
 
This proposed amendment covers changes in the scope of work as summarized the 
attached Bagdad Road Supplemental Fee Letter, which will be formatted into 
Amendment to Task Order HWL-1.  The compensation for this scope of work is the lump 
sum amount of $110,431.00. 
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $110,431.00 from General Purpose CIP Fund, GL#40-04-
8028 
- 
Recommendation:  Staff requests authorization of the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute Amendment to Task Order HWL-1. 
 
Attachments:  Bagdad Road Supplemental Fee Letter (basis of Amendment to Task 
Order HWL-1) 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 





Section 9 - SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES 
Principal PM Proj. Eng. EIT Tech Admin. Total Hrs. Total Cost

Signal design at San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad Road 4 12 30 40 86 10,319$            
Signal design at Collaberative Way and Bagdad Road 8 20 40 40 108 13,413$            
Removal of detention pond and design of 3 new inline water quality systems 8 20 20 20 68 9,094$              
Adjustment of the Contributing Zone Plan 8 16 20 12 56 7,562$              
Stormsewer adjustment for water quality 2 8 20 12 42 5,058$              
Preliminary design and cost estimate of enclosing the ditch 8 16 16 16 56 7,615$              
Break out Sidewalk as a separate project and bidding package 16 24 40 40 120 15,727$            
Design 3 lane section (modify limits, tcp, drainage, typicals, XS, signing, striping, 
quanitities, ROW, signal, sidewalk, etc.) 48 72 88 100 308 41,644$            

Subtotal Estimated Labor (Hrs.) 0 102 188 274 280 0 844
Hourly Salary Cost (Including O/H and Profit) $310.80 $212.38 $153.78 $101.43 $114.52 $81.80

SUBTOTAL SALARY COSTS -$               21,663$     28,911$  27,792$     32,066$     -$               110,431$          
110,431$        

FEE & LABOR SCHEDULE
City of Leander, Texas

Bagdad Road 

SUBTOTAL PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PHASE SERVICES 



AGENDA ITEM # 15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 7, 2016 

 

Council Agenda Subject:   Consider a variance to allow for construction activities 
outside of the normal hours of 7 a.m. to 9 p.m. for Suddenlink Communications on the 
Old 2243 Project.  
 
 
Background:   
 

Suddenlink Communications is requesting a variance to work at night on the Old 2243 
Project to minimize disruption to the 911 System. The work is to occur from 12:00 a.m. 
(midnight) to 7:00 a.m. on Thursday, July 14th.  
 
Suddenlink Communications has agreed to make every effort to communicate with 
properties neighboring the construction site and take all reasonable precautions to reduce 
late night disturbances.  The City will also post a notice on its website regarding the dates 
and times of the nighttime operation. 
 
 
 

Origination:  Terri A. Crauford, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  Not Applicable 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends a variance to the construction noise ordinance to 
allow Suddenlink Communications to work at night in order to minimize disruption to the 
911 System. 
 
Attachments:   Email Request and Location Map 
 
Prepared by:   Terri A. Crauford, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
 







jeffrey.bow
Typewritten Text
1-24 Cnt fed from G203XNo Ring Cut on 96 Cnt.

jeffrey.bow
Polygon

jeffrey.bow
Line

jeffrey.bow
Text Box
July 14th Night Work Location 



jeffrey.bow
Typewritten Text
Add Power Feed 

jeffrey.bow
Polygon

jeffrey.bow
Line

jeffrey.bow
Line

jeffrey.bow
Typewritten Text
Add new enclosure- 96 Cnt Terminates this location. Tie in to existing fiber for Hawks landing Add UGV.

jeffrey.bow
Rectangle

jeffrey.bow
Polygon

jeffrey.bow
Line

jeffrey.bow
Typewritten Text
Complete Vault Locations and Footage to Lakeline Blvd.Per RTB submittal.

jeffrey.bow
Line

jeffrey.bow
Line

jeffrey.bow
Polygon

jeffrey.bow
Text Box
July 14th Night Work Location 



jeffrey.bow
Text Box
July 14th Night Work Location

jeffrey.bow
Text Box
July 14th Night Work Location

jeffrey.bow
Text Box
July 14th Night Work Location



jeffrey.bow
Text Box
July 14th Night Work Location 

jeffrey.bow
Text Box
July 14th Night Work Location 





AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 7, 2016 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Discussion and possible action to approve an amendment to the 

Sales Tax Rebate Agreement for the Gateway Shopping Center 
between the City of Leander and Hayden Asset I, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company.  

 
Background: This amendment modifies the agreement to end the sales tax rebate 

at the end of 2016 as opposed to the term in the current agreement 
which ends the end of 2018. 

 
 This amendment is conditioned upon the City agreeing that the 

project approvals allow for the construction of a Goodwill store in 
the shopping center. 

 
 
Origination: Applicant:  Chase Belew on behalf of Hayden Asset I, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company 
 
Financial  
Consideration: The reduced term of the agreement will reduce the total sales tax 

rebates by approximately $1,135,000. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the amendment.  
 
Attachments: 1.  Development Agreement amendment 
 2.  Location Exhibit  
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  06/29//2016 
 



AMENDMENT TO THE SALES TAX REBATE AGREEMENT  
FOR THE GATEWAY SHOPPING CENTER 

 
This Amendment to the Sales Tax Rebate Agreement for the Gateway Shopping Center 

(the “Amendment”) is made, entered into and effective as of __________ (the “Effective Date”) 
by the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) and Hayden Assets I, LLC, a New York limited 
liability company (the “Developer“).  The City and the Developer are herein referred to together 
as the “Parties”. 

Recitals: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties entered that certain Sales Tax Rebate Agreement for the Gateway 
Shopping Center dated effective as of the 6th day of April, 2007 (the “Rebate Agreement”) , as well 
as that certain Development Agreement for the Gateway Shopping Center dated effective as of the 
6th day of April, 2007 (the “Development Agreement”);  
 
 WHEREAS, the Rebate Agreement was assigned to SY Loan Y, LP., a Delaware limited 
liability company, and was subsequently assigned to the Developer; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Rebate Agreement to provide for the Rebate 
Agreement to expire earlier than the original term; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual agreements, covenants, 
and conditions contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  RECITALS; DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein and made a part of this 
Amendment for all purposes. 

Section 2.  Definitions.  Words and phrases used in this Amendment shall, if defined in the Rebate 
Agreement and not specifically modified by this Amendment, shall have the definition and meaning 
as provided in the Rebate Agreement. 
 
Section 3.  Amendments. 
 

(a) Section 1(i) of the Rebate Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as 
follows: 

 
(i) Reserved. 

 
(b) Section 1(k) of the Rebate Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as 

follows: 
 

Gateway Sales Tax Rebate Agreement Amendment –7/1/16 
 



 2 

 (k) “Quarterly Incentive Payment” and “Quarterly Incentive Payments” mean 
the quarterly incentive payments for the four calendar quarters in each of the full 
Calendar Years that follow the Issuance Date through and including the last calendar 
quarter of Calendar Year 2016, as described in Section 3(a) below. 

 
(c) Section 2 of the Rebate Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

 
Section 2.  Term.  The term of this Rebate Agreement begins on the Effective Date 
and expires on the date of the City payment to Developer of the sales tax rebate 
amount due and payable for the last calendar quarter for Calendar Year 2016 (the 
“Term”).  The change in the end of term from the original Rebate Agreement is 
contingent on the City signing a letter in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
stating that the PUD zoning applicable to the Property allows a Goodwill store to be 
built in the Gateway Shopping Center. 
 

(d) Section 3(a)(i) of the Rebate Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as 
follows: 
 

(i)  The Sales Tax received by the City for the first calendar quarter of the first 
Calendar Year following the Issuance Date and the Sales Tax thereafter received by 
the City for each calendar year up to and including the last calendar quarter of 
Calendar Year 2016 will be deposited into a special account of the City.  The 
amounts deposited into the separate account will be paid to the Developer on or 
before the 30th day of the calendar month that follows the month in which the 
deposit is made.  The Sales Tax received by the City for the calendar quarters 
through and including the last calendar quarter of Calendar Year 2016 following the 
Issuance Date will be deposited and paid out to the Developer in arrears.  Such 
rebates will terminate on the first to occur of the Developer having received a rebate 
for each calendar quarter beginning with the first calendar quarter of the first 
Calendar Year following the Issuance Date through and including the last calendar 
quarter of Calendar Year 2016 or the Developer having received Sales Tax rebates 
equal (in the aggregate) to the Rebate Amount.  The City will rebate to the 
Developer fifty percent (50%) of the City’s portion of the sales and use taxes that are 
collected (on the sales of taxable items by the Retail Occupants for sales occurring 
during the Calendar Years that follow the Issuance Date as provided in this Rebate 
Agreement) and remitted to the Comptroller of the State of Texas and paid to the 
City. 
 

(e) Section 3(c) of the Rebate Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as 
follows: 

 
(c)   Notwithstanding any other term or provision of this Rebate Agreement to the 
contrary, in no event shall the City rebate sales taxes to the Developer: (i) in a total 
amount that exceeds the Rebate Amount; or (ii) for sales taxes received by the City 
for a Calendar Year after Calendar Year 2016.  The rebate of sales taxes shall 

Gateway Sales Tax Rebate Agreement Amendment – Draft 7/1/16 
 



 3 

terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) the payment to the City to the Developer of 
sales tax rebates in the aggregate to the Rebate Amount; or (ii) the payment to the 
Developer of the quarterly payments provided in Subsection 3(a) above.  

 
(f) Section 8 of the Rebate Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

 
Section 8.  Representations, Covenants and Warranties by the City.  The City 
represents and warrants that this Rebate Agreement is within the scope of its 
authority, and that it is duly authorized and empowered to enter into this Rebate 
Agreement.   

 
(g)  The first paragraph of Section 15 is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows, 

and the second paragraph of Section 15 is not amended by this Amendment: 
 

Section 15.  Applicable Law.  This Rebate Agreement is made and all obligations 
arising hereunder shall be construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of 
Texas, and venue for any dispute arising herefrom shall lie in Williamson County, 
Texas.  It is the parties’ intent that in the event a Quarterly Incentive Payment to be 
made to Developer as described herein has been mistakenly identified and/or designated 
by the parties hereto and the Developer is not in default under the Development 
Agreement or this Rebate Agreement, that the trier-of-fact shall broadly construe the 
such Payment so as to make the Payment to Developer valid under any law, rule, 
ordinance, regulations, or code then in effect; and to so construe the nature of the 
Payment, under law or in equity, so as to avoid a forfeiture by Developer of such 
Payment and/or to avoid unjustly enriching the City as a result of such forfeiture, 
including, but not limited to, designating the Payment as a rebate of sales tax, an 
economic development incentive, an annual grant, an economic grant, or as otherwise 
allowed by law, or, if Developer has not defaulted, to order restitution from the City to 
Developer payable from one-half the City Sales Taxes that are collected and paid to the 
City, from the Retail Occupants located in the Shopping Center for each calendar 
quarter beginning with the first calendar quarter of the first Calendar Year following the 
Issuance Date through and including the last calendar quarter of Calendar Year 2016; 
provided that in no event shall any such restitution amount ever exceed the lower of 
such one-half of such sales taxes or the actual cost of Developer in designing and 
constructing the Drainage Improvements.  To the extent allowed by law, the parties 
agree to the reformation of this Rebate Agreement to the extent necessary in order to 
validate the payment to Developer under the terms and conditions hereunder or under 
any terms and conditions allowed by law, and the City waives all defenses to payment to 
Developer, except the defense of Developer’s non-compliance and/or default under this 
Rebate Agreement. 

 
Section 4.  General Provisions. 
 
(a) This Amendment, together with the Agreement, set forth the entire understanding of the 

parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, with 
Gateway Sales Tax Rebate Agreement Amendment – Draft 7/1/16 
 



 4 

respect to the subject matter hereof. 
 

(b) The terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon the Developer and its successors and 
assigns.   

 
(c) The Parties agree that, except as modified hereby, the Rebate Agreement remains valid, 

binding, and in full force and effect.  If there is any conflict or inconsistency between this 
Amendment and the Rebate Agreement, this Amendment will control and modify the Rebate 
Agreement. 

 
(d) This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, including, without 

limitation, facsimile counterparts, with the same effect as if the parties had signed the same 
document, and all counterparts will constitute one and the same agreement. 

 
 Executed as of ___ day of ___, 2016 and Effective upon execution by all Parties.  

City of Leander, Texas  

 
______________________  
Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 
Attest:  
 
 
______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 

 
[Additional Signature Pages Follow] 

  

Gateway Sales Tax Rebate Agreement Amendment – Draft 7/1/16 
 



 5 

Hayden Asset I, LLC, a New York limited liability company 
 
By: _________________________ 
Name: _________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 
 
  

Gateway Sales Tax Rebate Agreement Amendment – Draft 7/1/16 
 



 6 

Exhibit A 

Gateway Sales Tax Rebate Agreement Amendment – Draft 7/1/16 
 



OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MAGNOLIA CREEK

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 7
COUNTY GLEN,SEC 5 COUNTY GLEN,SEC 1

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 2
HIGHWAYVILLAGE

HIGHCHAPARRAL

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

HORIZONPARK, SEC 1

HORIZONPARK, SEC 4

HORIZONPARK, SEC 2

5D

5D

3A

5D

3A

5D

5C

4C

5D

5D

4C

4C

4C4C

4C

2A

5D

S 
US

 18
3

S 
W

ES
T D

R

GL
AS

S 
DR

LEANDER DR

LA
CY

 D
R

SHEILA DR

HIGH CHAPARRAL DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

UNION ST

TULA TRL

TYRONE DR

STANFORD DR

LONE OAK DR

SNOW GOOSE

BRENTWOOD DR

ALSATIAN LN

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

SO
NNY D

R

DRAKE CV

CALLE ST

LOS VISTA DR

KILLARNEY DR

BONITA VERDE DR

LONDONDERRY DR

MA
LL

AR
D 

LA
KE

 TR
L

CANADIAN CV

KW
AI

 C
V

GR
EY

BA
CK

 D
R

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

16-DA-004
Development Agreement

Attachment #2
Location Exhibit
Gateway

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits



AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 7, 2016 

 
 
Subject: Discussion and possible action to accept a Community Development Block Grant for 
the construction of a sidewalk on the east side of Bagdad Road  
 
Background: Williamson County has awarded an $180,000 Community Development Block 
Grant (CBDG) to the City to construct a 6’ wide sidewalk on the east side of Bagdad Road from 
Los Vista to Sonny Drive. The total estimated cost of the project is $225,300 and the City’s 
share will be $45,300. The City’s share will pay for construction design and management 
($34,400) and the rest will be spent on construction.   
 
Financial Consideration: $45,300 from the General Fund 
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends Council approval to accept the $180,000 
Community Development Block Grant.  Staff further recommends authorization for the City 
Manager to execute all grant documents. 
 
Attachments:  

1. CBDG Grant Agreement 
2. Information on HUD's new Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing rule 

 
Prepared by:  Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 



https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2015/07/16/2015-17032/affirmatively-furthering-fair-
housing#h-23 

AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING FAIR HOUSING 

III. Overview of Final Rule—Key Changes Made at Final Rule Stage 

In the proposed rule, HUD solicited public comment on the new AFH process and included 19 issues for 
which HUD specifically solicited comment. In Section IV of this preamble, HUD provides a summary of 
the significant comments raised by the public comments and provides HUD's response to these issues. 
HUD received more than 1,000 public comments on the July 19, 2013, proposed rule. HUD appreciates 
all the questions raised, and suggestions and recommendations made by the public commenters. After 
review and consideration of the public comments and upon further consideration of issues by HUD, the 
following highlights key clarifications and changes made by HUD in this final rule. 
The final rule: 
Clarifies that HUD supports a balanced approach to affirmatively furthering fair housing by revising the 
“Purpose” section of the rule and the definition of “affirmatively furthering fair housing.” Also, HUD has 
created a new provision listing goals and priorities a program participant may take to affirmatively 
further fair housing, which may include, but are not limited to, place-based solutions and options to 
increase mobility for protected classes. (See §§ 5.150, 5.152, and 5.154.) 
Replaces the term “proactive steps” in the definition of “affirmatively furthering fair housing” with the 
term “meaningful actions” and defines “meaningful actions.” (See § 5.152.) 
Revises the definition of “Assessment Tool” to advise that the tool is not solely a single form or 
template, but refers to any form or template issued by HUD as an Assessment Tool for the AFH and 
includes instructions. The definition makes clear that HUD may issue different Assessment Tools for 
different types of program participants. 
Clarifies, through the addition of a new § 5.151, that implementation of the new AFH process 
commences for a program participant when the Assessment Tool designated for use by the program 
participant has been approved by OMB, and the availability for use of such Assessment Tool is published 
in the Federal Register. 
Adds a definition of “data” to collectively refer to “HUD-provided data” and “local data,” both of which 
terms are also defined. (See § 5.152.) 
Replaces the term “determinant” with a more plain language term—“fair housing contributing factor” or 
simply “contributing factor.” (See § 5.152.) 
Adds a definition of “disability.” (See § 5.152.) 
Clarifies when disproportionate housing needs exist by revising the definition of “disproportionate 
housing needs.” (See § 5.152.) 
Revises the definitions of “fair housing choice” and “fair housing issue” by removing outdated 
terminology (i.e.,“handicap”) and making certain additional clarifying changes. (See § 5.152.) 

https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2015/07/16/2015-17032/affirmatively-furthering-fair-housing%23h-23
https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2015/07/16/2015-17032/affirmatively-furthering-fair-housing%23h-23


Adds a definition of “geographic area” which refers to the area of analysis of a program participant that 
may be a jurisdiction, region, state, Core-Based Statistical Area (CBSA), or another applicable area, 
depending on the area served by the program participant. (See § 5.152.) 
Adds a definition of “housing programs serving specified populations” to clarify that participation in HUD 
and Federal housing programs serving specified populations does not present a fair housing issue of 
segregation, provided that such programs comply with the program regulations and applicable Federal 
civil rights statutes and regulations. (See § 5.152.) 
Revises the definition of “integration” to provide greater clarity as to the meaning of this term. (See § 
5.152.) 
Adds a definition of “local knowledge” based on and consistent with the description of such term in the 
Assessment Tool. (See § 5.152.) 
Revises the definition of “segregation” to provide greater clarity. (See § 5.152.) 
Adds a definition of “qualified PHA.” (See § 5.152.) 
Revises and clarifies how the analysis of data and the identification of fair housing priorities and goals 
should be undertaken, including emphasizing that the program participant is responsible for establishing 
appropriate priorities and goals. (See § 5.154(d).) 
Clarifies that although regionally collaborating program participants need not be contiguous and may 
cross state boundaries, regionally collaborating program participants should be located within the same 
CBSA, as defined by OMB at the time of submission of the regional AFH, but HUD allows for exceptions. 
(See § 5.156.) 
Emphasizes that “acceptance” of an AFH means only that, for purposes of administering HUD program 
funding, HUD has determined that the program participant has provided an AFH that meets the required 
elements. Acceptance does not mean that the program participant has complied with its obligation to 
affirmatively further fair housing under the Fair Housing Act; has complied with other provisions of the 
Fair Housing Act; or has complied with other civil rights laws and regulations. (See § 5.162.) 
Provides a staggered submission deadline for AFHs; that is, the rule specifies the order of submission by 
which program participants will submit their first AFH. The rule provides that entitlement jurisdictions 
receiving an FY 2015 CDBG grant of $500,000 or less, States, Insular Areas, and PHAs will submit their 
first AFH in the second stage of submission, or at such time as the Assessment Tool specifically 
applicable to one of these program participants has been approved by OMB and announced by HUD as 
available for use. The Assessment Tool specifically applicable to a program participant will specify the 
first-AFH submission deadline, and will ensure the same level of transition as provided for entitlement 
jurisdictions, which will be the first program participants to submit an AFH. (See § 5.160(a).) 
Allows PHAs, whether submitting an AFH as part of participation with their consolidated plan program 
participants, other PHAs, or on their own, to submit an AFH every 5 years, imposing on PHAs similar 
requirements to those placed on jurisdictions subject to the consolidated plan requirements. (See §§ 
5.160 and 903.15.) 



Provides that a program participant that undertook a Regional AI in connection with a grant awarded 
under HUD's FY 2010 or 2011 Sustainable Communities Competition is not required to undertake an AFH 
for the first AFH submission stage. (See § 5.160(a).) 
Clarifies the conditions under which HUD may not accept an AFH, and provides examples of an AFH that 
is substantially incomplete with respect to the fair housing assessment, and examples of an AFH that is 
inconsistent with fair housing and civil rights requirements; and emphasizes that HUD will work with 
program participants to achieve an AFH that is accepted. (See § 5.162.) 
Provides greater flexibility to program participants in determining when a program participant must 
revise an AFH, and specifies conditions when HUD may intervene and require a program participant to 
revise an AFH, but also provides program participants with the opportunity to disagree with HUD's 
determination. HUD also expands the time frame in which to revise an AFH. (See § 5.164.) 
Revises for PHAs the three options provided in the proposed rule by which a PHA may conduct and 
submit an AFH. (See § 903.15.) 
Adds a new “certification” provision, which clarifies that program participants must certify that they will 
affirmatively further fair housing when required by statutes and regulations governing their programs, 
and provides that challenges to the certifications will follow the procedures for consolidated plan 
program participants in 24 CFR part 91 and for PHA Plan program participants in 24 CFR part 903, as 
revised in this final rule. (See § 5.166.) 
Moves fair housing-related material from § 903.2(d) to § 903.15(d). 
In addition to these changes, HUD also corrected editorial and technical errors identified by the 
commenters. HUD believes that these changes, more fully discussed below, respond to commenters' 
requests that they be given more clarity, more flexibility, and more time in fair housing planning. 



 AGREEMENT BETWEEN WILLIAMSON COUNTY 

 AND THE CITY OF LEANDER  

 FOR THE USE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS  

FISCAL YEAR 2015 FUNDING 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this ___ day of _________, 2016, by and between Williamson 
County ("County"), and the City of Leander ("Subrecipient"); 
 
WHEREAS, the County is the recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds 
granted by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. 5301) and under the 
1990 National Affordable Housing Act (Public Law 102-550); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to utilize CDBG funds to assist Subrecipient in the construction of 
1848’ x 6’ wide sidewalk from Los Vista Drive to Sony Drive.  The project will take place in 
Leander, TX; and 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 PART I 
 
1. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
  
 A.   Subrecipient will perform the services described in Exhibit A attached to this 

Agreement pursuant to the project description, timeline and budget described in 
Exhibit A. 

 
 B. Upon request, the County will provide technical assistance to the subrecipient 

concerning compliance with the terms of this Agreement.  The subrecipient shall 
be responsible for all bidding procedures and subcontractural arrangements.  All 
procedures shall be carried out in accordance with all Federal, State and local 
standards, and shall be monitored by the County. 

 
 

C. The Project shall be completed in compliance with all applicable state and local 
codes.  Upon completion, this Project shall be operated in compliance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws. Subrecipient agrees the funding shall be 
used solely for the purpose of costs as detailed in Part I.1.A. of this Agreement. 

 
2. TIME OF PERFORMANCE: 
 
 Subrecipient shall perform according to the schedule described in Exhibit A. The schedule 

for performance is subject to change by mutual agreement of both parties in writing 
 
  . 
 
3. PROPOSED PROJECT BUDGET 

 
 See attached budget in Exhibit A.     
 



  

 2 

4. Objective and Outcome Statement:  Sustainability for the purpose of creating 

suitable living environments.  
 
5. Project Indicators: 
Indicators will be requested of the Subrecipient by the Williamson County Grants Coordinator and 
could include but is not limited to such items as amount of money leveraged; number of persons, 
households, businesses, unit or beds assisted, as appropriate; income levels of persons or 
households; race, ethnicity, and disability data.  Subrecipient agrees to fulfill the Grants 
Coordinator’s request in a reasonable time but not to extend past 15 days after request. 
 
6. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT: 
 
 The County shall pay and Subrecipient agrees to accept in full $180,000 (Grant Amount – 

One Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars and no/100) (hereinafter "Grant") for performance 
under this Agreement, as follows: 

 
A. Based on the approved budget, partial payments shall be made upon presentation 

of (i) architect's Certificates for Payment for applicable labor and construction 
materials and supplies purchased or billed from the contractor for progress 
payments for project work completed, and/or (ii) purchase agreements, invoices, 
executed lien waivers, and other supporting documents covering all amounts to be 
paid, and/or (iii) time sheets and other source documents. Payments will be made 
for eligible expenses actually incurred by Subrecipient, and not to exceed actual 
cash requirements. 

 
B. All payments under this agreement are subject to receipt by the County of 

sufficient federal funds for the CDBG program.  CDBG funds shall be drawn from 
the U.S. Treasury by the County through the Integrated Disbursement and 
Information System (IDIS).  The County shall retain exclusive direct access rights 
to the IDIS system.  All access to the IDIS system will be by duly authorized 
persons designated by the County as approved by HUD.  Any termination, 
reduction or delay of receipt of CDBG funds to the County shall, at the sole option 
of the County, result in the termination, reduction or delay of CDBG funds to the 
subrecipient.  

 
C. Subrecipient shall not hold funds. Any funds not immediately disbursed by the 

subrecipient shall be returned to the County and will be deposited in the U.S. 
Treasury, CDBG Trust Account.  Any interest earned on cash advances from the 
U.S. Treasury and/or County of less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) per year 
may be retained by the subrecipient and used for project expenses.  Any interest in 
excess of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per year shall be remitted promptly to the 
County.  

 
D. Subrecipient shall report all program income as defined at 24 CFR 570.500(a) 

generated by activities carried out with CDBG funds made available under this 
Agreement. The use of program income by Subrecipient shall comply with the 
requirements set forth at 24 CFR 570.504. Subrecipient may use such income 
during the contract period for activities permitted under this Agreement and shall 
reduce requests for additional funds by the amount of any such program income 



  

 3 

balances on hand. All unused program income shall be returned to the County at 
the end of the Agreement period. Any interest earned on cash advances from the 
U.S. Treasury is not program income and shall be remitted promptly to the County. 

 
7. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
 A. Subrecipient agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 

regulations governing the funds provided under this Agreement. 
 

B. The County shall have no responsibility or liability for the maintenance,         
operation or program funding for Subrecipient. 

 
C. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be construed in any 

manner, as creating or establishing the relationship of employer/employee          
between the parties. Subrecipient shall at all times remain independent with 
respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The County shall be 
exempt from payment of all unemployment compensation, FICA, retirement, life 
and/or medical insurance and workers' compensation insurance. 

 
D. During the period of this Agreement, effective as of the start of the Project, the 

Subrecipient and/or contractor and/or subcontractor performing any portion of 
the work on the Project that involves any construction trade (hereinafter 
collectively referred to in this provision as “Construction Trade Participant(s)”) 
shall, at their own expense, procure and maintain all-risk property damage and 
liability insurance.  For the term of this Agreement, Construction Trade 
Participant(s) shall list the County as an additional insured on said all-risk 
property damage and liability insurance.  Property damage coverage shall not be 
less than the current market value of the property.  Liability coverage shall 
include contractual insurance as well as comprehensive form insurance, and 
shall provide coverage of not less than $1,000,000 bodily injury per person, 
$1,000,000 bodily injury per occurrence, and $500,000 property damage. 
 Subrecipient, on behalf of itself and on behalf of any other Construction Trade 
Participant(s), shall furnish the County with a certificate of insurance before any 
work is started by any such party. The certificate of insurance shall include a 
statement guaranteeing that the insurance policy shall not be cancelled, non-
renewed or materially changed without thirty (30) days advance written notice 
being given to the Grants Coordinator.  Construction Trade Participant(s) shall 
provide Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage as required by Texas law 
for all employees involved in the performance of this Agreement.  The insurance 
company providing the insurance must be licensed to do business in the State of 
Texas and rated as A or better by A.M. Best.  The Subrecipient hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that it shall be the responsibility of the Subrecipient to 
ensure that all Construction Trade Participant(s) comply with the herein 
stipulated minimum insurance requirements.  Furthermore, the Subrecipient 
hereby agrees to include and require that the language of this provision be 
included in all contracts or subcontracts relating to the Project. 

 
 



  

 4 

E. Until at least the date determined in Exhibit A of this Agreement (Monitoring 
Period), Subrecipient shall fulfill its stated purpose in a manner satisfactory to the 
County as outlined in Exhibit A (Project Description and Scope of Services) of this 
Agreement and provide continued service. All records and public information 
created in connection with this Agreement or the Project shall be retained by 
Subrecipient until at least the date determined in Exhibit A (Monitoring Period). 

 
 

F. In the event Subrecipient discontinues its services and/or the Project funded under 
this Agreement prior to the date determined in Exhibit A (Monitoring Period) of this 
Agreement, the value of the pro-rated portion of real and personal property 
(tangible and intangible) secured with the CDBG funds, if applicable, under this 
Agreements shall revert to the County.  If said property has been disposed of, then 
the County will be reimbursed in the amount of the current fair market value of the 
property less any portion of the fair market value attributable to non- County CDBG 
funds. (Personal property includes, but is not limited to, equipment, furnishings, 
and vehicles.) 

 
 

G. Except as provided herein, the terms of this Agreement shall be effective from the 
date of execution through and including the date determined in Exhibit A of this 
Agreement (Monitoring Period). 

 
 PART II 
 
1. PERFORMANCE AND REPORTING: 
 
 A. Subrecipient shall direct all notices, reports, insurance policies, and other 

communications related to or required by this Agreement to the office of the 
Williamson County Grants Coordinator, 710 Main Street, Ste 101 Georgetown, TX 
78626. Notice by both Subrecipient and County shall be given by ordinary mail. All 
reports shall comply with relevant state and federal regulations, including but not 
limited to OMB Circular A-133. 

 
 B. Until the completion of the Project and expenditure of all CDBG funds disbursed 

under this Agreement, Subrecipient shall submit monthly reports describing 
progress of the project activities. 

 
 C. Not later than date determined in Exhibit A of this Agreement (Project Completion 

Date), Subrecipient shall provide the County with a Certified Statement of the 
Expenditure of Funds disbursed under this Agreement. 

 
 D. Following completion of the Project, Subrecipient shall submit annual reports by 

the first day of October of each contract year until the date determined in Exhibit A 
(Monitoring Period) of this Agreement. The annual report shall, at a minimum, 
include statistics pertaining to the number, race, disability, household income, 
household size and place of residence of clients served at Subrecipient's Facility. 

 



  

 5 

 E. No reporting requirements shall extend beyond the date determined in Exhibit A of 
this Agreement (Monitoring Period). 

 
2. OTHER REPORTS, AUDITS AND INSPECTIONS: 
 
 A. Subrecipient shall promptly furnish the County or HUD with such statements, 

records, data and information as the County or HUD may reasonably request 
pertaining to this Agreement. 

 
 B. During the term of this Agreement, any time during normal business hours, 

Subrecipient shall make available to the County, HUD and/or the Comptroller 
General of the United States, or their duly authorized representatives, all of 
Subrecipient's records in order to permit examination of any audits, invoices, 
materials, payrolls, personnel records, conditions of employment, and other data 
relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. 

 
 C. Subrecipient shall retain financial records, supporting documents, statistical 

records, and all other records pertaining to expenditures under this Agreement until 
the date determined in Part I Section 2(7). 

 
3. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 A. Financial Management 
 
  1. Accounting Standards 
 
  Subrecipient agrees to comply with Attachment F of OMB Circular A-110 and 

agrees to adhere to the accounting principles and procedures required therein, 
utilize adequate internal controls, and maintain necessary source documentation 
for all costs incurred. All financial transactions and documentation must comply 
with the audit requirements in OMB Circular A-133. Procedures for Accounts 
Payable, Purchasing, and other accounting functions must meet all standards 
established by the Williamson County Auditor, and Subrecipient will provide any 
reports required by those standards. 

 
  2. Uniform Administrative Requirements 
 
  Subrecipient will comply with 24 CFR 570.502, Applicability of Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Section (a), recipients and subrecipients that are 
governmental entities (including public agencies) and Section (b), subrecipients, 
except subrecipients that are governmental entities. 

 
  Subrecipients, except subrecipients that are governmental entities, shall comply 

with the requirements and standards of OMB Circular No. A–122, “Cost Principles 
for Non-profit Organizations”, or OMB Circular No. A–21, “Cost Principles for 
Educational Institutions”, as applicable, and OMB Circular A–133, “Audits of 
Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions” (as set forth in 24 
CFR part 45). Such subrecipients shall also comply with the provisions of the 
Uniform Administrative requirements of OMB Circular A–110 (implemented at 24 

http://www.washingtonwatchdog.org/documents/cfr/title24/part84.html


  

 6 

CFR part 84, “Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements 
With Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals and Other Non-Profit 
Organizations”) or the related CDBG provisions, and any subsequent amendments 
thereto.   

 
  Recipients and Subrecipients that are governmental entities (including public 

agencies) shall comply with the requirements and standards of OMB Circular No. 
A–87, “Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments”; OMB 
Circular A–133, “Audits of State and Local Governments” (implemented at 24 CFR 
part 44); and with sections of 24 CFR part 85 “Uniform Administrative 
Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local 
Governments” or other related CDBG provision, and any subsequent amendments 
thereto.  

 
  3. Audit Requirements 
 
  Subrecipient agrees to comply with the “Williamson County Community 

Development Block Grant Audit Requirements attached as Exhibit B to this 
Agreement. 

 
  Subrecipient agrees to comply with the applicable requirements and standards as 

set forth in OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-
Profit organizations. 

 
  Subrecipient agrees to furnish County with a current Financial Report (financial 

statements) within six (6) months from the end of its fiscal year covering the period 
of this Agreement that includes detailed receipts and disbursement of payments to 
Subrecipient hereunder. Grant funds will automatically be forfeited if the 

SUBRECIPIENT fails to submit a Financial Report. 

 
  However, if Subrecipient expends Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) 

or more in federal funds (all sources), Subrecipient must, within nine (9) months 
from the end of its fiscal year, supply County with a single audit and is required to 
submit their audit report to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) within the earlier 
of 30 days after the receipt of the auditor’s report, or within 9 months after the end 

of the audit period. Grant funds will automatically be forfeited if the 

SUBRECIPIENT fails to submit an audit within the allotted time.   

 
  If the Subrecipient expends less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($500,000.00) a year in federal funds (all sources), then they are exempt from the 
OMB Circular A-133 audit requirements for that year; however, records must be 
available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the federal agency, pass-
through entity and the General Accounting Office.   

 
  Subrecipient is required to submit a 990 Tax Return (Return of Organization 

Exempt from Income Tax) for the most recent fiscal year within six (6) months if 
submitting a Financial Report or within nine (9) months if submitting a Financial 
Audit. If the Subrecipient is not classified as an exempt entity as defined in OMB 
Circular A-133, the Subrecipient will not be awarded grant funds.   

http://www.washingtonwatchdog.org/documents/cfr/title24/part84.html
http://www.washingtonwatchdog.org/documents/cfr/title24/part85.html


  

 7 

 
  If applicable, Subrecipient agrees to cooperate with County relating to any inquiries 

regarding the Financial Audit or Financial Report and Subrecipient acknowledges 
that a Financial Audit or Financial Report shall be provided to County at the 
expense of the Subrecipient.  Financial Audit or Financial Report shall be available 
to County staff, and any and all applicable federal agencies, and be of unrestricted 
access, as listed in 24 CFR Part 85.42. 

 
 
  4. Cost Principles 
 
  Subrecipient shall administer its program in conformance with OMB Circulars A-

122, "Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations;" A-21, "Cost Principles for 
Educational Institutions;" and/or A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations,” as applicable, for all costs incurred whether charged on 
a direct or indirect basis. 

 
 
 B. Documentation and Record-Keeping 
 
  1. Records to Be Maintained 
 
  Subrecipient shall maintain all records that are pertinent to the activities to be 

funded under this Agreement, including but not limited to: 
 
   a. Records providing a full description of each activity undertaken; 
 
   b. Records required to document the acquisition, improvement, use or 

disposition of real property acquired or improved with CDBG 
assistance; 

 
   c. Records documenting compliance with the fair housing and equal 

opportunity components of the CDBG program; and 
 
   d. Financial records as required by 24 CFR 570.502, and OMB 

Circular A-110. 
 
  2. Client Data 
 
  Subrecipient shall maintain client data demonstrating client eligibility for services 

provided. Such data shall include, but not be limited to a signed and dated 
verification of income statement, or other basis for determining eligibility, and 
description of service provided. Such information shall be made available to 
County monitors or their designees for review upon request. 

 
  3. National Objectives 
 



  

 8 

  Subrecipient agrees to maintain documentation that demonstrates that the 
activities carried out with funds provided under this Agreement benefit 
low/moderate income persons, as defined in 24 CFR 570.208. 

 
 C. Procurement 
 
  1. Compliance 
 
  Subrecipient shall comply with current County policy concerning the purchase of 

equipment and shall maintain an inventory record of all non-expendable personal 
property as defined by such policy as may be procured with funds provided herein. 
All program assets (unexpended program income, property, equipment, etc.) shall 
revert to the County upon termination of this Agreement. The County Purchasing 
Department shall review and approve procurement procedures governing all 
purchases with grant funds, and shall have oversight authority in this area. 

 
  2. OMB Standards 
 
  Subrecipient shall procure materials in accordance with the requirements of A-133, 

A-122, OMB Circular A-110, Procurement Standards, and shall subsequently 
follow, Property Management Standards, covering utilization and disposal of 
property. Copies of said circulars are provided and by execution of this Agreement, 
Subrecipient acknowledges their receipt. 

 
 D. Amendments 
 
 The County or Subrecipient may amend this Agreement at any time provided that such 

amendments are executed in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of 
both organizations.  

 
4. NON-DISCRIMINATION: 
 
 No person shall be excluded from or denied the benefits of Subrecipient's service on the 

basis of age, race, color, religion, creed, national origin, gender identity, sex, marital 
status, disability, sexual orientation or, with respect to the sale, lease, rental, use or 
occupancy of real property or housing accommodations, the presence or absence of 
dependents, familial status or public assistance source of income. All current and 
prospective project beneficiaries must, however, be persons in need of the programs 
provided by Subrecipient.   

 
5. SECTION 504 COMPLIANCE: 
 
 No otherwise qualified individual with handicaps shall, solely by reason of his/her 

handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. This 
includes, but is not limited to, programs and/or activities related to housing, employment, 
and the delivery of services. 

 



  

 9 

6. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY, FAIR HOUSING AND DRUG-FREE 

WORKPLACE: 
 
 The subrecipient certifies that it is an "Equal Opportunity Employer" and that it will comply 

with the Texas Human Rights Commission Act, and all applicable HUD regulations 
pertaining to equal opportunity and affirmative action in employment.  Further, the 
SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that all contracts for work under this Agreement contain 
appropriate equal employment opportunity statements.   

  
 SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all provisions of 24 CFR Part 100-115, which 

implement the Fair Housing Act. This Act prohibits discrimination in the sale or rental of 
housing, the financing of housing or the provision of brokerage services against any 
person on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, handicap or familial status.  

  
 In addition, SUBRECIPIENT certifies it will provide a drug-free workplace as defined in 24 

CFR Part 24, subpart F and/or follow the requirements of 24 CFR 92.350.  
 
7. SECTION 3: 
 
 Subrecipient agrees to comply with Section 3 requirements, the regulations set forth in 24 

CFR 135, and to include the following language in all subcontracts executed under this 
Agreement: 

 
A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 

3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u 
(Section 3).  The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other 
economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects 
covered by Section 3 shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very 
low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for 
housing.  

 
B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 

135, which implement Section 3.  As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the 
parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment 
that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations.  

 
C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers 

with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other 
understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers’ 
representative of the contractor’s commitments under this Section 3 clause, and will 
post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees 
and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice.  The notice 
shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles 
subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for 
each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the 
positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin.  

 
D. The contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 

compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate 



  

 10 

actions, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this Section 3 
clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR 
part 135.  The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the 
contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation 
of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135.  

 
E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training 

positions, that are filled (1) after the contract is selected but before the contract is 
executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR 
part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent 
the contractor’s obligations under 24 CFR part 135.  

 
F. Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, 

termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD 
assisted contracts.  

 
G. With respect to work performed in connection with Section 3 covered Indian housing 

assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act 
(25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract.  Section 
7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for 
training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of 
contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned 
Economic Enterprises.  Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of 
Section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with Section 3 to the maximum extent 
feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b).  

 
8. WOMEN AND MINORITY-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES: 
 
 Subrecipient will use its best efforts to afford minority and women-owned business 

enterprises (at least fifty-one (51) percent owned and controlled by minority group 
members or women) the maximum practicable opportunity to participate in the 
performance of this Agreement. 

 
9. LABOR: 
 
 Construction projects funded under the CDBG program in excess of $2,000 shall comply 

with the labor provisions outlined in 24 CFR 570.603. Subrecipient will comply with Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a-276a-5).  Such contracts must also be subject to the overtime 
provisions, as applicable, of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 
U.S.C. 327-332). The Subrecipient agrees to adhere to said provisions and will not use 
suspended or debarred contractors. 

 
10. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION: 
 
 Subrecipient shall assist the County in complying with all applicable environmental 

assessment and historic preservation requirements of HUD and the State Historic 
Preservation Officer of Texas. 

 
11. LEAD-BASED PAINT POISONING PREVENTION: 



  

 11 

 
 Subrecipient shall comply with requirements of Section 302 of the Lead-Based Paint 

Poisoning Prevention Act and HUD regulations thereunder (24 CFR Part 570) insofar as 
they apply to the performance of this Agreement. 

 
12. ELIGIBILITY RESTRICTIONS FOR CERTAIN RESIDENT ALIENS (570.613): 
 

1. Restriction  The subrecipient agrees to comply with 24 CFR 570.613, which states 
that certain newly legalized aliens, as described in 24 CFR part 5 subpart E are not 
eligible to apply for benefits under covered activities funded by the County’s CDBG 
programs.  "Benefits" under this section means financial assistance, public services, 
jobs and access to new or rehabilitated housing and other facilities funded through the 
County’s CDBG programs.  "Benefits" do not include relocation services and payments 
to which displacees are entitled by law.  

   
2. Covered Activities "Covered activities" under this section means activities meeting the 
requirements of Sec. 570.208(a) that either: 

             a.       Have income eligibility requirements limiting the benefits exclusively to low and 
moderate income persons; or 

             b.       Are targeted geographically or otherwise to primarily benefit low and moderate 
income persons (excluding activities serving the public at large, such as sewers, 
roads, sidewalks, and parks), and that provide benefits to persons on the basis 
of an application. 

  
3. Limitation on Coverage 

  
The restrictions under this section apply only to applicants for new benefits not being 
received by covered resident aliens as of the effective date of this agreement. 

  
4. Compliance 

  
Compliance can be accomplished by the subrecipient obtaining certification as provided 
in 24 CFR part 5 subpart E evidencing citizenship or eligible immigration status. 

 
 
13. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT FOR CAUSE: 
 
 If Subrecipient fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement in a timely and proper 

manner, or if Subrecipient violates any of the terms, agreements or stipulations of this 
Agreement, the County shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by 
giving written notice to Subrecipient of such termination, specifying the default or defaults, 
and stating that this Agreement shall be terminated 30 days after the giving of such notice 
unless such default or defaults are remedied within such cure period. The County shall be 
obligated to make no payment due hereunder after it gives said notice unless the defaults 
are remedied with said 30-day period. In the event of such termination, Subrecipient shall 
promptly repay to the County the full grant amount or that portion of the amounts that have 
been disbursed to Subrecipient prior to such termination. 

 
14. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT FOR CONVENIENCE: 



  

 12 

 
 This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part upon the mutual agreement of the 

parties hereto, in which case the County and Subrecipient shall agree upon the 
termination conditions, including the effective date, the disposition of contract amounts, 
and in the case of partial termination, the portion to be terminated. However, if, in the case 
of partial termination, the County determines that the remaining portion of the award will 
not accomplish the purposes for which the award was made, and the award is terminated 
in its entirety, Subrecipient shall promptly repay to the County the full grant amount or that 
portion of the amount which has been disbursed to Subrecipient prior to such termination. 

 
15. INTEREST OF CERTAIN FEDERAL AND OTHER OFFICIALS: 
 
 A. No member or delegate to the Congress of the United States, and no resident 

Commissioner, shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement, or to any 
benefit to arise herefrom. 

 
 B. No member of the governing body of the County, no officer, employee, official or 

agent of the County, or other local public official who exercises any functions or 
responsibilities in connection with the review, approval or carrying out of the 
Project to which this Agreement pertains, shall have any private interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Agreement. 

 
 C. No federal funds appropriated under this Agreement shall be paid, by or on behalf 

of Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence a member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress or any federal agency in 
connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal 
grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification 
of any federal contract, grant, loan or agreement. 

 
 D. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal agreement, 
Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

 
 E. Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all sub-Subrecipients and that all sub-Subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
16. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 
 
 Subrecipient covenants that it has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or 

indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the 
services to be undertaken through this Agreement. Subrecipient further covenants that in 
the performance of this Agreement, no person having such an interest shall be employed 
by Subrecipient. 

 



  

 13 

17. GRANTOR RECOGNITION: 
 
 All activities, facilities, and items utilized pursuant to this Agreement shall be prominently 

labeled as CDBG funded. In addition, Subrecipient will include a reference to the support 
provided herein in all publications made possible with funds made available under this 
Agreement. 

 
18. ASSIGNABILITY: 
 
 Subrecipient shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior 

written approval of the County. Any assignment made without such consent shall be void. 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors and 
assigns of the parties hereto. 

 
19. HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION: 
 
 Subrecipient shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees 

and agents from all liability, loss, cost, damage and expense (including reasonable 
attorney's fees and court costs) resulting from or incurred by reason of any actions based 
upon the negligent acts or omissions of Subrecipient's employees or agents during the 
performance of this Agreement. 

 
20. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE: 
 
 If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement are held to be invalid, 

illegal, or unenforceable, this Agreement shall be deemed severable and the remainder of 
the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
21. LIMITATIONS OF COUNTY LIABILITY - DISCLAIMER OF RELATIONSHIP: 
 
 The County shall not be liable to Subrecipient, or to any party, for completion of or failure 

to complete any improvements which are parts of the Project. Nothing contained in this 
Agreement, nor any act or omission of the County or Subrecipient, shall be construed to 
create any special duty, relationship, third-party beneficiary, respondent superior, limited or 
general partnership, joint venture, or any association by reason of Subrecipient's 
involvement with the County. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this ___________ 
day of _______________________, 2016. 
 
 Williamson County, Texas       
 
 
By: _____________________________________________________ 
 Dan A. Gattis  
 County Judge   
 
 
 
 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  ) 
  ) SS: 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY ) 
 
On this __________ day of _________________________, 2016, before me, 
____________________________________, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally 
appeared Dan A. Gattis, to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is 
the County Judge of said County executing the within and foregoing instrument that the seal 
affixed hereto is the seal of said County, and that the said Dan A. Gattis acknowledged the 
execution of said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said County, by it and by him 
voluntarily executed. 
 
 
 _______________________________________________ 
 Notary Public in and for Williamson County, Texas 
 
 



  

 15 

 

City of Leander (Subrecipient) 
 
 
By:  _____________________________________________________ 

      Kent Cagle 
City Manager 

 
 
ATTEST:  _________________________________________________ 
                Secretary 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  ) 
  ) SS: 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY ) 
 
On this ________ day of ___________________________, 2016, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, personally appeared 
___________________________ and ____________________________, to me personally 
known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are the ___________________________ 
and ____________________________, respectively, of the City of Leander executing the 
foregoing instrument; that the seal affixed hereto is the seal of said city; that the instrument was 
signed on behalf of the city by proper authority; that 
_______________________________________ and 
______________________________________ acknowledged the execution of the instrument to 
be the voluntary act and deed of the city, by it and by them voluntarily executed. 
 
 
  ______________________________________________ 
  Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 
 
 



  

 16 

EXHIBIT  A 

 
 

TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN WILLIAMSON COUNTY 

AND THE CITY OF LEANDER 

FOR THE USE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS 

FISCAL YEAR 2015 FUNDING 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

1.    PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

  
A. Construction of 1848’ x 6’ wide sidewalk from Los Vista Drive to Sony Drive.  The project will 

take place in Leander, TX. 
 

B. Upon request, the County will provide technical assistance to the subrecipient concerning 

compliance with the terms of this Agreement.  The subrecipient shall be responsible for all bidding 

procedures and subcontractural arrangements.  All procedures shall be carried out in accordance 

with all Federal, State and local standards, and shall be monitored by the County. 

 

C.   The Project shall be completed in compliance with all applicable state and local codes.  Upon 

completion, this Project shall be operated in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local 

laws. Subrecipient agrees the funding shall be used solely for the purpose of costs as detailed in Part 

I.1.A. of this Agreement. 
 

2.  TIME OF PERFORMANCE: 

 

 Subrecipient shall perform according to the following schedule: 

 

    Program Element 

 

1. April 2016              Award of funds and contract with Williamson County 

2. May 2016-September 2016  Environmental/Surveying/Engineering/Design 

3. September 2016-October 2016 Bid/award of construction contract 

4. October 2016-February 2017  Construction 

5. Monitoring Period   To be determined based on statement below   

 

Records are to be retained for four years from the date of submission of the County’s CAPER in 

which the specific activity is reported for the last time, unless there is litigation, claims, audit, 

negotiation, or other actions involving the records, which has started before expiration of the four 

year period.  In such cases, the records must be retained until completion of the action and 

resolution of all issues which arise from it or the end of the regular four year period, whichever is 

longer.  



  

 17 

 

 

3. PROPOSED PROJECT BUDGET (see attached HUD budget): 

     

    CDBG  Subrecipient 

    Amount Amount 

 

      A. Construction\Rehabilitation\Installation $180,000 __________ 

 

      B. Eligible equipment (as outlined in 24 CFR 

     570.207(1)) _________ __________ 

 

 C. Engineering, planning & administrative costs _________ _________ 

  

 D.  Property Acquisition     _________ _________ 

                                                                                

 

  CDBG Grant/Loan $180,000 

   

   

 

 



  

 18 

EXHIBIT B 

Williamson County Community Development Block Grant Audit Requirements 

Williamson County Subrecipients will adhere to the following guidelines with regards to audit requirements: 

Subrecipient agrees to comply with the applicable requirements and standards as set forth in OMB Circular A-133, 

Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit organizations. 

Subrecipient agrees to furnish County with a current Financial Report (financial statements) within six (6) months 

from the end of its fiscal year covering the period of this Agreement that includes detailed receipts and disbursement 

of payments to Subrecipient hereunder. Future and unused grant funds will automatically be forfeited if the 

Subrecipient fails to submit a Financial Report. 

However, if Subrecipient expends Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) or more in federal funds (all 

sources), Subrecipient must, within nine (9) months from the end of its fiscal year, supply County with a single audit 

and is required to submit their audit report to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) within the earlier of 30 days 

after the receipt of the auditor’s report, or within 9 months after the end of the audit period. Grant funds will 

automatically be forfeited if the Subrecipient fails to submit an audit within the allotted time.   

If the Subrecipient expends less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) a year in federal funds (all 

sources), then they are exempt from the OMB Circular A-133 audit requirements for that year; however, records 

must be available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the federal agency, pass-through entity and the 

General Accounting Office.   

If applicable, Subrecipient is required to submit a 990 Tax Return (Return of Organization Exempt from Income 

Tax) for the most recent fiscal year within six (6) months if submitting a Financial Report or within nine (9) months 

if submitting a Financial Audit. If the Subrecipient is not classified as an exempt entity as defined in OMB Circular 

A-133, the Subrecipient will not be awarded grant funds.  

If applicable, Subrecipient agrees to cooperate with County relating to any inquiries regarding the Financial Audit or 

Financial Report and Subrecipient acknowledges that a Financial Audit or Financial Report shall be provided to 

County at the expense of the Subrecipient.  Financial Audit or Financial Report shall be available to County staff, 

and any and all applicable federal agencies, and be of unrestricted access, in accordance with 24 CFR Part 85.42 and 

24 CFR Part 84.53 as applicable. 

The Williamson County CDBG office will issue letters to remind Subrecipients of the audit requirements and request 

timely submission. Letters will be issued on or around January 5 of each year.  If no response is received, a second 

letter will be issued on or around February 15 of each year.  If no response is received, a third request will be made 

approximately two weeks following.  If no response is received by March 15, a final notification will be issued 

advising the subrecipient of suspension of reimbursement and future funding pending receipt of requested 

information.  

Failure to follow these guidelines could result in the forfeit of future Williamson County CDBG funds and/or 

repayment of Williamson County CDBG funds already utilized.   

Upon receipt of the required audit documents, the Williamson County Community Development Block Grant office 

will do an initial review to identify findings that affect the Williamson County CDBG program or any cross-cutting 



  

 19 

findings that could affect future funding.  The CDBG office will also request a review by the Williamson County 

Auditor’s office. 

In the event of a finding, Williamson County will issue a letter requesting additional information regarding the 

finding and the intentions of the Subrecipient to remedy the finding.  Working with the Williamson County Auditor’s 

office, the CDBG office will determine next steps to ensure that all federal, state, or local laws/statures are met. 

If a Subrecipient is unable to provide required audit documentation and has utilized CDBG funding, Williamson 

County will have the option to request repayment and  recapture unused funds.  If a Subrecipient is unable to provide 

required audit documentation and has not utilized CDBG funding, Williamson County will not issue funding until 

requirements are met or will reallocate funds to an alternate project if necessary. 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 7, 2016 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Development Agreement Case #15-DA-006:  Discussion and 

possible action to approve a development agreement between the 
City of Leander, Sixth Street Capital, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company, and Devine Land Investments, LLC, a Nevada 
limited liability company for 208 acres more or less, generally 
located at southwest of the intersection of Bagdad Road and the 
future extension San Gabriel Parkway; City of Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: The Development Agreement includes the following key 

provisions: 
• establishes developer responsibility for right-of-way 

dedication and construction of a portion of the 
extension of San Gabriel Parkway 

• provides for the developer to dedicate right-of-way for 
the Bagdad Road expansion 

• establishes a fee in lieu of a traffic impact analysis in 
order to fund the westbound traffic signal at Bagdad 
and San Gabriel 

• provides for the City to request the oversizing of a 
water line paralleling the extension of San Gabriel 
Parkway and for the developer to receive impact fee 
reimbursements for the cost of the oversizing 

• provides for the City to request the oversizing of a 
gravity sewer line through the project to serve 
properties to the north and west 

• provides for the City to assist, if necessary, in the 
acquisition of an off-site wastewater line easement 

• provides for a modification to the riparian corridor 
setback requirements due to the project's adjacency to 
Devine Lake 
 

 



Origination: Applicant:  Gary Blackwell, Managing Member, Devine Land 
Investments, LLC 

 
Financial  
Consideration: The cost of the utility oversizing, once determined, will be 

presented to Council for approval.. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the development agreement.  
 
Attachments: 1.  Development Agreement 
 2.  Exhibits 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  06/29//2016 
 



Draft 6-28-2016 
  DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 FOR THE DEVINE LAKE SUBDIVISION 
 
 This Development Agreement for the Devine Lake Subdivision (the "Agreement") is made 
and entered into, effective as of the ___ day of _______, 2016, by and between the City of 
Leander, Texas, a Texas home rule municipal corporation (the "City"), Sixth Street Capital, 
LLC, a Texas limited liability company, and Devine Land Investments, LLC, a Nevada limited 
liability company (the “Developers”).  The City and the Developer are sometimes referred to herein 
as the "Parties."  The Parties agree as follows.  
 

Article I.  Purpose; Consideration. 
 
1.01. Purpose.  The Developer owns or has under contract the right to purchase that certain 208 
acre tract located in Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes (the “Property”) and wishes to develop the 
Property as a mixed use development containing residential units and commercial uses (the 
“Subdivision”).  The Developer desires to provide for the construction, operation and maintenance 
of certain water, wastewater, and drainage improvements as described herein.  The Developer 
further desires to modify certain development standards applicable to the Subdivision as provide in 
Article V.  The City desires that Developer oversize the water and wastewater facilities described 
herein so that such facilities may serve customers located outside the Property. 
 
1.02. Benefits.  Developer will benefit from the certainty and assurance of the obligations 
related to the construction, operation, and maintenance of water, wastewater, and drainage 
facilities provided for herein, and from the modification of certain development standards as 
provided in Article V.  The City will benefit from this Agreement by virtue of the oversizing of 
water and wastewater infrastructure as provided herein. 
 
1.03. Consideration.  The benefits to the Parties set forth in this Article I, plus the mutual 
promises expressed herein, are good and valuable consideration for this Agreement, the sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged by both Parties.  
 

Article II.  Term; Termination. 
 
2.01. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the Effective Date hereof, 
subject to earlier termination as provided in this Agreement. 
 
2.02. Termination.  The Parties further mutually agree that this Agreement shall be in full force 
and effect upon the date above first written, provided that the City may terminate this Agreement if 
Developer fails to comply with this Agreement or fails to meet any deadlines imposed by this 
Agreement or the City’s ordinances, after expiration of the cure period set forth in Section 9.01. 
 

 

1 
 



Article III. Right-of-Way Dedications and Improvements 
 

3.01.  San Gabriel Parkway.  The Developer will dedicate right-of-way for the portions of San 
Gabriel Parkway (the “SGP ROW”) located within the boundaries of the Property along the route 
generally shown in the City’s Transportation Plan and Exhibit “B” and as will be more particularly 
shown on the approved construction plans and final plat for each phase of the Subdivision.  Where 
one-half of the SGP ROW is located on the Property and one-half is located on the abutting 
property, the SGP ROW dedication shall not exceed 55 feet in width.   For the remaining portions of 
the SGP ROW located on the Property, the SGP ROW dedication shall not exceed 110 feet in 
width.  The SGP ROW right-of-way will be dedicated at the time right-of-way dedications are 
required to be made under Chapter 10 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Subdivision 
Ordinance”). The Developer shall further design and construct San Gabriel Parkway, at Developer’s 
sole cost and expense, in accordance with this Agreement, the Subdivision Ordinance, the approved 
construction plans, applicable local, state, and federal regulations and good design and engineering 
practices; provided, that Developer is not obligated to construct more than one-half of the full 
roadway section of San Gabriel Parkway; provided that the Developer will be responsible for the 
full cost of the design and construction of the full width of San Gabriel Parkway at its intersection 
with Bagdad Road and the transition to the one-half of the full roadway section of San Gabriel 
Parkway.  
 
3.02.   Bagdad Road ROW Dedication.  The Developer will dedicate the property described in 
Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes for right-of-way for 
Bagdad Road within thirty (30) days of written request by the City. 
 
3.03.  Signal Improvements.  The Developer shall pay a fee in lieu of performing a traffic impact 
analysis for the Subdivision in the amount of $126 per residential dwelling unit (the “TIA Fee”).  
The TIA Fee shall satisfy any obligation the Developer may have to construct or pay for 
construction of signal improvements for the intersection of San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad Road 
(the “Signalization Improvements”) and any other off-site traffic improvements.  The TIA Fee shall 
be paid prior to the time of recording of the final plat for each phase of the Subdivision.  The TIA 
Fee shall be deposited in a city account that will be specifically dedicated for transportation 
improvements and shall be used for the Signalization Improvements and for other transportation 
improvements in the general vicinity of the Subdivision as determined appropriate by the 
director of public works. 
 
 
 

Article IV.  Developer’s Water and Wastewater Utility Projects 
 
4.01. Water Line Project.  The Water Line Project consists of the construction, installation, 
and extension of an eight inch (8”) water line, oversized to a twenty inch (“20”) water line, from 
the eastern right-of-way line of Bagdad Road to the western property line of the property as 
shown in Exhibit “D” (the “Water Line Project”).  Where the Water Line Project is located 
through the two lots of the Subdivision as shown in Exhibit “D” (the “Water Line Lots”) and 
 

 
 
 2 



under San Gabriel Parkway, the water line will be encased in steel encasement.  The Developer 
shall grant the City a ten foot wide water line easement (the “Easement”) upon, over, and across 
the Water Line Lots, with five feet of the Easement being located on each lot, on the final plat 
that includes the Water Line Lots.    The Water Line Project includes the water line and those 
facilities and equipment required for the water line to function efficiently, to provide service to 
the Property, and to comply with all applicable state and local rules, regulations and standards 
and good design and engineering practices.    
 
4.02. Wastewater Line Project.  The Wastewater Line Project consists of the construction, 
installation, and extension of an eight inch (8”) wastewater gravity line, oversized to a twenty-
one inch (21”) wastewater gravity line, along the route approved by the City and generally 
shown in Exhibit E. The Wastewater Line Project includes the wastewater gravity line and those 
facilities and equipment required for the wastewater gravity line to function efficiently, to 
provide service to the Property, and to comply with all applicable state and local rules, 
regulations and standards and good design and engineering practices. 
 
4.03. Standards for Utility Project.  The Water Line Project or a phase thereof and the 
Wastewater Project or a phase thereof shall be referred to collectively as the “Utility Project”.  
Developer shall contract for, fund, and pay for the design, construction and installation the 
Utility Project in accordance with this Agreement, the approved construction plans, applicable 
local, state, and federal regulations, and good design and engineering practices.  The Developer 
may construct the Utility Project in one or more phases. Each phase of the Utility Project shall be 
completed by Developer and Developer shall obtain City acceptance of the Utility Project in 
accordance with the procedures and time frames set forth in the Subdivision Ordinance.  The 
Developer shall be entitled to water and wastewater impact fee rebates and if applicable City 
Cost Participation, as provided in Section 4.05, Section 4.06, 4.10 and Article VII, subject to the 
provisions and limitations set forth in this Agreement. 
 
4.04.  Utility Project Engineer.  Developer will retain a licensed professional engineer to 
prepare the design, construction plans and specifications, and supporting documentation for the 
Utility Project in accordance with good engineering practices, the design and construction 
standards of all applicable state and local regulations and this Agreement   (“Utility Project 
Engineer”).  The Utility Project Engineer will work and coordinate with the City Engineer to 
obtain the timely review and approval by Developer, the City Engineer and the Director of 
Development Services of the design, plans, specifications and construction of the Utility Project 
or a phase thereof.  The Developer shall obtain City Council approval of the Reimbursable Costs 
of the Utility Project or a phase thereof (defined in Section 4.06) before the Developer 
commences work on the Utility Project.  Developer shall be responsible for ensuring that the 
Utility Project Engineer complies with the terms of this Agreement, including with regard to the 
responsibilities assigned to the Utility Project Engineer herein.   
 
4.05.  Bidding of the Utility Project.   
 

(a) The Project Engineer will advertise the Utility Project for sealed competitive bids in 
 

 
 
 3 



compliance with the Texas Local Government Code based on the City Engineer approved 
design, plans and specifications, and recommend the lowest qualified bidder/contractor to 
Developer and the City.    The Project Engineer will provide the City Engineer and the 
City’s purchasing agent with: (i) prior written notice of the dates for solicitation of the 
bids and the opening of the responses to the bid; and (ii) a copy of the notice.  
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Developer is responsible 
for bidding the Utility Project in compliance with Chapter 252, Texas Local Government 
Code. The Developer will utilize a unit price contract for the Utility Project. The Utility 
Project will be advertised for bids with alternate bids being required as follows: 

 
(1) For each phase of the Water Line Project will be advertised for bids with an 

alternate bid being required for a eight-inch water line (“Water Line Alternate 
#1”) and an alternate bid being required for a twenty inch (20”) waterline 
(“Water Line Alternate #2”), together with all equipment and related facilities 
and structures shown on the City approved plans and specifications for the 
Water Line Project.  

 
(2) Each phase of the Wastewater Line Project will be advertised for bids with an 

alternate bid being required for an eight inch (8”) wastewater gravity line 
(“Wastewater Line Alternate #1”) and an alternate bid being required for a 
twenty-one inch (21”) wastewater gravity line (“Wastewater Line Alternate 
#2”), together with all equipment and related facilities and structures shown on 
the City approved plans and specifications for the Wastewater Line Project. 

 
(3) The responsive bids must clearly and separately demonstrate the amount bid for 

the Subdivision Improvements not being oversized that will be conveyed to the 
City upon completion and amounts bid for the Water Line Project (Alternates 
#1 and #2) and the amounts bid for the Wastewater Line Project (Alternates #1 
and #2). 

 
 

(b) The City Engineer shall evaluate the bids for the Wastewater Line Alternate #1 and #2 to 
determine whether the bids are fair and balanced prior to accepting a recommendation of 
bid award.  Any unbalanced or skewed bids, as determined by bid tabulations may be 
appropriately corrected or rejected by the City.   
 

(c) Within ten (10) business days of the City’s receipt of the bids described in subsection 
4.05(a), the City Engineer will notify Developer of his/her decision on whether to 
recommend to the City Council approval or rejection of the bids and whether the City 
elects to proceed with the oversizing of the Utility Projects.  If the City Engineer 
recommends approval of the bid, then the approval of the bid will be placed on the next 
available City Council agenda for action, not to exceed sixty (60) business days from the 
date the City received the bids. 
  

 

 
 
 4 



(d) Developer will contract for the construction of each Utility Project; provided, however, 
that Developer may, at Developer’s sole discretion, elect to not proceed with awarding 
the construction contract or with the construction of the Utility Project; provided further 
that at such time that the Developer intends to proceed with design, bidding, and 
construction of Water Line Alternate #1 or Wastewater Line Alternate #2, the Developer 
will design, bid, contract for the construction of the Utility Project and cause the Utility 
Project to be completed and accepted by the City. The City will rebate Water Impact Fees 
and Wastewater Impact Fees as provided in Article VII below that are paid by:  (a) 
Developer and third parties for retail water and wastewater service to lots and tracts 
within the Property; and (b) by third parties that obtain City water and wastewater utility 
service for other land and developments by utilizing the Utility Project. The aggregate 
total of such rebates shall be up to but shall not exceed the Reimbursable Costs for the 
Utility Project as competitively bid and constructed by Developer; provided that: (i) 
Water Impact Fees may only be used to reimburse the Developer for the Reimbursable 
Costs of the Water Line Project and Wastewater Impact Fees may only be used to 
reimburse the Developer for the Reimbursable Costs of the Wastewater Project; (ii) if the 
City elects in its sole discretion to make one or more lump sum payments to the 
Developer for Reimbursable Costs of the Utility Project as provided in Article VII, the 
aggregate total of such rebates plus said lump sum payment(s) from the City shall not 
exceed the Reimbursable Costs for the Utility Project; and (iii) if the City pays for a 
portion of the Wastewater Line Project with a lump sum payment as set forth in Section 
4.10, the sum of such lump sum payment and the Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates shall 
not exceed the Reimbursable Costs for the Wastewater Line Project. 

 
4.06. Reimbursable Costs.  The “Reimbursable Costs” for the Utility Project, shall be: 

 
(a) The Reimbursable Costs for the Water Line Project, shall be the difference 

between the dollar amount of the approved bid for Water Line Alternate #1 and 
the dollar amount of the approved bid for Water Line Alternate #2; and 
 

(b) The Reimbursable Costs for the Wastewater Line Project shall be the difference 
between the dollar amount of the approved bid for the Wastewater Line Alternate 
#1 and the dollar amount of the approved bid for the Wastewater Line Alternate 
#2. 
 

provided that all such sums and amounts shall have been approved by the City Council prior to 
the Developer commencing work on the bid Utility Project and paid by Developer and are 
reasonable, necessary and documented to and approved by the City Engineer and Director of 
Development Services, or the City Council, as applicable.  Developer shall not receive or be 
entitled to receive any rebates or reimbursements for any of the costs attributable to any portion 
of the Utility Project that is not oversized and installed and constructed by Developer.  
 
4.07. Construction Plan Review and Inspection Fees.  The City’s construction plan review and 
inspection fees will not be applied to the portion of construction costs for the Utility Project that 
 

 
 
 5 



constitutes the Reimbursable Costs for the Utility Project.  
 
4.08 Easement Acquisition.  As shown on Exhibit E, a segment of the wastewater gravity 
line along Bagdad Road must be constructed on an adjacent parcel of land to connect to the 
City’s existing 15 inch wastewater line in Brushy Creek (“Off-site Wastewater Line”).  The 
Developer is primarily responsible for acquiring a permanent wastewater line easement, a 
temporary working space easement or similar rights (“Off-site Wastewater Line Easements”); 
however, the Parties agree to work cooperatively toward acquiring the Off-Site Wastewater Line 
Easements. As an example and not a limitation, in conjunction with the Bagdad Road capital 
improvement project, the City will take into consideration a possible assignment for the Off-site 
Wastewater Line within any easements or Bagdad right of way acquired by the City on the 
adjacent parcel of land.  If Developer desires to proceed with the construction of the Off-site 
Wastewater Line prior to the City’s acquisition of easements and Bagdad Road right of way on 
the adjacent parcel or the City determines that the Off-site Wastewater Line cannot be 
constructed within the available City easements and Bagdad Road right of way, then Developer 
will undertake commercially reasonable efforts to negotiate and acquire the Off-Site Wastewater 
Line Easements.  The City agrees to cooperate and support Developers’ acquisition of necessary 
easements from third parties. 
 
4.09 Eminent Domain.  The Offsite Wastewater Line and related easements are necessary 
and required by the City for the City to provide wastewater service to the Property, and for 
Developer to comply with the City Rules and obtain approval for the development of the 
Property.  The Developer shall pay costs of the acquisition (including the City’s costs of such 
acquisition by condemnation or conveyance in lieu thereof) of any easements or land necessary 
for the construction of the Offsite Wastewater Line.  The City Council has found the 
development of Property in compliance with this Agreement will serve a public purpose and 
benefit the economy of the City and the public welfare.  Therefore, if Developer determines that 
it may be necessary for the City to use its eminent domain powers to acquire property or an 
interest in property to install the Offsite Wastewater Line required by the City pursuant to this 
Agreement, Developer will make a request to the City to proceed with the acquisition of the 
easement in compliance with applicable law.  In any such event, the City proceeding to acquire 
such easement shall be subject to a finding by the City Council that such easement is required by 
the City and is necessary to accomplish a public purpose.  The Parties agree to work 
cooperatively toward allowing the initiation of construction of the Offsite Wastewater Line on an 
easement being acquired by the City at the earliest time lawfully permitted.  Developer shall be 
responsible for all costs incurred, and for security and deposits required by the City, for or with 
respect to any such acquisition. 
 
4.10 City Cost Participation.  If the City elects to proceed with the construction of the 
Wastewater Line Alternate #2 pursuant to Section 4.05(c) and if the Reimbursable Costs for the 
Wastewater Line Project exceeds thirty percent (30%) of the approved bid for Wastewater Line 
Alternate #1, then the City will pay the Reimbursable Costs for the Wastewater Line Project as 
follows:  (i) Reimbursable Costs for the Wastewater Line equal to an amount that is thirty 
percent (30%) of the approved bid for Wastewater Line Alternate #1 shall be paid through 
 

 
 
 6 



rebates of Wastewater Impact Fees as provided in Article VII; and (ii) the portion of the 
Reimbursable Costs for the Wastewater Line Project that exceed thirty percent (30%) of the 
approved bid for Wastewater Line Alternate #1 shall be paid by the City in lump sum payment 
within thirty days after the City’s acceptance of the Wastewater Line Alternate #2, or phase 
thereof, as appropriate.  If the Reimbursable Costs for the Wastewater Line Project are equal to 
or less than thirty percent (30%) of the approved bid for Wastewater Line Alternate #1, then the 
Reimbursable Costs for the Wastewater Line Project will be paid through rebates of Wastewater 
Impact Fees as provided in Article VII.    
 

Article V.  Development of the Subdivision 
  
5.01. Subdivision Improvements.  Developer will finance, design, construct and install all 
required water facilities, streets, drainage facilities and other amenities and improvements within 
the Property, or outside the boundaries of the Property, at Developer’s sole cost and expense 
(collectively the “Subdivision Improvements”), except as otherwise provided in this 
Agreement.  Developer shall plan, plat, build-out, and complete development and construct and 
install the Subdivision Improvements in compliance with good design and engineering practices, 
the applicable local, state, and federal regulations, the City Charter, Code of Ordinances and the 
rules and regulations of the City as amended by this Agreement, this Agreement, and the 
environmental regulations otherwise applicable to the Property, as amended from time to time.  
 
5.02. Riparian Corridor. The riparian corridor setback for the Subdivision is shown in the 
attached Exhibit “F”.   
 
 

Article VI.  Additional Agreements and Performance  
 

6.01. The City hereby agrees: 
  

(a) to coordinate with the Utility Project Engineer on specific design requirements and 
specifications; and to review, and to approve and sign the plans and specifications for 
the Utility Project in a timely manner, as appropriate; 

(b) to review and approve the plans, specifications and bids for construction of the Utility 
Project as obtained for and on behalf of the City by Engineer and Developer, as 
appropriate; 

(c) during the course of the Utility Project, to review, approve and sign necessary and 
appropriate change orders in a timely manner; to perform all inspections of the Utility 
Project in a timely manner; and to approve the Utility Project in a timely manner if 
constructed in accordance with the City approved plans and specifications; 

(d) after completion and final acceptance by the City of the Utility Project as constructed, to 
accept the Utility Project as part of the City's water and wastewater utility systems, as 
appropriate; 

(e) after Developer completes construction and obtains City acceptance of the Utility 
Project and upon Developer completing construction of a phase or section of the 

 

 
 
 7 



Subdivision in compliance with this Agreement and the City giving final acceptance 
of that  phase or section, the City will approve connections  to the water system and 
the wastewater system, as appropriate, and provide such services within the 
completed phase or section of the  Subdivision on the same terms and conditions as 
then provided within other areas of the City;  

(f) to review and process the applications made, and the plans and specifications 
submitted, by Developer with respect to the Subdivision in accordance with City 
regulations; and 

(g) to timely take such actions as necessary to comply with Chapter 395, Texas Local 
Government Code to make the Water Impact Fee Rebate and Wastewater Impact Fee 
Rebate payments.      

 
6.02.    Developer hereby agrees: 
  

(a) to contract with the Utility Project Engineer for the design, preparation of the plans and 
specifications, and the provision of the services anticipated to be performed by the 
Utility Project Engineer for the Utility Project pursuant to and in compliance with 
Article IV; 

(b) to review and approve the plans and specifications for the Utility Project (including the 
estimated cost of the Utility Project), identify any design errors, defects or 
insufficiencies, and to advise the City Engineer as to any perceived error, defect or 
insufficiency prior to approving any such plans and specifications; 

(c) to work and coordinate with the City, and to assure the improvements constituting the 
Utility Project are eligible for funding with capital impact fees pursuant to the City's 
capital impact fee ordinance, prior to the execution of any contract for construction; 

(d) to enter into a contract with an appropriate contractor approved by the City pursuant to 
competitive bids approved by the City and Developer for construction of the Utility 
Project; 

(e) that any construction or development within the Subdivision shall comply with the 
City's standards, rules, regulations and ordinances, or better; 

(f) for itself and its grantees, successors and assigns, to pay the water and wastewater 
capital recovery/impact fees the City establishes by ordinance for each lot, tract, parcel 
or building site in the Subdivision prior to utility service being provided to such lot, 
tract, parcel or building site, unless the City has elected instead to credit some or all of 
the amount of the unreimbursed Reimbursable Costs, as herein defined, against the 
amount of such fees that would otherwise be owed to the City, in which event 
Developer, its grantees, successors and assigns shall pay the amount of such fees not 
credited; 

(g) to pay to the City all fees and charges provided for or established by the codes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations of the City, as amended from time to time, for or with 
respect to the development of the Property, including, but not limited to, zoning and 
subdivision application fees, building permit fees, water and wastewater tap and use fees 
and capital recovery/impact fees (subject to the other terms of this Agreement), except as 
otherwise provided by this Agreement; and 

 

 
 
 8 



(h) to pay to the City all legal fees incurred by the City in negotiating and drafting of this 
Agreement.  

 
Article VII.  Collection and Payment of Impact Fees 

 
7.01. Payment of Impact Fees.  Developer, its grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent 
purchasers of any portion of the Property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within 
the Property that will be provided water service or wastewater service by the City shall be 
required to pay the City’s water impact fee (the “Water Impact Fee”) and wastewater impact fee 
(the “Wastewater Impact Fee”), established pursuant to Chapter 395 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, in the amount that is established by the City Capital Improvements Plan and 
City ordinance, as amended, from time to time, and that is in effect when the fee is paid.  The 
Water Impact Fee and Wastewater Impact Fee are referred to collectively as the “Impact Fees.”  
The Impacts Fee shall be payable with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time 
the building permit for each building or structure is applied for or, if no building permit is 
required, then upon the first to occur of the following:  (a) the date construction of the building 
or structure is first commenced, (b) the date an application is made to the City for a water 
connection to serve the building or structure, or (c) the date water service is requested for the lot, 
tract or parcel of land. 
 
7.02. Impact Fee Rebates.   
 

(a) Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of this Agreement, during the Term of this 
Agreement Developer shall receive a rebate of sixty percent (60%) of the Water Impact 
Fees paid to the City for connections to the City water utility system within:  (i) the 
Property; and (ii) within land or developments that connect to the Water Line Project by a 
direct connection or by a water line that is not listed and included in the City Capital 
Improvements Plan and ordinance that establishes the Water Impact Fees (the “Water 
Impact Fee Rebates”).  The Water Impact Fee Rebates will terminate upon the Developer 
receiving Water Impact Fee Rebates, or a combination of Water Impact Fee Rebates and 
one or more payments from the City, equal to the Reimbursable Costs for the Water Line 
Project.  The City may at any time, in its sole discretion, pay the Developer all or a portion 
of the Reimbursable Costs for the Water Line Project from any source of funds available to 
the City in one or more lump sum payments. 
 

(b) Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of this Agreement, during the Term of this 
Agreement Developer shall receive a rebate of sixty percent (60%) of the Wastewater 
Impact Fees paid to the City for connections to the City wastewater utility system within:  
(i) the Property; and (ii) within land or developments that connect to the Wastewater 
Project by a direct connection or by a wastewater line that is not listed and included in the 
City Capital Improvements Plan and ordinance that establishes the Wastewater Impact Fees 
(the “Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates”).  The Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates will 
terminate upon the Developer receiving Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates, or a combination 
of Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates and one or more payments from the City.    The City 

 

 
 
 9 



may at any time, in its sole discretion, pay the Developer all or a portion of the 
Reimbursable Costs for the Wastewater Project from any source of funds available to the 
City in one or more lump sum payments. 
 

(c) Upon the City’s acceptance for ownership, operation and maintenance of a Water Line 
Project or a phase thereof or a Wastewater Line Project or a phase thereof that is eligible an 
Impact Fee Rebate, the City’s obligation to pay the applicable Water Impact Fee Rebate or 
Wastewater Impact Fee Rebate and, if applicable, the City Cost Participation Amount will 
survive the City’s termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 2.01 or 2.02. 

 
7.03. Escrow Accounts.   
 
(a) Commencing on the Effective Date and continuing until the Water Impact Fee Rebates are 
terminated pursuant to this Agreement, the City will maintain a separate escrow account for the 
Water Impact Fees (the “Water Escrow Account”).  The City will deposit into the Water Escrow 
Account sixty percent (60%) of the Water Impact Fees paid to and received by the City for 
connections listed in this Article.  The Water Escrow Account will be held by the City and the 
Water Impact Fee Rebates paid out to Developer as provided in this Agreement.  Payments of 
Water Impact Fee Rebates to Developer shall begin after Developer completes and obtains City 
acceptance of the Water Line Project.   
 
(b) Commencing on the Effective Date and continuing until the Wastewater Impact Fee 
Rebates are terminated pursuant to this Agreement, the City will maintain a separate escrow 
account for the Wastewater Impact Fees (the “Wastewater Escrow Account”).  The City will 
deposit into the Wastewater Escrow Account sixty percent (60%) of the Wastewater Impact Fees 
paid to and received by the City for connections listed in this Article.  The Wastewater Escrow 
Account will be held by the City and the Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates paid out to Developer as 
provided in this Agreement.  Payments of Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates to Developer shall 
begin after Developer completes and obtains City acceptance of the Wastewater Project. 
 
7.04. Payment of Rebates.  Impact Fee Rebates will be paid by the City to Developer quarterly in 
arrears.  Impact Fee Rebates will be paid on or before the 15th day of each April, July, October and 
January following the date the City receives the Impact Fees.  The payments will be in an amount 
equal to sixty percent (60%) of the Impact Fees collected by City during the three (3) calendar 
months preceding the month the scheduled payment is due and payable. Notwithstanding any other 
term or provision of this Agreement, the City will discontinue rebating: (a) Water Impact Fees at 
such time, if any, as Developer, its grantees, successors and assigns, have been paid Water Impact 
Fees, or a combination of Water Impact Fee Rebates and one or more payments from the City, in an 
amount equal to the Reimbursable Costs of the Water Line Project; and (b) Wastewater Impact 
Fees at such time, if any, as Developer, its grantees, successors and assigns, have been paid 
Wastewater Impact Fees, or a combination of Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates and one or more 
payments from the City, in an amount equal to the Reimbursable Costs of the Wastewater Project. 
 

Article XIII.  Assignment of Commitments and Obligations; Binding Agreement. 
 

 
 
 10 



 
8.01. Assignment.  The Developer’s rights and obligations under this Agreement may be 
assigned in whole or part, to persons purchasing all of the Property or a part of the Property but 
not to an individual purchaser of lots within a recorded final plat.  In the event Developer(s) 
assign all of their respective rights under this Agreement in conjunction with the conveyance of 
any unplatted portion of the Property, a written assignment of developer status must be filed of 
record in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas in order to be effective.  Any 
assignment of Developer’s rights and obligations hereunder will not release Developer(s) of their 
respective obligations under this Agreement for the assigned portion of the Property until the 
City has approved the written assignment; provided, however, the City shall not unreasonably 
deny, delay, or condition its approval of the assignment.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Developer may assign to a third party or otherwise encumber its rights to receive the City Cost 
Participation Amount, Water Impact Fee Rebates and Wastewater Impact Fee Rebates without the 
approval of the City; provided Developer must notify the City of the assignment and any change in 
the name and addressee of the payee. 
 
8.02. Binding Obligations.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the parties, their successors, and assigns.  A fully executed copy of this Agreement shall be 
recorded in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas within ninety days after the 
Effective Date.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to impose the Developer’s obligations on 
individual owners that purchase lots for their personal use. 
 
 

Article IX.  Default and Related Provisions 
 
9.01. Default.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no party shall be deemed to be 
in default hereunder until the passage of thirty (30) business days after receipt by such party of 
notice of default from the other party. Upon the passage of thirty (30) business days without cure 
of the default, such party shall be deemed to have defaulted for purposes of this Agreement; 
provided that if the nature of the default is that it cannot reasonably be cured within the thirty 
(30) business day period, the defaulting party shall have a longer period of time as may be 
reasonably necessary to cure the default in question; but in no event more than sixty (60) days.  
In the event of default, the non-defaulting party to this Agreement may pursue the remedy of 
specific performance or other equitable or legal remedy not inconsistent with this Agreement or 
applicable state law.  All remedies will be cumulative and the pursuit of one authorized remedy 
will not constitute an election of remedies or a waiver of the right to pursue any other authorized 
remedy. 
 
9.02. Reservation of Rights.  To the extent not inconsistent with this Agreement, each party 
reserves all rights, privileges, and immunities under applicable laws, and neither party waives 
any legal right or defense available under law or in equity. 
 
9.03. Attorney’s Fees.  A party shall not be liable to the other party for attorney fees or costs 
incurred in connection with any litigation between the parties, in which a party seeks to obtain a 
 

 
 
 11 



remedy from the other party, including appeals and post judgment awards. 
 
9.04. Waiver.  Any failure by a party to insist upon strict performance by the other party of any 
provision of this Agreement will not, regardless of length of time during which that failure 
continues, be deemed a waiver of that party’s right to insist upon strict compliance with all terms 
of this Agreement.  In order to be effective as to a party, any waiver of default under this 
Agreement must be in writing, and a written waiver will only be effective as to the specific 
default and as to the specific period of time set forth in the written waiver.  A written waiver will 
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent default, or of the right to require performance of the 
same or any other provision of this Agreement in the future. 
 
9.05. Force Majeure.   

(a) The term "force majeure" as employed herein shall mean and refer to acts of God; strikes, 
lockouts, or other industrial disturbances: acts of public enemies, orders of any kind of the 
government of the United States, the State of Texas, Williamson County, the City of 
Leander or any civil or military authority; insurrections; riots; epidemic; landslides; 
lightning, earthquakes; fires, hurricanes; storms, floods; washouts; droughts; arrests; 
restraint of government and people; civil disturbances; explosions; breakage or accidents to 
machinery, pipelines, or canals; or other causes not reasonably within the control of the 
party claiming such inability. 

 
(b) If, by reason of force majeure, any party hereto shall be rendered wholly or partially unable 

to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, then such party shall give written notice of 
the full particulars of such force majeure to the other party within ten (10) days after the 
occurrence thereof.  The obligations of the party giving such notice, to the extent effected by 
the force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability claimed, except 
as hereinafter provided, but for no longer period, and the party shall endeavor to remove or 
overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch.  Any force majeure attributable to the 
City shall extend the term of this Agreement one day for each day of the force majeure 
delay. 

 
(c) It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes and lockouts shall be entirely within 

the discretion of the party having the difficulty, and that the above requirement that any 
Force Majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require that the 
settlement be unfavorable in the judgment of the party having the difficulty. 

  
Article X.  Notices 

 
10.01. Notice.  Any notice to be given hereunder by any party to another party shall be in writing 
and may be affected by personal delivery or by sending said notices by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the address set forth below.  Notice shall be deemed given when 
deposited with the United States Postal Service with sufficient postage affixed. 
 
 Any notice mailed to the City shall be addressed: 
 

 
 
 12 



 
 City of Leander    
 Attn: City Manager    
 200 West Willis    
 P.O. Box 319     
 Leander, Texas 78646-0319    

 
 with copy to: 
  
  Knight & Partners 
  Paige H. Saenz 
  223 W. Anderson Lane, Suite A105 
  Austin, Texas 78752 
   
 
 Any notice mailed to the Developer shall be addressed: 
 

 Devine Land Investments, LLC 
 Attn:  Gary Blackwell 
 12345 Ventura Boulevard, Suite H 
 Studio City, California 91604 
 
With copy to: 
 
 Sneed, Vine & Perry, PC  
 Attn:  Robert Kleeman 
 900 Congress Ave., Suite 300 
 Austin, Texas 78701 
 
 

 
Any party may change the address for notice to it by giving notice of such change in accordance 
with the provisions of this section. 
 

Article XI.  Miscellaneous Provisions 
 

11.01. The Parties acknowledge the mutual promises and obligations of the Parties expressed 
herein are good, valuable and sufficient consideration for this Agreement.  The Parties further 
acknowledge the City and Developer voluntarily elected the benefits and obligations of this 
Agreement, as opposed to the benefits available were Developer to have elected to develop the 
Property without the benefits and obligations of this Agreement, pursuant to and in compliance 
with the applicable City ordinances.  Therefore, save and except the right to enforce the 
obligations of the City to perform each and all of the City’s duties and obligations under this 
Agreement, Developer hereby waives any and all claims or causes of action against the City 
 

 
 
 13 



Developer may have for or with respect to any duty or obligation undertaken by Developer 
pursuant to this Agreement, including any benefits that may have been otherwise available to 
Developer but for this Agreement.  
  
11.02.  This Agreement, together with any exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire 
agreement between Parties and may not be amended except by a writing approved by the City 
Council of the City that is signed by all Parties and dated subsequent to the date hereof. 
 
11.03. The terms of this Agreement are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create any 
partnership or joint venture among the parties.  The City, its past, present and future officers, 
elected officials, employees and agents, do not assume any responsibilities or liabilities to any 
third party in connection with the development of the Property.  The City enters into this 
Agreement in the exercise of its public duties and authority to provide for development of 
property within the City pursuant to its police powers and for the benefit and protection of the 
public health, safety, and welfare.  With respect to the construction of the Utility Project or any 
phase thereof and the payment of the Impact Fee Rebates and the City Cost Participation 
Amount, this Agreement is subject to Subchapter I, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code. 
 
11.04. This Agreement is not intended, nor will it be construed, to create any third-party 
beneficiary rights in any person or entity who is not a party, unless expressly provided otherwise 
herein, or in a written instrument executed by both the City and the third party.  Absent a written 
agreement between the City and third party providing otherwise, if a default occurs with respect 
to an obligation of the City under this Agreement, any notice of default or action seeking a 
remedy for such default must be made by the Developer. 
 
11.05. The Effective Date of this Agreement is the defined date set forth in the first paragraph. 

 
11.06. This Agreement or a memorandum of Agreement acceptable to the City and Developer shall 
be recorded in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas. 
 
11.07. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Texas and shall be performable in Williamson County, Texas.  Venue shall lie exclusively in 
Williamson County, Texas. 
 
11.08. It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that time is of the essence in the performance of 
this Agreement. 
 
11.09. Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement, and made a part hereof for 
all purposes: 
 
 Exhibit A – Property Description 
 Exhibit B – San Gabriel Parkway Right of Way  
 Exhibit C – Bagdad Road Right of Way 
  Exhibit D – Water Line Project 
 

 
 
 14 



 Exhibit E – Wastewater Line Project 
 Exhibit F – Riparian Corridor  
  
 
 
EXECUTED in multiple originals this the ____ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
      CITY: 
      City of Leander, Texas 

 a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
Attest: 
 
By:       By:      
Name: Debbie Haile    Name:  Christopher Fielder 
Title:  City Secretary    Title: Mayor                                                                 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2016, by 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor of the City of Leander, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation.  
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
       

DEVELOPER/OWNER: 
      Devine Land Investments, LLC,  a Texas limited  

liability company 
      
      By:      
      Name:  ________________________ 
      Title:  _________________________ 
 
THE STATE OF ___________ § 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ____________, 2016, by 
______________, ______________ of Devine Land Investments, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company, on behalf of said corporation.  
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 15 



      Sixth Street Capital, LLC, a Texas limited  
liability company 

      
      By:      
      Name:  ________________________ 
      Title:  _________________________ 
 
THE STATE OF ___________ § 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ____________, 2016, by 
______________, ______________ of Sixth Street Capital, LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company, on behalf of said corporation.  
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 

 

 
 
 16 













AGENDA ITEM # 22 
 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 7, 2016 

 

 Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
release funds totaling $840,380 to effectuate final settlement of pending eminent domain 
litigation to acquire a 5.217 acre tract owned by Gary and Cathy Gross (“Gross”) and also 
to execute a Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions concerning the 5.217 
acre tract for a deep water intake maintenance site, on terms subject to review and 
approval by the City Attorney and Special Counsel. 
 
Background:   The proposed Resolution approves the final settlement agreement and 
payment provisions for the acquisition of the Gary and Cathy Gross property on half of 
the BCRUA for the site of the Phase Two Deep Water Intake.  The total price for this 
5.217 acre tract is $2,565,000.00.  Previously, the City had deposited $1,724,620.00 in 
the registry of Travis County Court at Law No. 2, leaving a balance of $840,380.00 for 
the final settlement payment. This Resolution also includes approval of certain site 
development restrictions (Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions) for the 
Phase Two Deep Water Intake Site, which were negotiated in the settlement process and 
approved by the BCRUA Operations Committee.  The City’s legal counsel, Mr. Kent 
Sick, will be available along with City Staff to answer any questions or concerns of City 
Council.   The City Councils of Cedar Park and Round Rock and the BCRUA Board have 
previously approved this action. 
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  Approximately 43% of $840,380 from Utility Fund, GL# 
TBD (with approximately 57% refunded to Leander by BCRUA partner Cities of Cedar 
Park and Round Rock) 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the Resolution. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution and Exhibits 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



RESOLUTION  NO. _____________ 
Regarding Leander consent to final resolution of Gross matter pursuant to settlement agreement and  

release of additional funds related to settlement 
 
 

WHEREAS, in order to promote the public health, safety and welfare, it is necessary 

for the City of Leander to acquire a site for a permanent raw water intake facility and related 

appurtenances; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Leander has previously determined that a parcel of land 

owned by Gary Gross and Cathy Gross and situated in Travis County, Texas containing 5.217 

acres, as more fully described in Exhibit "A," (the "Property") was suitable for the said intake 

facility; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Leander filed a petition for condemnation to acquire the 

Property; and 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2016, the City of Leander and Gary and Cathy Gross 

reached a mediated settlement agreement (“MSA”) for final resolution of the condemnation 

case, subject to the approval of the City Council of Leander, which MSA is attached in full 

and incorporated herewith as Exhibit “B;” and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the MSA the City of Leander and Gary Gross and Cathy Gross 

agreed to total compensation for all claims relating to acquisition of the Property of Two 

Million Five Hundred Sixty-Five Thousand and No/100s Dollars ($2,565,000.00); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the MSA Leander agreed subject to approval of its Council to 

pay Gary and Cathy Gross additional funds of Eight Hundred Forty Thousand Three Hundred 

Eighty and No/100s Dollars ($840,380.00), which sum is the balance between the amount agreed 

to in the MSA and funds already paid in satisfaction of the Special Commissioners Award 

established in the case; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the MSA Leander is to agree to a certain set of land use 

covenants, conditions, and restrictions concerning use of the 5.217 acre property; and 

  



 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for Leander to disburse the final monetary compensation 

to effectuate its obligations pursuant to the MSA;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF LEANDER TEXAS 

THAT: 

(1) The Council approves final resolution of the acquisition of the Property on terms 

consistent with the MSA, subject to an Agreed Judgment to be approved by the 

City Attorney and special counsel, and consistent therewith hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to release the sum of Eight Hundred Forty Thousand Three 

Hundred Eighty and No/100s Dollars ($840,380.00) as directed by the City 

Attorney for the final cost of acquiring the Property pursuant to the MSA; and  

(2) The Council hereby authorizes the City Manager, as part of the MSA, to execute 

that certain “Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions” concerning 

the Property and attached to the MSA as Exhibit “A.” 

 

The Council hereby finds and declares that written notice of the date, hour, place and 

subject of the meeting at which this Resolution was adopted was posted and that such meeting 

was open to the public as required by law at all times during which this Resolution and the 

subject matter hereof were discussed, considered and formally acted upon, all as required by 

the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

  



 

RESOLVED this 7th day of July, 2016. 

 

 
      _________________________________ 
      CHRISTOPHER FIELDER, Mayor 
      City of Leander, Texas 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
DEBBIE HAILE, Secretary 

 









































CAUSE NO. C-1-CV-14-007201 
 
 
 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS  §   PROCEEDING IN EMINENT DOMAIN 
Plaintiff      § 

 §         
v.                                                                      §         IN THE COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 2 
                                                                         §                        
GARY L. GROSS and CATHY L. GROSS    § 
Defendants                 §               TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 

 
 AGREED FINAL JUDGMENT 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on the _____  day of _______________, 2016, came on to be 

heard the above-entitled and numbered cause and came Plaintiff, City of Leander, Texas and 

Defendants, spouses Gary L. Gross and Cathy L. Gross (both referred to jointly hereafter as 

“Gross”), and announced ready for trial. All other parties, having been duly served with notice, did not 

appear.  

I. 

Prior to commencement of trial of this cause, Gross admitted and stipulated in open Court that 

the Plaintiff, City of Leander and Gross had reached a settlement of this cause in connection with the 

condemnation of the hereinafter-described tract of land; and that, for purposes of settlement of this 

cause, this Court has jurisdiction of all such issues and this cause of action.  

  

II. 

From the papers heretofore filed in this cause, the evidence introduced upon the trial of 

this cause, and the agreements and stipulations made by the parties upon the trial of this cause, 

the Court finds: 
 
 1 



(1) That under and by its Original Petition in Condemnation filed in Probate Court 

No. 1 of Travis County, Texas, on the 31st  day of July, 2014, Plaintiff City of Leander sought 

and prayed for the fee simple acquisition of the tract of land described in Exhibit “A,” for the 

public use of excavating for, laying, constructing, operating, maintaining, replacing, removing, 

upgrading, and repairing a permanent raw water intake facility and related appurtenances, 

including but not limited to a subsurface tunnel, maintenance building, electrical lines and 

communication lines, and further for the use of any and all excavated materials from the taken 

property through condemnation of the following described tracts of land located in Travis 

County, Texas, to-wit: 

That certain parcel of land situated in Travis County, Texas containing 5.217 
acres, more or less, and being specifically described by metes and bounds and 
sketch in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated for all purposes. 
 

Provided, however, there is excluded from said estate to be condemned, all the oil, gas, minerals, 

and groundwater rights which can be removed from beneath said tract of land without any right 

whatever remaining to the owner, his heirs, assigns or successors in interest of such oil, gas, 

minerals, and groundwater, rights of ingress to or egress from the surface of said tract of land for 

the purpose of exploring, developing, drilling or mining of the same; 

(2) That pursuant to said Original Petition in Eminent Domain, said Judge appointed 

three disinterested freeholders who reside in Travis County, Texas, as Special Commissioners, 

who subsequently met, took their oaths of office, set a date of hearing before said 

Commissioners, and caused notice thereof to be duly served, as prescribed by law, and that said 

Special Commissioners duly held said hearing; 

 
 

 
 2 



(3) That upon said hearing Plaintiff the City of Leander and Defendants Gross 

appeared.  That after such hearing, said Special Commissioners made and rendered their decision 

and Award in writing, and filed said Award with the Judge of this Court on October 1, 2014; 

(4) That by said written Award, said Special Commissioners jointly awarded to all 

Defendants herein, for the fee simple interest in the property described in Exhibit “A” the total 

sum of ONE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED TWENTY FOUR THOUSAND SIX 

HUNDRED TWENTY AND NO/100s DOLLARS ($1,724,620.00); and 

 (5) That Gross duly and timely filed an objection and exception to such Award of 

said Special Commissioners. 

 

 III. 

The parties the City of Leander and Gross have announced to the Court they have 

reached through mediation a settlement agreement (“MSA”), a full copy of which is attached as 

Exhibit “B” and incorporated herewith by reference as if fully set out. The parties have 

previously jointly agreed pursuant to the MSA that Gross shall have and recover from the City 

of Leander the total sum of TWO MILLION FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY FIVE THOUSAND 

DOLLARS AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,565,000.00), inclusive of claims for pre-judgment 

and post-judgment interest, if any, representing the total amount of monetary compensation to 

which the Defendants are all jointly entitled by virtue of the condemnation of said property and 

compensable damages to Defendants’ remaining properties; and 

That Gross agreed to settle this cause based on the promises and representations made by 

the City of Leander in the MSA and Gross’s agreement to this judgment is conditioned upon 

 
 

 
 3 



the City of Leander’s fulfillment of the promises and representations made in the MSA; that the 

parties, therefore, recognize and agree that Gross shall receive certain other non-monetary 

compensation detailed within the MSA as additional compensation for this condemnation; and 

That the City of Leander has previously paid ONE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED 

TWENTY FOUR THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY AND NO/100s DOLLARS 

($1,724,620.00) into the registry of the Court; and 

That upon the City of Leander’s payment to Defendants of the differential between the 

Special Commissioners’ Award and the agreed MSA settlement amount, which difference totals 

EIGHT HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY AND 

NO/100s DOLLARS ($840,380.00), the City of Leander shall stand fully discharged of its 

constitutional obligation to pay Defendants all sums due as a result of this taking. 

 

IV. 

Based upon the agreement of the parties as to total monetary and non-monetary 

compensation due for this condemnation, and the evidence and arguments submitted, upon due 

consideration the Court finds and determines the following: 

(1) That all proceedings necessary to vest this Court with jurisdiction of the subject 

matter and the parties of this cause have been instituted, maintained and complied with as 

required by law,  

(2) That Gross hereby stipulates and admits that for purposes of settlement and in 

connection with this cause only the Court has jurisdiction over this matter and that, therefore, 

this Court has jurisdiction of the parties hereto and of the subject matter set forth in this case; 

 
 

 
 4 



(3) That the Defendants were the owners in fee simple of the property described in 

Exhibit “A” on the date of taking, and that together with the other named  Defendants owned one 

hundred percent (100%) of the property rights in and to both the fee simple taking tract described 

in Exhibit “A” and that the City of Leander, as Plaintiff, is condemning and the City of 

Leander is acquiring under and by virtue of these condemnation proceedings, the fee simple title 

in and to the tract of land described in Exhibit “A” and that the City of Leander is authorized to 

acquire said property; 

(4) That from the pleadings, evidence and the agreement of the parties, the 

Defendants should all jointly have and recover of and from the Plaintiff, City of Leander, the 

total monetary sum and amount of TWO MILLION FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY FIVE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,565,000.00), inclusive of interest on 

the Award/Settlement differential, together with the non-monetary items set out below, as 

compensation for said property condemned and taken; 

(5) That the City of Leander, in turn, should have and recover from all of the 

Defendants the fee simple title in and to the tracts of land described in Exhibit “A;” 

(6) That the Plaintiff, City of Leander, has already paid the sum of ONE 

MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED TWENTY FOUR THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED 

TWENTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($1,724,620.00) and said amount has been deposited 

with the Clerk of this Court with City of Leander check number 060264 in the amount 

described above on the 10th day of March, 2015. 

(7) That upon payment to Defendants of the additional mutually-agreed amount of 

EIGHT HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY AND 

 
 

 
 5 



NO/100s DOLLARS ($840,380.00) the City of Leander shall stand discharged of its 

constitutional obligation to pay just and adequate compensation for this taking; and 

(8) That all costs of Court incurred herein should be taxed against the Plaintiff, City 

of Leander, which costs shall be paid only to the County Clerk of Travis County, Texas. 

V. 

It is therefore ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the City of Leander 

does have and recover of and from all Defendants the fee simple title in and to the tract of land 

described in Exhibit “A,” save and except the subsurface minerals beneath said land, without 

any right whatsoever remaining in Defendants to enter onto the surface of said land to remove 

any minerals, and that the Defendants have and are jointly entitled to judgment from the City of 

Leander in the total sum of TWO MILLION FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY FIVE THOUSAND 

DOLLARS AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,565,000.00), inclusive of both the already-paid 

Special Commissioner’s Award and any interest on the Award/Settlement differential, and that 

the City of Leander must also provide the non-monetary items set out above and as specified in 

the MSA, all as just and adequate compensation for all interests in said property herein acquired 

in fee simple.  

  

 
 

 
 6 



 VI. 

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the fee simple title in and 

to the tracts of land described in Exhibit “A” is hereby decreed to and vested in the City of 

Leander; provided, however, there is excluded from said estate vested in the City of Leander 

all the oil, gas, minerals, and groundwater rights which can be removed from beneath said land 

aforesaid without any right whatsoever remaining to the owner, his heirs, assigns, or successors 

in interest of such oil, gas, minerals, groundwater and rights of ingress to or egress from the 

surface of said land for the purpose of exploring, drilling, developing or mining of the same. 

 

IX. 

It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED by the Court that all costs of this 

proceeding be and they are hereby taxed against Plaintiff, the City of Leander, which costs shall 

be paid only to the County Clerk of Travis County, Texas. 

 

SIGNED this the _____ day of _______________________, 2016. 

 
 
 

_____________________________ 
JUDGE PRESIDING 

 
 

 
 

 
 7 



APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE AND FORM: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
KENT A. SICK 
State Bar No. 18339300 
 
LAW OFFICES OF KENT ALAN SICK 
4611 Bee Caves Road, Suite 110 
Austin, Texas 78746 
Telephone:   (512) 472-8022 
Facsimile:    (888) 774-1322 
Email:  kent@kentsick.com 
  
 
PAIGE H. SAENZ 
State Bar No. 24026513 
KNIGHT & PARTNERS 
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
Austin, Texas 78752 
Telephone:    (512) 323-5778 
Facsimile:     (512) 323-5773 
Email:  paige@cittyattorneytexas.com 
 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF 
CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
CHRISTOPHER J. ODDO 
State Bar No.  ________ 
BARRON & ADLER, L.L.P. 
808 Nueces Street 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Telephone:  (512) 474-4995 
Facsimile:   (512) 478-6022 
Email:  oddo@barronadler.com 
 
COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANTS 
GARY L. GROSS AND SPOUSE, CATHY L. GROSS 

 
 

 
 8 

mailto:kent@kentsick.com
mailto:paige@cittyattorneytexas.com
mailto:oddo@barronadler.com

	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 22



